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MINUTES OF PROCEEDINGS PROCES-VERBAL

WEDNESDAY, APRIL 4, 1990 LE MERCREDI 4 AVRIL 1990

€Y €Y

[Text] [Traduction)

The Standing Committee on Privileges and Elections met at
3:45 o’clock p.m. this day, in Room 701, 151 Sparks Street, the
Vice-Chairman, Jean-Pierre Hogue, presiding.

Members of the Committee present. Chuck Cook, Jean-Pierre
Hogue, Peter Milliken and Scott Thorkelson.

In attendance: From the Research Branch of the Library of
Parliament: Jamie Robertson, Research Officer.

Witnesses: From the Office of the Auditor General: Ken Dye,
Auditor General of Canada; Bonnie Miller, Assistant Auditor
General.

The Committee resumed consideration of its Order of
Reference dated February 22, 1990, relating to Privy Council
Vote 15 of the Main Estimates, 1991 (See Minutes of Proceedings
and Evidence, Tuesday, March 13, 1990, Issue No. 22).

Ken Dye made an opening statement and, with the other
witness, answered questions.

At 4:04 o’clock p.m., the Chairman took the Chair.

At 4:15 o’clock p.m., the Committee adjourned to the call of
the Chair.

Susan Baldwin

Clerk of the Committee

Le Comité permanent des priviléges et des élections se réunit
aujourd’hui a 15 h 45, dans la salle 701 au 151, rue Sparks, sous
la présidence de Jean-Pierre Hogue (vice-président).

Membres du Comité présents: Chuck Cook, Jean-Pierre Hogue,
Peter Milliken et Scott Thorkelson.

Aussi présente: Du Service de recherche de la Bibliothéque du
Parlement: Jamie Robertson, attachée de recherche.

Témoins: Du Bureau du Vérificateur général du Canada:
Kenneth M. Dye, vérificateur général; Bonnie Miller, vérifica-
teur général adjoint.

Le Comité reprend les travaux prévus a son ordre de renvoi
du 22 février 1990, soit I'étude du Budget des dépenses principal
pour Pexercice prenant fin le 31 mars 1991: Crédit 15, Conseil
privé (voir les Procés-verbaux et témoignages du mardi 13 mars
1990, fascicule n° 22).

Kenneth M. D_ye fait un exposé puis, avec I'autre témoin,
répond aux questions.

A 16 h 04, le président réintégre le fauteuil.

A 16 h 15, le Comité s’ajourne jusqu’a nouvelle convocation
du président.

La greffiére du Comité

Susan Baldwin
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[Text] [Translation)
EVIDENCE TEMOIGNAGES

[Recorded by Electronic Apparatus)
Wednesday, April 4, 1990

e 1545

The Vice-Chairman (Mr. Hogue): I call the meeting to order.

Monsieur Dye et madame Miller, je vous souhaite la
bienvenue. Vous avez la parole, monsieur Dye.

M. Kenneth Dye (vérificateur général du Canada): Merci,
monsieur le président. Je regrette de ne pas avoir été disponible
pour la derniére réunion, mais j’avais une autre priorité.

Larry Myers was here and in his opening remarks noted that our
role is non—partisan. He also noted that we were focusing on
operations and that we were not here to testify on the merits of
the estimates, but to offer you advice flowing from publicly
reported accounts in the audits of the Auditor General.

After reviewing the testimony given that day, I would like to
make a minor clarification. We assured you that the metal voting
boxes were all returned to Ottawa. Such is not the case. Some
were stored in the west and some were stored in the Maritimes,
but most are stored here.

Mr. Milliken (Kingston and the Islands): Mr. Dye, the
last time your people were before this committee I asked
about a response to a question posed to persons working in
the office of the Chief Electoral Officer. The question
concerned their explanation for the purchase of these cardboard
ballot boxes. They were asked why they did it and why they did
not tender it. I asked what these people said, and I would like to
know the answer given to your officers on that occasion.

Mr. Dye: Mr. Chairman, I would be happy to offer what we
know. Since I was not there, Ms Miller will answer.

Ms Bonnie Miller (Assistant Auditor General): There
were a number of reasons. First, they started producing ballot
boxes in late 1987—they thought an election was coming in
1988—and they felt there was insufficient time to tender.
They did contact one other organization, but they eventually
went back to the organization that had developed the die for the
earlier prototype. When we raised the issue of not tendering with
the Chief Electoral Officer, he was very concerned because he
thought it had gone out to competitive bidding.

Mr. Milliken: Did you raise it with someone else and find out
that it had not gone out, or did your discover that in the course
of your investigation?

Ms Miller: We discovered that in the course of our work.

[Enregistrement électronique]
Le mercredi 4 avril 1990

Le vice-président (M. Hogue): La séance est ouverte.

I would like to welcome Mr. Dye and Mrs. Miller. Mr. Dye,
you have the floor.

Mr. Kenneth Dye (Auditor General of Canada): Thank you,
Mr. Chairman. I am sorry I was not available for the last
meeting, but I had another priority.

Larry Myers a assisté a cette réunion et dans son allocution
d’ouverture il a fait remarquer que notre réle était non partisan.
Il a fait également remarquer que nous étions en train de préciser
nos activités et que nous n’étions pas la pour discuter du mérite
des prévisions budgétaires, mais pour vous offrir des conseils
découlant des comptes officiels qui figurent dans les vérifications
du vérificateur général.

Tai étudié le témoignage donné ce jour-1a et jaimerais y
apporter une petite précision. Nous vous avons affirmé que les
urnes en métal avaient toutes été réexpédiées a Ottawa. Or, ce
n'est pas le cas. Certaines sont entreposées dans I'Ouest,
d’autres dans les Maritimes, méme si la plupart d’entre elles sont
entreposées ici.

M. Milliken (Kingston et les Iles): Monsieur Dye, la
derniére fois que vos collaborateurs ont comparu devant ce
comité, je leur ai demandé de répondre a une question qui a
été posée a ceux qui travaillent dans le bureau du directeur
général des élections. Cette question concernait les explications
qu’ils avaient fournies pour justifier I'achat de ces urnes en
carton. On leur avait demandé pourquoi ils avaient fait ce choix
et n’avaient pas eu recours a un appel d’offres. J’ai demandé
quelle avait été leur réponse et jaimerais qu'on me dise
maintenant la réponse qui a été donnée a vos collaborateurs &
cette occasion.

M. Dye: Monsieur le président, je sqrais heureux de vous dire
tout ce que nous savons, mais comme jé n’étais pas 13, c’est M™®
Miller qui vous répondra.

Mme Bonnie Miller (Vérificateur général adjointe):
Leur décision a été prise pour un certain nombre de raisons.
Tout d’abord, ils ont commencé & se procurer des urnes vers
la fin de 1987—ils s’attendaient a une élection en 1988—et ils
avaient estimé qu’il n’y avait pas suffisamment de temps pour
faire un appel d’offres. Ils ont pris contact avec une autre
entreprise pour finalement revenir a celle qui avait mis au point
le moule du premier prototype. Quand on a posé la question au
directeur général des élections, il a ét€ fort troublé car il pensait
qu’on avait eu recours a un appel d’offres.

M. Milliken: Vous étes-vous apercu que cela n’avait pas été
fait en posant la question a quelqu’un d’autre ou bien au cours
de votre enquéte?

Mme Miller: Nous nous en sommes apercu au cours de notre
enquéte.
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[Texte]

Mr. Milliken: Who was it that made the cardboard boxes? Do
you know? What person or company received the contract?

Mr. Dye: Again I will have to rely on Ms Miller’s knowledge
since she knows which corporation it was.

Ms Miller: It was the Standard Paper Box Corporation.

Mr. Milliken: Had the Chief Electoral Officer or his
office—to you knowledge—had any previous dealings with that
company?

Ms Miller: You would have to refer that question to Elections
Canada. As I mentioned, when they developed the prototype
they went to Supply and Services to select a company to design
the die, and Supply and Services recommended Standard Paper
Box.

® 1550

Mr. Milliken: Was the Chief Electoral Officer’s order for
these cardboard boxes placed through the Department of Supply
and Services?

Mr. Dye: Perhaps the department can help you with that one.
We do not know the answer.

Mr. Milliken: I believe your investigation indicated the boxes
could have been obtained much more cheaply elsewhere. What
was the basis of your information in respect of the lower price?

Mr. Dye: It was through comparison with other electoral
officers who had previously purchased cardboard boxes.

Mr. Milliken: Did you write to them and ask about these?
How did you get the information? Can you tell us that?

Ms Miller: Mr. Chairman, one of the things we did as part of
our examination was, through Elections Canada, to write to the
various electoral offices requesting information on a variety of
things, including cost of elections. One of them was the cost of
ballot boxes where provinces were using paper ballot boxes.

Mr. Milliken: As part of that investigation, did you make any
inquiry as to where the other cardboard ballot boxes had been
purchased? Had they been bought from the company you named
earlier as having supplied Elections Canada with boxes?

Ms Miller: We did request the name and manufacturers. We
did not get it in all instances.

Mr. Milliken: Did you get it in the inst'anoe you cited in your
report concerning the particularly low price?

Mr. Dye: Chairman, I am informed that in Manitoba it was a
local producer. We are not aware of the others, but perhaps the
Chief Electoral Officer can give you the facts.

Mr. Milliken: When you say you wrote the letters through the
Chief Electoral Officer, does this mean the letter was written by
the Chief Electoral Officer and the information then provided
to you when it came back? Or does the letter go out on your own
letterhead to the various people, saying you are doing an audit
and would like this information?

[Traduction)

M. Milliken: Qui donc a fabriqué ces urnes en carton? Le
savez-vous: savez-vous quelle personne ou quelle compagnie a
obtenu le contrat?

M. Dye: Puisque M™ Miller sait de quelle compagnie il s’agit,
je lui demanderai a nouveau de répondre.

Mme Miller: I1 s’agit de la Standard Paper Box Corporation.

M. Milliken: Savez-vous si le directeur général des élections
ou ses collegues avaient déja traité avec cette compagnie?

Mme Miller: Il faudrait poser la question & Elections Canada.
Comme je I'ai mentionné, apres avoir développé le prototype,
Elections Canada a demandé a Approvisionnements et Services
de choisir une compagnie pour fabriquer le moule et Approvi-
sionnements et Services a recommandé la Standard Paper Box.

M. Milliken: Est-ce que le directeur général des élections est
passé par le ministére des Approvisionnements et Services pour
faire sa commande d’urnes en carton?

M. Dye: Je ne sais pas. Le ministere peut probablement vous
répondre.

M. Milliken: Je pense que votre enquéte a conclu que ces
urnes auraient pu €tre obtenues ailleurs a meilleur compte. Sur
quoi vous étes-vous basé pour tirer cette conclusion?

M. Dye: Par comparaison avec les achats précédents d’urnes
en carton effectués par d’autres directeurs d’élections.

M. Milliken: Leur avez-vous posé des questions la-dessus par
écrit? Comment avez-vous obtenu cette information? Pouvez-
vous nous le dire?

Mme Miller: Dans le cadre de notre enquéte, nous avons
demandé a Elections Canada d’écrire aux divers bureaux
d’élections pour leur demander toutes sortes de renseignements,
y compris le colit des €lections. Lune des questions portait sur le
coiit des urnes en carton dans les provinces qui les ont utilisées.

M. Milliken: Dans le cadre de votre enquéte, avez-vous
cherché a savoir ou les autres urnes en carton avaient été
achetées? Est-ce la méme compagnie que vous avez nommée
tout a I’heure qui a fourni ces urnes a Elections Canada?

Mme Miller: Nous avons demandé le nom de la compagnie
et du fabricant, mais nous ne I'avons pas obtenu dans tous les
cas.

M. Milliken: Avez-vous obtenu ces renseignements dans le
cas cité dans votre rapport ot le prix était particuliérement bas?

M. Dye: Monsieur le président, on me dit qu’il s’agit d’'un
producteur local du Manitoba. Pour les autres, nous ne sommes
pas au courant, mais le directeur général des élections peut
probablement vous répondre.

M. Milliken: Quand vous dites que vous avez demandé au
directeur général des €lections d’envoyer ces lettres, est-ce que
cela veut dire que C'est le directeur général des élections qui les
a écrites et que la réponse vous a €té transmise par la suite ou
bien est-ce que ces lettres ont €té écrites sur votre papier &
lettres, et mentionnaient-elles que vous aviez besoin de ces
informations pour votre vérification?
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[Text]

Ms Miller: It went out on the letterhead of Elections Canada
and the information came back to us through Elections Canada.

Mr. Milliken: You directed the letters to be sent and you
dictated the letters for Elections Canada to sign. Is that sort of
the way it works? I am putting it crudely.

Ms Miller: That is right.

Mr. Milliken: Is this part of your standard work in doing an
audit with a government department or agency?

Mr. Dye: It depends on how we want to achieve co-operation.
Among the Auditors General in the country, we do write to one
another and co-operate. I am sure the same arrangement works
among the Chief Electoral Officers. They know one another and
they would be co-operative with one another.

Mr. Milliken: One of the other items you raised in your
report was the voter inquiry services. You suggested that
better analysis and planning was required. I am wondering if
you could give us any comment on that. You went through
the costs per call and found them excessive for the part of the
service that was contracted out to an independent agency,
according to my recollection of the material in your report. It is
on page 209 in the annual report. Is that the case?

Ms Miller: Mr. Chairman, we were using this as an
illustration of the need to have better analysis and planning
and better documentation of decisions made. This contract
was let in August 1988, I think, which was late in the process.
We are pointing out that the costs are higher, but we were unable
to find adequate information on file to indicate whether or not
Elections Canada had done a detailed analysis of whether or not
the costs were reasonable.

Mr. Milliken: Do you know if there had been any tendering
of this process before?

® 1555

Ms Miller: No. This was the first time they had
established a reference service. I should point out that
Reference Canada is within the Department of Supply and
Services. It is a government agency. It was late in the process
when they decided to establish this. They felt there was no other
national inquiries agency that could handle this, given the
timeframe. Also, Reference Canada had provided statistics on an
informal basis in the previous election.

Mr. Milliken: Paragraph 10.71 of the report says that these
figures were not challenged by examination. Does that mean you
did not review the figures to see if they had been calculated in
accordance with sound accounting principles?

Ms Miller: No. We are saying that Elections Canada did not
challenge the basis for the costs.

Mr. Milliken: Did you examine the basis as part of your audit,
or did you accept those at face value?

[Translation]

Mme Miller: Les lettres portaient entéte d’Elections
Canada et les renseignements nous ont été fournis par Elections
Canada.

M. Milliken: Vous avez ordonné que les lettres soient
envoyées, vous les avez dictées et demandé a Elections Canada
de les signer. C’est bien ¢a? Excusez mon manque de subtilité.

Mme Miller: C’est bien ca.

M. Milliken: Est-ce que vous faites cela normalement quand
vous procédez a la vérification d’un ministére ou d’une agence
gouvernementale?

M. Dye: Cela dépend de la fagon dont on souhaite obtenir
leur collaboration. Les vérificateurs généraux au Canada
s’écrivent et collaborent entre eux. Je suis sir que c’est la méme
chose pour les directeurs généraux des élections. Ils se
connaissent et ils collaborent entre eux.

M. Milliken: Vous avez également soulevé dans votre
rapport la question du Service de renseignements aux
électeurs qui, selon vous, manque d’analyse et de
planification. J’aimerais avoir vos observations sur ce point.
Vous avez étudié le cofit de revient de chaque appel et vous avez
conclu qu’il était excessif lorsque le service avait été sous-traité
a une agence indépendante, si je me souviens bien de la teneur
de votre rapport. Il s’agit de la page 220 du rapport annuel.
Est-ce bien le cas?

Mme Miller: Monsieur le président, cet exemple montre
simplement qu’il faut améliorer I'analyse et la planification et
mieux documenter les décisions qui sont prises. Ce contrat a
été passé en aofit 1988, je pense, clest-a-dire en fin de
parcours. Nous faisons remarquer que les cofits sont plus élevés,
mais nous n’avons rien trouvé dans les dossiers qui indique
qu’Elections Canada a fait ou n’a pas fait d’analyse détaillée sur
le caractére raisonnable de ces cofits.

M. Milliken: Savez-vous si ce genre de contrat a déja fait
I'objet d’un appel d’offres?

Mme Miller: Non. Clest la premiére fois qu'on
établissait un service de référence. Je dois vous faire
remarquer que Référence Canada est un organisme
gouvernemental, qui releve du  ministere  des
Approvisionnements et Services. Ce service a €té établi alors que
le processus était déja passablement avancé, parce qu’on a
estimé que vu le temps qu’il restait, aucun autre office national
d’enquéte n’était en mesure d’accomplir cette téche. Référence
Canada avait d’ailleurs fourni officieusement des statistiques
lors de I’élection précédente.

M. Milliken: Au paragraphe 10.71 du rapport, vous dites que
ces chiffres n’ont pas fait 'objet d’'un examen. Est-ce que cela
veut dire que vous n’avez pas vérifi€ les calculs pour voir s'ils
avaient été faits conformément a de bons principes comptables?

Mme Miller: Non. Cela veut dire qu’Elections Canada n’a pas
examiné sur quoi était basé ces calculs.

M. Milliken: Lavez-vous fait vous-méme dans le cadre de
votre vérification ou avez-vous simplement accepté les résul-
tats?
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[Texte]

Ms Miller: One of the points we are making in this audit is that
there was very little documentation to look at in certain
instances.

Mr. Milliken: But did you look at what documentation there
was for the Reference Canada figure at $4.73 per call, or did you
accept the statement they gave to Elections Canada in respect of
that charge?

Ms Miller: We looked at the documentation. The contract
provided for a certain charge for the first 50,000 calls and a
certain amount after that. What we are saying is that in
negotiating this contract originally for the price per call there was
not adequate analysis done.

Mr. Milliken: By Elections Canada.
Ms Miller: That is right.

Mr. Milliken: Did you satisfy yourself that the payment
of $4.73 was in fact the actual cost to Reference Canada, or
was this a money-making venture by Reference Canada at the
expense of the Chief Electoral Officer? In other wordst was
the government taking money out of one pocket and putting it
into another? Was that examination conducted, or is it possible
this was a money-making venture for Reference Canada? Do
you see what I am getting at?

Mr. Dye: If this happened to be in our line of inquiry when we
were auditing Statistics Canada, that type of thing x'vould pop up
in our audit. But in this case, while auditing Elections Canada,
we did not look at Supply and Services’ behind-the-scenes data
to their invoice. We only looked at the invoice. That is as far as
we went.

Mr. Milliken: So you did not go behind the invoice. That was
the intent of my question.

Mr. Dye: No, we did not.

Mr. Milliken: If Reference Canada was charging double what
their actual costs were on this contract you would not have known

that from your audit.

Mr. Dye: No. But it would be my view that Elections Canada
should have known that they were getting fair value.

Mr. Milliken: Fair enough. I gather that from the report.
Thank you.

Mr. Thorkelson (Edmonton—Strathcona): Mr. Dye, as you
know, enumeration is done manually. Some returning officers
used programs. You recommended in your report that there
could be many gains in efficiency if a standard package was
available. Would you comment on that and tell us how you think
Elections Canada should proceed?

Mr. Dye: We see a large number of opportunities in the
application of technology. We also see a situation where it
was uneven in this situation. Various types of technology
were applied, basically on an experimental basis, but trying to

[Trad'uction]

Mme Miller: Une des choses que nous faisons ressortir dans
cette vérification, c’est que dans certains cas, il y avait fort peu
de documents a étudier.

M. Milliken: Mais avez-vous étudié les documents disponi-
bles justifiant le cofit de 4.73$ I'appel établi par Référence
Canada, ou avez-vous accepté les explications fournies a
Elections Canada a cet égard?

Mme Miller: Nous avons étudié la documentation. Le contrat
précisait qu'un montant forfaitaire serait versé pour les 50,000
premiers appels et tant par la suite. Nous soutenons que
lorsqu’on a négocié le prix par appel dans le contrat au départ,
il n’y a pas eu suffisamment d’analyse de faite.

M. Milliken: De faite par Elections Canada.
Mme Miller: Cest juste.

M. Milliken: Avez-vous vérifié que ce montant de 4,73%
représentait en fait les cofits de Référence Canada et que
Référence Canada n’essayait pas de réaliser des bénéfices aux
frais du directeur général des élections? Autrement dit, est-ce
qu'on n’a pas fait des tours de passe-passe avec I'argent des
contribuables? Vous étes-vous renseigné? Se peut-il que
Référence Canada ait réalisé des bénéfices? Vous voyez ot je
veux en venir?

M. Dye: Si cela avait fait partie de notre enquéte concernant
Statistique Canada, cest le genre de choses qui seraient
ressorties lors des vérifications. Dans ce cas, toutefois, lorsque
nous avons examiné Elections Canada, nous n’avons pas étudié
les données d’Approvisionnements et Services qui avaient servi
a I'établissement de leurs factures. Nous avons simplement
étudié la facture et nous ne sommes pas allés plus loin que cela.

M. Milliken: C’est bien ce que je voulais savoir, vous vous en
étes tenu a la facture.

M. Dye: Effectivement.

M. Milliken: Si Référence Canada avait facturé un montant
deux fois plus élevé que leurs cofits, vous ne vous en seriez pas
apercu lors de votre vérification.

M. Dye: Non. Je pense toutefois qu’Elections Canada est a
méme de juger s'ils en avaient pour leur argent.

M. Milliken: Je suppose. C’est ce que j’ai conclu du rapport.
Je vous remercie.

M. Thorkelson (Edmonton—Strathcona): Monsieur Dye,
comme vous le savez le recensement se fait manuellement.
Certains directeurs de scrutin ont utilisé des programmes. Dans
votre rapport, vous dites que si le matériel utilisé était normalisé,
le systeéme serait beaucoup plus efficace. Pourriez-vous dévelop-
per votre pensée sur ce point et nous dire ce qu'Elections
Canada devrait faire a cet égard?

M. Dye: La technologie a beaucoup d’applications sur le
plan pratique. Nous avons également constaté qu’il y avait eu
un manque d'uniformité. On a utilisé différentes sortes de
technologies, essentiellement a titre expérimental, mais pour
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make the work easier and more efficient, and we applaud that
experimentation. We sense it is worth while for Elections Canada
to take a serious look at this process of enumeration, not only for
their own needs but perhaps with a co-ordinated effort at
provincial and local government levels. After all, it is one
taxpayer carrying the three governments and paying the cost of
three elections. Perhaps on behalf of all Canadians Elections
Canada could take the lead and explore. It may be better to do
what they are doing, but at least I think they should make asound
exploration of potential opportunities.

Mr. Thorkelson: You have done your audit of Elections
Canada. We now have a royal commission into electoral reform.
I am wondering whether you are preparing a submission to them
based on your many very good ideas and comments. If so, what
will be in that submission?
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Mr. Dye: Chairman, we have not prepared a submission for
the royal commission. Should the royal commission ask us to
attend, of course we would be happy to appear. They do have our
audit material, and if they want explanatory information, we
would be happy to provide it.

Mr. Thorkelson: I am curious to know why you are waiting for
an invitation from them. Why do you not apply to them, since
you have done your study? I would presume you would be ready
at a moment’s notice to appear.

Mr. Dye: Chairman, I would hope it is more than a moment’s
notice. It is difficult to fit everyone in, but we do try to serve, and
because this is particularly related to our clientele, the Members
of Parliament, we take a big interest in it. However, I do not think
it has been the precedent of my office to appear before royal
commissions in the last century. Should we be asked, we would
be happy to appear.

We are not trying to persuade the Chief Electoral Officer
to change. It is up to him to change. Certainly the terms of
reference of the royal commission will be such that their
explorations and reports may well create change. While we
know our audit work does create change and opportunities for
improvement in economy and efficiency, I do not know that it
is our main objective as auditors. Our objective is to provide
assurance to Parliament through audit and not try to get
ourselves involved in policy or actively promote change, although
we do recognize it does happen from our interests.

Mr. Thorkelson: A permanent voters’ list has been rejected
before as being too costly. From your viewpoint, do you think we
could implement a system where we would have a permanent
voters’ list? There might be some cost efficiencies, perhaps either
in conjunction with the provinces and municipalties or by
ourselves with the application of the new technologies today.

[Translation]

faciliter la tache et accroitre I'efficacité et nous applaudissons
cette initiative. Nous estimons qu’il vaut la peine pour Elections
Canada de repenser sérieusement sa méthode de recensement,
en pensant non seulement a ses propres besoins mais en
essayant peut-€tre de coordonner ses efforts avec ceux des
gouvernements provinciaux et locaux. Aprés tout, les trois
gouvernements sont financés par les mémes contribuables qui
paient le colt des trois élections. Elections Canada pourrait
peut-étre explorer ces possibilités pour le compte de tous les
Canadiens. Le systéme actuel est peut-étre préférable, mais je
pense qu’il vaut la peine d’étudier sérieusement les autres
possibilités.

M. Thorkelson: Vous avez fait la vérification d’Elections
Canada. Il y a en ce moment une Commission royale d’enquéte
sur la réforme électorale. Vous avez d’excellentes idées et vous
avez fait de trés intéressantes observations; je me demandais si
vous aviez I'intention de leur soumettre un exposé et dans ce cas,
que contiendrait-il?

M. Dye: Monsieur le président, nous n’avons pas préparé
d’exposé a I'intention de la Commission royale. Si cette derniére
nous demande de comparaitre, nous serons bien entendu trés
heureux de témoigner. La Commission a en main le document
de vérification et si elle souhaite des renseignements complé-
mentaires, nous serons heureux de les lui fournir.

M. Thorkelson: J’'aimerais savoir pourquoi vous attendez
d’étre invités. Etant donné que vous avez fait votre étude,
pourquoi ne demandez-vous pas & la Commission de comparai-
tre? Je suppose que vous avez simplement besoin d’un bref
préavis.

M. Dye: Monsieur le président, j'espére avoir plus qu'un bref
préavis. 1l est difficile de répondre aux voeux de tous, mais nous
faisons de notre mieux, et puisqu’il s’agit 1a de quelque chose qui
touche particuliérement notre clientéle, les députés fédéraux,
nous y accordons beaucoup d’intérét. Néanmoins, je ne pense
pas que les vérificateurs généraux qui m’ont précédé depuis un
siécle aient jamais comparu devant des commissions royales. Si
Pon nous invitait 4 comparaitre néanmoins, nous serions
heureux de le faire.

Nous n’essayons pas de persuader le directeur général
des élections de changer quoi que ce soit. C'est a lui de
décider. En raison du mandat qui lui a été confié, le travail et
les rapports de la Commission royale risquent de modifier les
sujets d’étude. Nous savons que nos vérifications donnent lieu a
des changements et permettent des améliorations sur le plan
économie et efficacité, mais je ne pense pas que ce soit la
Pobjectif principal des vérificateurs. Nous sommes l1a pour
rassurer le Parlement par le truchement de nos vérifications, pas
pour nous immiscer dans des politiques ni promouvoir active-
ment des changements, méme si nos activités y sont pour
quelque chose.

M. Thorkelson: On a rejeté I'idée d’une liste permanente des
électeurs parce que ce serait trop coliteux. Pensez-vous que nous
pourrions adopter un systéme qui inclurait cette liste permanen-
te des électeurs? Si 'on avait recours a certaines des nouvelles
technologies, par nous-mémes ou en collaboration avec les
provinces et les municipalités, nous pourrions peut-étre réaliser
certaines économies.
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Mr. Dye: Chairman, I think it is worth exploration. That study
was done some time ago. Since then, we have seen an enormous
explosion in easy-to-use technology without too much training.
It may well be that the microtechnologies are particularly well
suited to that project. My view would be that it is worth looking
at again and sizing up again.

Mr. Milliken: Frankly, I am taking full advantage of the fact
that a lot of our colleagues are not here, so I can ask more
questions. As a new Member of Parliament, one of the things I
find difficult to work with are the estimates. I have been reading
your report and slugging through it, not daily but occasionally.
I keep it by my bedside, you will be glad to know.

Mr. Dye: Mine or the Chief Electoral Officer’s?

Mr. Milliken: Your report. The Chief Electoral Officer is a
good deal more concise, but he has to cover less ground.

Mr. Dye: We tell you more of what is going on.

Mr. Milliken: Yes, exactly. But one of the interesting
things in your report is your comment on the form of the
estimates and how they could be better in their presentation
to Parliament. I wonder if you have any comments to ma.ke
in a general way on the form of the estimates of the Chief
Electoral Officer. I do not care which year you comment on. In
my view, they are pretty similar, but I wonder if you have
particular criticisms of those, whether in fact they detail for us
what we in Parliament ought to see.

Mr. Dye: Chairman, if I can refer your _committee to
paragraph 10.104, the answer we offer there is tha'.t we do
think Part III of the estimates are comprehensive and
adequate. That does not mean they tell Members of
Parliament everything they need to know, but compared to other
organizations seeking funds from the public purse, they do
provide useful information. If you look at paragraph 10.105, we
did note that tax credits to donors—thp){ are part of the cost of
elections—were approximately $44 million in the last several
elections and were not reported to Parliament.

Mr. Milliken: With regard to the estimates and to the audit
you have completed—a fairly intensive 'audlt, I gather, of the
operations of the Chief Electoral Officer—do you fee! the
person-years that are authorized are gdequate or excessive—
either one—for the purposes for which the; Chlef Electoral
Officer is operating, particularly in non-election periods.

e 1605

Mr. Dye: Mr. Chairman, in a moment I am going to let Bonnie
Miller speak to that. My impression is of a rather small shpp,
focused not on questions of efficiency and economy, but serving
Parliament being the objective. Perhaps the cost has not been
foremost on their minds.

[Traduction)

M. Dye: Monsieur le président, la suggestion mérite d’étre
étudiée. On a fait une étude sur ce sujet il y a quelque temps.
Depuis lors, il y a eu une véritable explosion de technologie
d’application facile, qui ne nécessite guére de formation. Il se
peut que les microtechnologies soient particulierement adaptées
a ce genre de projet. Personnellement, je pense qu’il vaut la
peine d’étudier a nouveau la question et de refaire une nouvelle
mise au point.

M. Milliken: Je profite sans vergogne de I'absence de bon
nombre de nos collégues pour poser davantage de questions. A
titre de nouveau député, je trouve particulierement difficile
d’étudier les prévisions budgétaires. Je lis votre rapport a
I'occasion, pas tous les jours, et ma lecture avance péniblement.
Vous serez heureux d’apprendre que c’est mon livre de chevet.

M. Dye: Vous parlez de mon rapport ou de celui du directeur
général des élections?

M. Milliken: Du votre. Le rapport du directeur général des
élections est beaucoup plus concis, mais il couvre beaucoup
moins de choses.

M. Dye: Notre rapport vous permet d’étre mieux renseigné.

M. Milliken: Précisément. Une des choses que jai
trouvés intéressantes dans votre rapport, c’est 'observation
que vous avez faite sur le format des prévisions budgétaires
soumises au Parlement et le fait qu’il pourrait étre amélioré.
Jaimerais savoir de fagon générale ce que vous pensez du format
des prévisions budgétaires du directeur général des élections.
Vous pouvez choisir 'année qui vous plait. A mon avis, elles se
ressemblent toutes, mais j’aimerais savoir si vous avez des
critiques particulieres a formuler, si les prévisions soumises au
Parlement sont aussi détaillées qu’elles devraient I'étre.

M. Dye: Monsieur le président, permettez-moi de vous
renvoyer au paragraphe 10.104, ol nous disons que les
renseignements fournis dans la partie III des prévisions sont
complets et satisfaisants. Cela ne veut pas dire pour autant
que les députés ont en main toutes les informations voulues,
mais par comparaison avec d’autres organismes financés a
mémes les deniers publics, les informations fournies sont utiles.
Si vous lisez le paragraphe 10.105, nous y mentionnons que les
crédits d’impdt consentis aux donateurs—qui font partie des
frais électoraux et qui se chiffrent & environ 44 millions de
dollars pour les quelques dernieres élections—ne font pas partie
du rapport présenté au Parlement.

M. Milliken: En ce qui a trait aux prévisions budgétaires et &
la vérification que vous venez de terminer—une vérification
assez approfondie, je pense, sur les activités du directeur général
des €lections—pensez-vous que le nombre d’années-personnes
octroyées au directeur général des élections est adéquat ou
excessif au regard du mandat de ce dernier, en particulier en
période non-€lectorale.

M. Dye: Je demanderai a Bonnie Miller de vous répondre
dans quelques minutes, monsieur le président. J’ai 'impression
qu’il s’agit en quelque sorte d’une petite boutique, dont 'objectif
n'est pas d’étre efficace et économe mais de desservir le
Parlement. Je ne pense pas que le facteur coiit soit sa
préoccupation principale.



23:10

Privileges and Elections

4-4-1990

[Text]

But I am not in a position to give you a precise answer to the
question you just put, and I would like to rely on Ms Miller again,
if I may.

Ms Miller: In our report we made the points that the
organization needs to do an analysis of its workloads and it needs
better organization in place. That aside, the number of
person-years does not appear excessive to us. In fact, I think
between 1983 and 1989 there has been no increase in
person-years.

Mr. Milliken: Is that unusual?

Mr. Dye: Because it is so random, I do not know that you can
draw very many comparisons.

Mr. Milliken: We have had some additional management
comments from the Chief Electoral Officer that I believe he
tabled the day after you had been here the first time. I
presume you have seen those, and I wonder if you have any
comments. Do you have any criticisms of any of the responses
you were given, to indicate they are in any way inadequate or fail
to meet the standards you had set in your original criticisms in
the audit?

Mr. Dye: We think that Elections Canada has responded
positively to all the recommendations in our annual report.
We will be conducting a follow-up; on all value-for-money
audits, it is a normal practice of ours to follow up two years
later. That has not yet happened yet, so we will be doing it. We
will give them time not only to respond to the views of the
previous Chief Electoral Officer, but perhaps to absorb the
newness of the new Chief Electoral Officer and see what course
he intends to take.

My view, and the view of my staff, is there has been a
significant, positive, material response to our recommendations,
but we have not yet got back to auditing it.

The Chairman: I apologize, Mr. Dye, for not being here
on time. I think the bells give you some indication of why. I
was just walking out of my office when the Speaker decided
he had,better rethink his ruling. I have had the experience on
many occasions when I have left the building, walked across the
street, and then heard the bells start to ring. You get here, and
then you turn around and go back. So with the rain and
everything. . .I apologize, but believe me, it is based thoroughly
on the doctrine of precedence. It is what happens when one gets
stuck in this room for a committee hearing.

M. J.-P Hogue (député d’Outremont): Monsieur Dye,
jai limpression que vous occupez un poste trés important
dans la réalité canadienne. Lorsque les bureaux de
vérificateurs ou de comptables du Canada travaillent avec des
entreprises, ils sont souvent trés spécifiques et trés exigeants
quant & leurs recommandations. Ma question est d’ordre général.
Je me demande si vous pourriez, a certains moments, étre plus
agressif ou plus directif dans vos suggestions et recommandations
surtout que souvent, aprés un certain temps, 'organisation en
question ne répond plus de facon aussi satisfaisante.

[Translation]

Je ne suis toutefois pas en mesure de répondre de facon
précise a la question que vous venez de poser et si vous me le
permettez, je ferai une fois de plus appel @ madame Miller.

Mme Miller: Dans notre rapport, nous précisons que
'organisation doit effectuer une analyse de ses taches et mieux
s’organiser. Cela dit, le nombre d’années-personnes qui lui est
octroyé ne nous apparait pas excessif. De fait, je pense que ce
chiffre est resté constant de 1983 a 1989.

M. Milliken: Doit-on s’étonner?

M. Dye: Etant donné sa nature, je ne pense pas qu’on puisse
trouver beaucoup de points de comparaison.

M. Milliken: Le directeur général des €lections a déposé
d’autres observations en matiére de gestion, le lendemain
méme du jour ol vous avez comparu devant nous pour la
premiére fois, si je ne fais pas erreur. Je suppose que vous en
avez eu copie et j'aimerais savoir ce que vous en pensez.
Avez-vous des critiques & formuler a 'égard des réponses qu’on
vous a fournies, qui montrent que l'organisation souffre de
carences ou ne répond pas aux normes que vous avez fixées lors
de la vérification originale?

M. Dye: Je pense qu’E]ections Canada a donné suite a
toutes les recommandations contenues dans notre rapport
annuel. Nous avons l'intention de faire un suivi; pour toutes
les vérifications de ce genre, lorsqu’on essaie de s’assurer que
le contribuable en a pour son argent, nous faisons généralement
un suivi deux ans plus tard. Nous ne 'avons pas encore fait, mais
nous allons le faire. Nous donnerons le temps a cette
organisation non seulement de répondre aux voeux exprimés par
le directeur général des élections précédent, mais de s’adapter a
son remplagant et de voir sur quelle voie il s’engage.

Selon moi, et selon mes collaborateurs nos recommandations
ont donné lieu a des changements importants, positifs et
concrets, mais nous n’avons pas encore fait de vérification.

_ Le président: Pardonnez mon retard, monsieur Dye.
Ecoutez la sonnerie et vous saurez pourquoi je suis en retard.
Je quittais précisément mon bureau au moment ol I'orateur
a décidé de changer sa décision. Il m’est souvent arrivé aprés
avoir quitté 'édifice et traversé la rue d’entendre la sonnerie se
remettre en marche. On s'en va et ensuite on doit faire
demi-tour et revenir sous la pluie, le vent, etc. . . je suis désolé,
mais croyez-moi la faute revient a la doctrine des précédents.
C’est le genre de chose qui arrive lorsqu’on se trouve pris dans
cette salle pour une séance de comité.

Mr. J.-P. Hogue (Outremont): Mr. Dye, it is my
impression that you have a very important position in the
Canadian reality. When auditors or accountants audit
businesses, their recommendations are often quite specific
and demanding. I want to ask a general question. I wonder
whether sometimes you could be more aggressive or assertive in
your suggestions and recommendations especially when after a
certain time the organisation in question no longer responds as
positively.
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M. Dye: Monsieur le président, il y a deux niveaux de
recommandations a notre Bureau. Vous avez ici le rapport
annuel qui comporte beaucoup de recommandations, soit
environ 200 par année, ainsi qu'une réponse du ministére ou de
'agence. Il y a aussi une lettre au gestionnaire avec les détails;
cette lettre ressemble au type de lettre qu’envoient les six grands
comptables agréés du Canada.

Notre groupe ne compte pas seulement des comptables agréés
ou des comptables professionnels. Nous avons aussi des
économistes, des spécialistes en sciences politiques, des spécial-
istes en ordinateurs. Jusqu’a vendredi, un ami de M. Cook nous
avait été prété. Nous avons un gros groupe de gens de beaucoup
de disciplines, et non seulement des comptables.

Jespére que les recommandations sont suffisamment dures.
De temps en temps, le gouvernement me répond qu’elles sont
trop dures.

The Chairman: I am somewhat embarrassed by not
having been here, but at the risk of repeating a question, is
there any reason why Elections Canada four or five elections
ago, as long ago as that, could not have come to the
conclusion that shipping all election material to Ottawa was a
ruddy waste of money, and that there could have been small
storage facilities set up, either in each province or every couple
of provinces, rather than bringing all of the material to Ottawa
when it is really not likely to be looked at again? Was this

question explored?

Mr. Dye: Mr. Chairman, I am not right on 'top of when
it was last explored. I do not know whether it is cheaper or
not cheaper. It strikes me that your proposition 1s p.robably
correct, that it is expensive to ship things across this land.
Some things are shipped back. In my opening remarks i
apologized to the committee for having a minor error in our
testimony with respect to the steel boxes, the floating boxes. Not
all of them are returned to Ottawa. Some are stored in the west
and some are stored in the Maritimes.

I think the real reason why it is done is that it is in
legislation. The Chief Electoral Officer for some time has
tried to persuade parliament to take an interest in changes in
legislation, and he got close. But that failed. I think there are
a lot of opportunities, through legislation, to become far more
efficient. Perhaps another dimension of why it is all shlppt;d bz}ck
to Ottawa is the security question. I think the legislation
contemplated improved security by having it centralized.

The Chairman: Why were the steel boxes not eliminated when
cardboard packaging became as efficient, which again you can go
back 20 years and examine?

Mr. Dye: Mr. Chairman, I think the prpplem again is. a
matter of law. Perhaps we should be very cntlc;a] of the Chlef
Electoral Officer using innovation and creation and saving
some money, because he is not doing it in accordance with

[Traduction)

Mr. Dye: Mr. Chairman, there are two types of recommenda-
tions made by our office. You have in hand the annual report in
which you will find numerous recommendations, some 200 of
them per year, as well as a response by the department or the
agency. Moreover, there is a letter sent with details to the
manager. This letter is similar to the letters sent by the six major
chartered accountant firms of Canada.

Our group is not simply made up of chartered accountants or
professional accountants. We also have economists, experts in
political science and computer specialists. Until last Friday, a
friend of Mr. Cook was on loan to us. We have a large group of
representatives from all sorts of sectors, not only accountants.

I hope the recommandations are sufficiently strict. Someti-
mes, the government tells me they are too stringent.

Le président: Je suis un peu géné de ne pas avoir été ici,
et j'espere que je ne répeterai pas des questions qui ont déja
été posées. Y a-t-il une raison pour laquelle Elections
Canada, il y a quatre ou cinq €lections, il y a donc déja trés
longtemps, n’a pas conclu qu’expédier tout le matériel 4 Ottawa
était un gaspillage d’argent? On aurait pu installer de petits
entrep6ts dans chaque province, ou un entrepdt aurait pu étre
utilisé par deux provinces. Ainsi, il n’aurait pas été nécessaire de
renvoyer tout le matériel a Ottawa ol il ne sera probablement
plus consulté. A-t-on étudié ce probléme?

M. Dye: Monsieur le président, je ne sais pas quand on
s’est penché sur cette question pour la derniére fois. Je ne
sais pas si c'est plus économique ou pas. Vous avez
probablement raison, il est probablement trés cofiteux
d’expédier les choses d’un bout a I'autre du pays. Certaines
choses sont retournées. Dans ma déclaration liminaire je me suis
excusé aupres du comité d’avoir laissé une petite erreur se glisser
dans notre témoignage en ce qui a trait aux boites d’acier, les
urnes. Elles ne sont pas toutes retournées a Ottawa. Certaines
sont entreposées dans 'Ouest et d’autres dans les Maritimes.

Je crois qu’on le fait parce que cela est prévu dans la loi.
Il y a déja un bon moment que le directeur général des
€lections essaie de convaincre le Parlement d’apporter des
modifications a la loi. Il y est presque parvenu. Je crois qu'il
est possible, par 'entremise de la loi, de devenir beaucoup plus
efficace. Peut-étre toutes ces choses sont-elles retournées a
Ottawa pour des raisons de sécurité. Je pense que la loi avait
voulu assurer une meilleure sécurité en prenant des mesures
pour la centralisation des services.

Le président: Il y a déja 20 ans qu’on a découvert que les urnes
en carton €taient aussi efficaces que les urnes en acier? Pourquoi
n’a-t-on rien fait a cet égard?

M. Dye: Monsieur le président, je crois encore une fois
que cela dépend du texte de la loi. Peut-étre devrions-nous
critiquer le directeur général des élections parce qu'il fait
preuve de créativité et d’innovation, qu'il épargne de I'argent,
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the law. The law says you use or—if you read it carefully—I guess
it contemplates by the wording surrounding the locks that the
thing has to be a steel box. Parliament has said use a steel box,
and he is disobeying parliament by using his common sense.

Some hon. members: Oh, oh.

The Chairman: That is one of the most shocking conclusions
I have ever heard.

When do you anticipate doing a follow-up audit with the new
Chief Electoral Officer? Can we anticipate that prior to the end
of, say, 1991 or 1992? Do you have any time schedule in your
mind?

Mr. Dye: The usual drill is two years. That seems to be
sufficient time for the department to respond to recommenda-
tions and implement change and get enough change in place just
beyond plans so that we can come and audit something. You will
see in my annual report, in about chapter 25, that each year we
go back and scoop up all the audits for two years previous.

® 1615

In this particular situation, with the new Chief Electoral
Officer, we will just take a look at it and see whether we are
being fair. If he comes along with a whole new program, or if
Parliament gives him a lot of new legislation to implement, it
is probably unfair for us to pounce on him just when they are
responding to a lot of new legislation. The answer is probably two
years, but I would like our office to use judgment on that point.
It may be three. It will not be any earlier than two years.

The Chairman: Sir, have you given your testimony yet? Have
you prepared a brief for the new election commission, looking
at a new Elections Act? Obviously your recommendations
should have some effect on it and reinforce, shall we say, the
Chief Electoral Officer’s viewpoints of the past, which have not
been implemented and hopefully will be.

Mr. Dye: We have not prepared any testimony. Our audit
report stands as a public document. It will be well known to the
royal commission. Should they ask us to appear, we will be
pleased to.

The Chairman: But they have not asked you yet.

Mr. Dye: We have not been invited, to the best of my
knowledge.

The Chairman: Obviously, you should be, sir.

Mr. Dye: Well, that is up to them. I am merely a servant of
parliamentarians.

The Chairman: As a final comment, did I understand you to
say that the punting priest is no longer with you?

[Translation]

car ces nouvelles propositions ne sont pas conformes a la loi.
D’apreés la loi, vous devez vous servir ou—si vous lisez le texte en
détail—ce dernier laisse entendre dans le paragraphe qui porte
sur les serrures, qu’il doit s’agir d'une boite en acier. Le
Parlement a dit de se servir d’'urnes en acier et le directeur
désobéit au Parlement en se servant de son simple bon sens.

Des voix: Oh! Oh!

Le président: C’est une des conclusions les plus renversantes
que j'aie entendues.

Quand avez-vous l'intention de faire un suivi de vérification
aupres du directeur général des élections? Est-ce que cela
devrait avoir lieu avant la fin de 1991 ou 1992? Est-ce que vous
avez prévu un échéancier?

M. Dye: Habituellement, cette vérification se fait deux ans
aprés la vérification originale. Cela donne habituellement
suffisamment de temps au ministére pour répondre aux
recommandations, mettre en oeuvre de nouvelles politiques, et
apporter les changements nécessaires. Nous pouvons ensuite
venir effectuer le suivi de vérification. Vous constaterez dans
mon rapport annuel, je crois que c’est au chapitre 25, que chaque
année nous vérifions les vérifications des deux années précéden-
tes.

Puisque dans la situation qui nous occupe il y a un
nouveau directeur général des élections, nous nous
contenterons d’étudier la situation et de déterminer si nous
sommes vraiment justes. S’il propose tout un nouveau
programme, ou si le Parlement lui donne de nouvelles lois a
mettre en application, il serait probablement peu juste de
procéder a une vérification au moment méme ot il doit mettre
en application de nouvelles lois. Ainsi, le suivi de vérification
aurait probablement lieu deux ans plus tard, mais évidemment,
il faut faire preuve de jugement a cet égard. Le suivi aura
peut-étre lieu simplement trois ans plus tard. Mais il n’aura
certainement pas lieu avant deux ans.

Le président: Monsieur, avez-vous eu l'occasion de témoi-
gner? Avez-vous préparé un mémoire pour la nouvelle
commission sur les élections qui envisage de modifier la Loi
électorale du Canada? Il est évident que vos recommandations
seraient utiles et renforceraient 'opinion du directeur général
sortant des opinions et des propositions qui n’ont pas encore été
mises en oeuvre mais qui le seront nous I'espérons.

M. Dye: Nous n’avons pas préparé de témoignage. Notre
rapport de vérification est un document public. La Commission
royale d’enquéte est au courant de I'existence de ce document.
Si on décide de nous inviter & comparaitre, nous serons heureux
de le faire.

Le président: Mais ils ne vous ont pas encore invités.
M. Dye: A ma connaissance, pas encore.

Le président: Vous devriez évidemment étre invités.

M. Dye: Ca dépend d’eux. Je suis simplement au service des
parlementaires.

Le président: Pouvez-vous me dire en terminant si j’ai bien
compris? Vous avez dit que le prétre qui vous accompagnait jadis
n’est plus des votres?
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[Texte]

Mr. Dye: Unfortunately, we have lost the talent. Desmond
Kimmitt has become the rector of St. Bartholomew’s Anglican
Church over on MacKay Street in New Edinburgh, on a
permanent basis.

The Chairman: That is a sad loss for you, because I rather
doubt that you will be able to find someone else who can write
such miserable things in such a beautiful way so that nobody is
offended.

Mr. Dye: Parliament probably does not know that I have a
ghostwriter for some of the work in chapter 1. It was Desmond’s
pen that created some of the more interesting ways of putting
things and hopefully catching the attention of 295 clients.

The Chairman: Then it is my sad duty, sir, to thank you very
much for coming today and going over the material with us.
Hopefully, what we can do with it will be in the best interests of
the economy of the government and in the best interests of the
new Elections Act as well. Thank you very much for appearing
before us today.

This meeting is adjourned.

[Traduction)

M. Dye: Malheureusement, nous avons perdu son talent.
Desmond Kimmitt est devenu recteur de I'église anglicane de St.
Bartholomew sur la rue MacKay a8 New Edinburgh. C’est un
poste permanent.

Le président: C’est une perte fort regrettable pour votre
groupe car je doute fort que vous puissiez trouver quelqu’un
d’autre qui puisse rédiger des critiques aussi acerbes de facon
aussi éloquente. C’était si bien tourné que personne ne
s’offensait lorsqu’il écrivait quelque chose.

M. Dye: Le Parlement ne sait probablement pas que j’ai un
collaborateur anonyme qui s’est occupé d’une partie du texte du
premier chapitre. C’était la plume de Desmond qui avait créé
certaines des facons les plus intéressantes de présenter les
choses, et c'est lui qui a trouvé, j'espére, le moyen d’attirer
'attention de 295 clients.

Le président: C’est mon triste devoir, monsieur, de vous
remercier d’étre venu ce matin et d’avoir examiné les documents
avec nous. J'espere que notre rapport servira au mieux les
intéréts financiers du gouvernement et de la nouvelle Loi
électorale du Canada. Merci d’étre venu aujourd’hui.

La séance est levée.
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MINUTES OF PROCEEDINGS PROCES-VERBAL

THURSDAY, APRIL 26, 1990 LE JEUDI 26 AVRIL 1990

(38) (38)

[Text] [Traduction]

The Standing Committee on Privileges and Elections met at
10:13 o’clock a.m. this day, in Room 307, West Block, the
Chairman, Chuck Cook, presiding.

Members of the Committee present. Chuck Cook, Jean-Pierre
Hogue, and Jacques Tétreault.

Acting Member present: Don Boudria for Peter Milliken.

In attendance: From the Research Branch of the Library of
Parliament: Jamie Robertson, Research Officer. From the Private
Members’ Business Office: Thomas Hall, Procedural Clerk.

Witness: Albert Cooper, M.P, Parliamentary Secretary to the
Government House Leader.

The Committee resumed consideration of its mandate on the
Standing Orders pursuant to Standing Order 108(3)(b)-

The witness made statement and answered questions.

At 10:50 a.m., o’clock p.m., the Committee adjourned to the
call of the Chair.

Susan Baldwin

Clerk of the Commilttee

Le Comité permanent des privileges et des €lections se réunit
aujourd’hui 4 10 h 13, dans Ia salle 307 de I'édifice de I'Ouest,
sous la présidence de Chuck Cook (président).

Membres du Comité présents: Chuck Cook, Jean-Pierre Hogue,
Jacques Tétreault.

Membre suppléant présent: Don Bourdria remplace Peter
Milliken.

Aussi présents: Du Service de recherche de la Bibliothéque du
Parlement: Jamie Robertson, attachée de recherche. Du Bureau
des affaires émanant des députés: Thomas Hall, greffier a la
procédure.

Témoin: Albert Cooper, député, secrétaire parlementaire du
leader ministériel.

En application de I'alinéa 108(3)b), le Comité reprend les
travaux prévus a son mandat relatif a 'examen du Reéglement.

Le témoin fait un exposé et répond aux questions.

A 101 50, le Comité s’ajourne jusqu’a nouvelle convocation
du président.

La greffiére du Comité

Susan Baldwin
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[Text] [Translation]

EVIDENCE TEMOIGNAGES

[Recorded by Electronic Apparatus) [Enregistrement électronique)

Thursday, April 26, 1990
e 1014

The Chairman: Order, please.

We are gathered together for the purpose of hearing
testimony from the Parliamentary Secretary to the Government
House Leader, Mr. Albert Cooper, and he has a problem. It is
quite simple. As government becomes more complex because of
Order Paper questions the 45-day limit is simply not long enough.

Mr. Cooper, we have your position. We would like to hear your
testimony on your reasons for this so the committee can consider
it and then perhaps acquiesce in what you wish, or not acquiesce,
depending on the force of your argument.

e 1015

Mr. Albert Cooper, MP (Peace River): Thank you, Mr.
Chairman. It is a nice change for me to be at this end of the table
and also to see that the tradition of this committee continues to
do good work, as it always has.

I am pleased to have the opportunity to appear before
you and put on the record a few comments regarding this
issue of written questions, particularly the issue of priority
questions and the 45-day deadline I am faced with, which
does cause me problems. I think it also causes members
problems, because there is a really high level of frustration
among members when I cannot get the answer within the 45
days. The member is waiting, but in addition to that, at the
moment the member can have only four questions on the Order
Paper at one time. As a result, if I am long in answering that
question, they are stuck with the results, and they just have to
wait. It becomes an uncomfortable situation for both sides, I
think, in this particular case.

I do have some statistics that have been taken over the
last few years. They were done at random, and maybe I can
read into the record the information I have before me.
Previous Parliaments have shown by random studies that it
took on the average between 60 to 65 days to answer written
questions on the Order Paper. When this government
responded to the report of the Special Committee on Reform
of the House of Commons—that would have been the
McGrath task force—it took two dates into consideration—30
days to respond under the access to information law, and the
average of 60 to 65 days to answer written questions. It was
decided that the 45 days would be an improvement of the old
system and, at the same time, would not be in conflict with the
access to information law.

The House adopted this new procedure on February 24, 1986.
From that date to the end of the first session, which was July 24,
1986, 51 priority questions or questions requiring answers within
45 days were asked. Of these, 37 had to be responded to before
prorogation. Only one was not responded to within the
timeframe. So the average time to answer these questions was
between 40 and 45 days.

Le jeudi 26 avril 1990

Le président: Je déclare la séance ouverte.

Nous sommes ici ce matin pour entendre le témoignage du
secrétaire parlementaire du leader du gouvernement a la
Chambre des communes, M. Albert Cooper. Son probléme est
assez simple. L’administration publique devenant de plus en
plus complexe, c’est également le cas de questions inscrites au
Feuilleton et, par conséquent, le délai de 45 jours n’est plus
suffisant.

Monsieur Cooper, nous connaissons votre position. Notre
comité aimerait connaitre vos raisons pour voir si nous pouvons
étre d’accord ou non avec ce que vous proposez, selon la force
de vos arguments.

M. Albert Cooper (Peace River): Merci, monsieur le
président. C’est un changement agréable de me retrouver de ce
cHté—ci de la table et de constater que le comité fait toujours du
bon travail.

Je suis heureux d’avoir l'occasion de comparaitre devant
votre comité et de faire quelques observations au sujet des
questions inscrites au Feuilleton, notamment, au sujet des
questions pnontalres et du délai de 45 jours que je dois
respecter et qui me pose des problcmes Je pense que ce délai
pose également des problémes aux députés, car ces derniers
ont bien souvent un sentiment de frustation lorsque je ne
peux leur fournir une réponsc dans les 45 jours. Le député
attend, mais en outre, a I'heure actuelle, il ne peut avoir que
quatre qucstlons a la fois inscrites au feuilleton. Par conséquent,
si je tarde a répondre & une question, le député doit en subir les
consequences et tout simplement attendre. Je pense que la
situation n’est agréable pour personne dans un tel cas.

Jai ici quelques statistiques que j'ai recueillies au hasard
au cours des quelques derniéres années. Si vous me le
permettez, aux fins du compte rendu j’aimerais vous lire les
données que jai ici devant moi. Des €tudes faites au hasard
révelent qu'au cours de leglslatures precedentes, il fallait en
moyenne de 60 a 65 jours pour répondre aux questions
inscrites au Feuilleton. Lorsque le gouvernement actuel a
répondu au rapport du comité spécial sur la réforme de la
Chambre des communes—le groupe de travail McGrath—il a
tenu compte de deux délais: un délai de 30 jours pour répondre
aux termes de la loi sur 'acces a I'information, et un délai d’'une
moyenne de 60 & 65 jours pour répondre aux questions écrites.
Il a été décidé qu'un délai de 45 jours serait une amélioration par
rapport a I'ancien systéme sans entrer en conflit avec la loi sur
I'acces a I'information.

La Chambre adoptait cette nouvelle procédure le 24 février
1986. De cette date jusqu’a la fin de la premiére session,
¢’st-a-dire jusqu’au 24 juillet 1986, 51 questions prioritaires ou
questions exigeant une réponse dans les 45 jours ont été posées.
Le gouvernement devait rcpondre a 37 de ces questions avant la
prorogation. Le délai n'a été respecté que dans un seul cas.
Dong, le délai moyen pour répondre a ces questions était de 40
a 45 jours.
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[Texte]

In the second session of the Thirty-Third Parliament, from
September 1986 to December 1987, 239 written questions were
asked, of which 157 were priority questions. When the random
study was taken, 139 of the 157 had to be answered. The average
time to answer the 139 priority questions was between 50 and 55
days. Of the 139 priority questions, 101 were responded to within
the 45-day deadline.

In this session, as of today, and this was written for me at
the end of March, 225 questions have been answered in the
following timeframe. Under 45 days, there was a total of 146,
which statistically works out to 64.8% of those questions
asked. From 45 to 65 days, a further 45 questions were responded
to, which is 20% of those questions. From 66 to 100 days, the
number dropped down significantly to 23 or about 10% of all
questions asked, and over 100 days, there were 11, which worked
out to 6% approximately. So what you end up with then is an
average time to answer all questions of between 50 and 55 days.

It is important to note something that I guess twists
these statistics a little bit. If a response comes due during a
recess or an adjournment, if it is tabled at the time
Parliament reconvenes, it is then classified as having been
answered within the 45-day timeframe. In other words, I
guess you could say I receive a bonus by having a question
due to be answered, say, at the beginning of an Easter recess.
We answer it the first day back. Then that question is
classified as having been answered on time when in fact, if the
House had been sitting, the odds are that it would have been 5,
6 or maybe even 10 days late, but statistically it would still show
up as being answered on time.

e 1020

Mr. Chairman, I think the basic problem we are having
really can be focused on almost one area. A member will ask
a question, for example, on whether the government has
entered into a contract with Joe Smith. It sounds like a fairly
straightforward question. The problem is that the word
“government” means any department of the government, any
board related to the government, any agency that is tied to the
government or any Crown corporation. The bottom line is that
we end up with well over 200 boards, agencies, departments, and
Crown corporations we have to go after for this particular piece
of information.

I may get back 223 answers within three to four mks
but one or two other departments or boards or agencies do
not get the information back, so the whole process is held up.
Once it is brought to my attention and once we have the
answers, it has to go back to translation. It often has to go to
Justice to be checked for legal implications in terms of private
information, commercial information and all of those concerns
that really frustrate the process.

I think what we are seeing happen is that a member asks
a question, puts it in a general framework, primarily because
he or she does not know specifically where to take that
information. More often than being simply on a fishing

[Traduction)

Au cours de la deuxiéme session de la 33° législature, de
septemtre 1986 a décembre 1987, 239 questions écrites ont été
posées, donc 157 étaient prioritaires. Au moment de I'étude faite
au hasard, il fallait répondre a 139 de ces 157 questions. Le délai
moyen pour répondre aux 139 questions prioritaires était de S0
a 55 jours. Des 139 questions prioritaires, 101 ont obtenu une
réponse dans le délai de 45 jours.

Au cours de la présente session, a ce jour, c’est-a-dire au
moment ol on a préparé ce document pour moi a la fin de
mars, on aBvait répondu a 225 questions dans les délais
suivants: moins de 45 jours, 146 questions, c’est-a-dire 64,8
p- 100 des questions posées. De 45 a 64 jours, 45 autres questions,
c’est-a-dire 20 p. 100 de ces questions. De 66 a 100 jours, le
nombre chute considérablement a 23 ou environ 10 p. 100 de
toutes les questions posées, et plus de 100 jours, 11 questions,
c’est-a-dire environ 6 p. 100. Le délai moyen pour répondre &
toutes les questions varie donc entre 50 et 55 jours.

Il est important de souligner quelque chose qui déforme
légérement ces statistiques. Si le délai tombe pendant un
congé ou un ajournement et que la réponse est déposée a la
rentrée parlementaire, on considére alors que la réponse a
été fournie dans le délai de 45 jours. En d’autres termes, on
peut dire que nous avons en quelque sorte une période de
grace si le délai arrive a échéance, disons, au début du congé
de Paques. Nous répondons a la question le premier jour de
la rentrée parlementaire. On considere alors que nous y avons
répondu dans les délais alors qu’en fait, si la Chambre avait
siégé, il est fort probable que nous y aurions répondu avec 5, 6
ou méme 10 jours de retard. Mais les statistiques indiquent
quand méme que nous y avons répondu dans les délais.

Monsieur le président, le probléme se résume
essentiellement a ceci: un député pose une question, par
exemple, pour savoir si le gouverrnement a passé un contrat
avec Joe Smith. Cela peut paraitre trés simple comme
question. Le probléme, c’est que le mot «gouvernement,» inclut
tous les ministéres du gouvernement, toutes les commissions et
tous les organismes liés au gouvernement ou toutes les sociétés
de la Couronne. Nous devons donc consulter plus de 200
commissions, organismes, ministéres et sociétés de la Couronne
avant de pouvoir répondre a la question.

Il se peut que je regoive 223 réponses en deux ou trois
semaines, mais qu'un ou deux autres ministéres, offices ou
organismes ne me fournissent pas I'information, pour que
tout le processus soit retardé. Une fois que la question a été
portée a mon intention et que nous avons les réponses, le tout
doit aller a la traduction. Souvent, la réponse doit également
aller au ministere de la Justice qui en vérifie les conséquences
juridiques pour ce qui est des renseignements privés, des
renseignements commerciaux et de toutes ces questions qui
ralentissent vraiment le processus.

Ce qui arrive en fait, c'est qu'un député pose une
question d’ordre plutdt général, surtout parce qu’il ne sait
pas précisément ot aller chercher ces renseignements. Plus
souvent qu’autrement, il pense peut-étre que ses questions
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expedition, if they think it might be the Department of Finance
they want to ask the question of but they are not sure, because
it may well have been the Department of Energy, the safest way
to handle it is to put in “government”. This means that to be
technically correct and to make sure we have the right
information, we have to go through all the boards and agencies.

I would like to suggest something to the committee. I
believe the request I had put to you in my letter was for a
90-day timeframe to answer questions. In talking with some
of the committee members—MTr. Milliken, for example, and I
think the chairman—it was recommended that we not look so
much at the 90 days as something more along 60 days, which
would be consistent with the statistics I have given to you. It
would mean we would be much more within the statistical
average, at any rate.

The second recommendation I would like the committee
to consider is one that actually comes from the chief Whip
and now House Leader of the Liberal Party, Mr. Gauthier.
He says we ought to have a vehicle we could use more easily.
This would be to transfer a written question, if it is one of those
that is going to take a tremendous amount of detail to answer and
a lot of work a lot of expense to the taxpayer, with a lot of cost,
time and energy and so on, the ones that are going to end
up. . .and you have seen me deliver them in the House with 500
or 1,000 pages and some of them as high as 1,400. Those are very
costly.

In a case like that, once we see we are into this kind of
an issue, we would probably be just as well off, both from the
government perspective as well as from the perspective of the
private member who is asking the question, if we were to
simply transfer it to the late show, for example. Mr. Bourdria has
had some experience with a number of these questions. I do not
know what his comments would be but, as I said, Mr. Gauthier
was really pushing this idea.

I would say that Mr. Boudria would rise in the House and say
that this question is too detailed or this question is difficult to
answer within the timeframe. It would then be transferred to the
late show. Mr. Boudria would have seven minutes to make his
point and the government would have three minutes to respond.
Of course it could be revisited if it was not a satisfactory solution.

I put forward those two options or potential solutions to the
problem. I think they give a balance of protecting both the
members’ concerns and allowing us as a government to respond
to what I think in virtually all cases are very legitimate questions.
It allows us some flexibility in trying to achieve those answers in
a reasonable time.

The Chairman: You have answered my first question, Mr.
Cooper, which was whether 60 days would be satisfactory. The
second question I would ask you is about the late show. Would
the government decide that it be transferred to the late show, or
would it require the concurrence of the member?

[Translation)

devraient s’adresser au ministere des Finances mais il n’en est
pas bien certain, elles pourraient peut-étre aussi s'adresser au
ministére de I'Energie, alors le moyen le plus siir consiste a
parler du «gouvernement». Cela signifie que pour que la
réponse soit techniquement juste et pour étre certain d’avoir les
bons renseignements, nous devons consulter tous les bureaux et
tous les organismes.

Jaimerais proposer quelque chose au comité. Dans ma
lettre, je vous proposais un délai de 90 jours pour répondre
aux questions. Certains membres du comité avec qui j’en ai
parlé—M. Milliken, par exemple, et le président—
recommandent que nous envisageons un délai de 60 jours plutot
que de 90 jours, ce qui correspondrait aux statistiques que je vous
ai données. Ce délai correspondrait bien davantage a la
moyenne selon les statistiques.

La deuxiéme recommandation que j'aimerais que le
comité étudie a été en fait proposée par le whip en chef et
celui qui est maintenant le leader a la Chambre du Parti
libéral, M. Gauthier. Il propose que 'on puisse renvoyer une
question écrite au débat d’ajournement, s’il s’agit d’'une question
qui demande une réponse extrémement détaillée, ce qui
représente beaucoup de travail & un cofit élevé pour le
contribuable, une réponse qui demande du temps et de I'énergie.
C’est le genre de questions pour lesquelles il faut une réponse de
500, 1,000 et méme 1,400 pages, comme j’en ai déja donnée a la
Chambre. Ces questions sont trés cofiteuses.

Dans un tel cas, il serait sans doute préférable pour le
gouvernement comme pour le député qui pose la question, de
tout simplement renvoyer la question au débat
d’ajournement, par exemple. M. Bourdria a une certaine
expérience de ces questions. Je ne sais pas ce qu’il en pense, mais
comme je I'ai dit, M. Gauthier recommandait vivement cette
proposition.

M. Boudria pourrait se lever en Chambre et dire que cette
question est trop détailée ou qu’il est trop difficile d’y répondre
dans les délais. La question serait alors renvoyée au débat
d’ajournement. M. Boudria aurait sept minutes pour présenter
son point de vue et le gouvernement aurait trois minutes pour
répondre. Cette solution pourrait bien siir étre examinée a
nouveau si elle n’était pas satisfaisante.

Je vous propose donc ces deux options ou ces deux solutions
éventuelles au probléme. J'estime qu’elles tiennent compte des
préoccupations des députés tout en permettant au gouverne-
ment de répondre a des questions que jestime étre tout a fait
légitimes dans la plupart des cas. Cela nous donne une certaine
souplesse pour que nous tentions d’y répondre dans un délai
raisonnable.

Le président: Monsieur Cooper, vous avez répondu a ma
premiére question, c’est-a-dire si un délai de 60 jours serait
satisfaisant. La deuxiéme question que j'aimerais vous poser
concerne le débat d’ajournement. La décision de renvoyer la
question au débat d’ajournement serait-elle prise par le
gouvernement, ou faudrait-il 'accord du député?
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Mr. Cooper: Why I say the government is that at the moment
I am technically the only person who makes a decision on these
questions. To be frank, it is really a bit of a hocus pocus process.
In reality, I am simply sitting there waiting for the collection of
information, having the minister approve it if it comes through
his or her department or, on occasion, if the minister is away, I
end up approving them.

So when I say the government, essentially I guess it would
mean me and the staff that I deal with in the first case, having
them look at it, so we could know fairly quickly what kind of detail
or what kind of problems we face in answering that specific
question.

The Chairman: Mr. Cooper, you know this is a non-
partisan committee, so do not misinterpret my question. In
effect, then, whoever is occupying your chair would make the
decision that you do not want to be bothered answering a
1,400-page question so you will just shift it over to the late show.
Then I get back to my original question: would you make that
decision unilaterally without the consent of the member, who
may not want it on the late show beqause he wants all the
information? Do you see what I am getting at here?

Mr. Cooper: Yes.
The Chairman: How do you respond, sir?

Mr. Cooper: I guess in the only way I can respond. We
could do it by consent. For example, you ask a ques.,tlon.and I
get up and say this question is far t00 detailed. It is going t0
take a lot more time than we have to answer the quespon
within the rules. I would ask one of two things. Either that it be
transferred to the late show or, if the member does not agree to
that, that the member agree to an extension of time to allow the
answer. Maybe you could have something of that nature.

But one of the balances to whatever decision I may
make, or the people who work with that, is that the member
who asked the question has seven minutes in which to blister
me for what he or she may consider a stup;d decision. If they
say, for example, you are really only doing this because you want
to hide the information, I am publicly accountable for that
decision in the House. I think in our system thpt is norr_nally
considered a pretty good balance of democratic rights. I think it
would work in this case.

Mr. Boudria (Glengarry—PrescottT-Russell): Mr. Chair-
man, I am listening to this and I am liking some of the things I
hear, but not all of them. Let me throw maybe a few more
suggestions as input.

I kind of like something that came out of the chairman’s
remarks, that perhaps we could consider something like this.
Extend the 45 days. In other words, after 45 days the

Parliamentary Secretary to the Government House Leader

[Traduction)

M. Cooper: La raison pour laquelle je parle du gouverne-
ment, c’est qu’a I'heure actuelle techniquement parlant, je suis
la seule personne qui prend une décision au sujet de ces
questions. Pour étre franc avec vous, il s’agit d’'un processus
quelque peu trompeur. En réalité, je suis simplement 1a a
attendre que l'on recueille les renseignements, que le ministre
les approuve et, a 'occasion, si le ministre est absent, c’est moi
qui les approuve.

Donc, lorsque je dis le gouvernement, je veux parler de
moi-méme et du personnel avec lequel je traite dans le premier
cas, qui examine la question afin que nous puissions savoir assez
rapidement si telle question exige une réponse détaillée ou si
'on prévoit des problemes.

Le président: Monsieur Cooper, comme vous le savez
notre comité ne fait pas de sectarisme politique, alors il ne
faudrait pas mal interpréter ma question. Mais de fait, celui
qui occupe votre poste pourrait décider qu’il ne veut pas se
donner la peine de préparer une réponse de 1,400 pages, de sorte
qu’il lui suffit de renvoyer la question au débat d’ajournement.
Je reviens donc a ma question initiale: prendriez-vous cette
décision de fagon unilatérale, sans le consentement du député,
qui ne veut peut-étre pas renvoyer sa question au débat
d’ajournement car il veut obtenir tous les renseignements?
Voyez-vous ol je veux en venir?

M. Cooper: Oui.
Le président: Quelle est votre réponse, monsieur?

M. Cooper: Ma réponse est la seule que je peux vous
donner. Nous le ferions avec le consentement du député. Par
exemple, vous posez une question, je me leéve et je réponds
que cette question est beaucoup trop détaillée, qu’il faudra
beaucoup plus de temps que le délai prévu par le Réglement
pour y répondre. Je demanderais que la question soit renvoyée
au débat d’ajournement, ou, si le député n’est pas d’accord, qu'’il
accepte une prolongation du délai pour répondre a la question.
On pourrait peut-étre envisager quelque chose du genre.

Mais peu importe la décision que je prends, ou que les
gens avec qui je travaille prennent, le député qui a posé la
question a sept minutes pour attaquer ce qu’il considére
comme une décision stupide de ma part. S’il dit par exemple
que je le fais tout simplement pour cacher I'information, je suis
publiquement responsable de cette décision a la Chambre. Je
pense que dans notre systéme parlementaire les droits démocra-
tiques sont habituellement bien respectés. Je pense que cela
pourrait fonctionner dans ce cas-ci.

M. Boudria (Glengarry—Prescott—Russell): Monsieur le
président, j’écoute tout cela et j'aime bien certaines choses que
jentends, mais pas toutes. Permettez-moi de faire quelques
petites suggestions.

JFaime bien I'idée qui est ressortiec des observations du
président, une prolongation du délai de 45 jours. Je pense
que nous devrions peut-étre envisager cette solution. En
d’autres termes, apres 45 jours le Secrétaire parlementaire du
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could rise and say, Mr. Speaker, I invoke such and such a
provision. Then the member could say he or she agrees to the
20-day extension, or whatever it is; alternatively, he or she could
opt to refer it to the adjournment debate. It would be one or the
other, agree to give the government an extra 20 days or what ever
it is, or to bring it that way.

There is another thing, too, that has to be brought into
this equation. It is the following. Put yourself for a minute in
the seat of the member who regularly asks questions. You
are limited to four. So get the following scenario. If the
government allows your four questions to go to 45 days and just
does not answer them, for whatever reason, once you have
reached four questions that are not answered, as long as they are
on the Order Paper you cannot put new questions on, even if the
45 days expire.

So most of the year I am unable to put questions on the
Order Paper because previous questions are still there. I am
not the only one, of course. I do not mean this in a partisan
way. Perhaps another caveat has to be thrown in and it is the
following one. That criteria of four questions, where you cannot
have any more than four questions, after 45 days has elapsed and
the government is on that extension period that we just talked
about, the rule of four questions no longer applies because that
is an extended one.

In other words, if the government is granted an extra 20
days to answer it, it does not count as one of your four. You
can put another one in. If you add those two elements—one
that I think the chairman brought up and that the
parliamentary secretary agree to—1I like that, but provided that
if the government is given a several-day period of grace, that
grace period should not stop a member from putting a new
question on the Order Paper. Is this complicated, or do you
understand what I am saying?

e 1030

The Chairman: It is very straightforward. The member still
has the option of transferring this thing to the late show, and all
of a sudden it disappears and you have the opportunity to put
another question on the Order Paper.

Mr. Boudria: That is right.
The Chairman: It is one or the other.

Mr. Boudria: Alternatively, if the government is on exten-
sion—that extended period—it would not count as one of your
four questions. That particular one is removed from. . . So if we
could add the chairman’s suggestion, which I think the
government—

Mr. Cooper: I do not see a problem with that. It is not a major
problem to us. One of the conerns Mr. Boudria has is that there
could be an abuse simply because he is asking four embarrassing
questions, and that therefore we will tie up those four so he
cannot ask another one.

Mr. Boudria: That is right.

[Translation]

leader du gouvernement a la Chambre pourrait se lever et dire,
monsieur le Président, j'invoque telle et telle disposition. Le
député pourrait ensuite dire qu’il accepte par exemple la
prolongation de 20 jours; ou il pourrait opter pour le renvoi de
la question au débat d’ajournement. Ce serait I'un ou I'autre,
c’est-a-dire accorder au gouvernement une prolongation de 20
jours ou autres, selon le cas, ou renvoyer la question au débat
d’ajournement.

Mais il faut tenir compte également de I'élément
suivant: mettez-vous un instant a la place du député qui pose
réguliérement des questions. Il est limité a quatre questions.
Dong, si le gouvernement laisse s’écouler le délai de 45 jours
et ne répond tout simplement pas aux quatre questions, pour
quelque raison que ce soit, tant que ces questions sont inscrites
au Feuilleton, il ne peut en poser de nouvelles, méme si le délai
de 45 jours vient a échéance.

Donc, pour la majeure partie de I'année, je ne peux faire
inscrire de questions au Feuilleton car mes questions
précédentes y sont toujours inscrites. Je ne suis pas le seul,
bien siir. Je ne dis pas cela de facon partisane. Il y aurait
peut-étre lieu d’ajouter une autre condition. En effet, le critére
selon lequel on ne peut avoir plus de quatre questions inscrites
1 la fois au Feuilleton, ne devrait plus s’appliquer lorsque le délai
de 45 jours s’est écoulé et que le gouvernement jouit de la
période de grice dont nous venons de parler.

En d’autres termes, si le gouvernement obtient un délai
additionnel de 20 jours pour répondre a une question, cette
derniére ne devrait pas compter comme l'une des quatre
questions. Un député pourrait donc en faire inscrire une
autre au Feuilleton. Si on ajoute ces deux €léments—un qui a été
proposé par le président et avec lequel le secrétaire parlementai-
re était d’accord—cela me convient, mais a condition que si le
gouvernement obtient une période de grace de plusieurs jours,
cela ne devrait pas empécher un député de faire inscrire une
nouvelle question au Feuilleton. Est-ce compliqué, ou
comprenez-vous ce que je veux dire?

Le président: C’est tout ce qu’il y a de plus simple. Le député
a quand méme la possibilité de renvoyer sa question au débat
d’ajournement, sa question disparait et il a la possibilité d’en
faire inscrire une autre au Feuilleton.

M. Boudria: C’est exact.
Le président: C’est 'un ou 'autre.

M. Boudria: Si le gouvernement prolonge le délai, la question
nest plus considérée comme l'une des quatre questions
auxquelles un député a droit. Elle est donc éliminée de. . . Sil'on
ajoute la suggestion du président, que le gouvernement. . .

M. Cooper: Je ne vois pas de probléme. Cela ne nous pose pas
de probléme majeur. M. Boudria craint que s’il pose quatre
questions embarrassantes, le gouvernement abuse de sa position
pour ne pas répondre a ces quatre questions afin qu’il ne puisse
€n poser une autre.

M. Boudria: C’est exact.
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Mr. Cooper: From where I sit, that very rarely, if ever,
happens. That is not part of the design. There is no doubt some
of the questions he asks are embarrassing. They are difficult
questions to answer. As a result of that we have a lot of work to
do. To my way of thinking and based on any experience I have,
there is no intention to hold him to four questions.

If I heard of that I would object quite violently_, because I think
it would be unfair. I do not have that sense of it there. I would
have no problem with that going on.

Mr. Boudria: Then we have a deal.

M. Jean-Pierre Hogue (député d’Outremont):“Monsieur
Cooper, quand ce phénoméne est-il apparu? Deuxiemement,
pouvez-vous, sous I'aspect gestion, affirmer que tout le monde
fait son possible pour répondre aux demandes?

Mr. Cooper: By that do you mean the people who should be
answering the questions?

Mr. Hogue: They are not kidding themselves, but they are
doing what they are supposed to be doing.

Mr. Cooper: I noticed it right off the bat when I became
parliamentary secretary about a year ago. I started to experience
the problems right away.

In terms of people responding, I have run into a couple
of cases where I was not happy. I felt there was gome'foqt-
dragging going on. We raised Cain and it worked in bringing
it about. But on balance, I think there really is an effort to
answer these questions. I do not see deliberate attempts to drag
their heels and slow the process down. In most cases it is dealt
with very quickly. It is quite expensive, because very often you will
have one or two people in the department who are working full
time on some of these answers. I think they are treated seriously.

M. Hogue: Vous ne nous avez pas dit si ce phénomene est
nouveau ou s'il existe depuis un certain temps. A
i i he rules
Mr. Cooper: It is new in the sense that the changestot
came in 1p986. Before 1986 we did not have those same
restrictions.
M. Hogue: Il me semblerait inadéquat, sous l'angle du

management, de faire porter la responsqbi}ité et I'odieux
d’entendre pendant sept minutes des récriminations ou des
plaintes. Il me semble que les entreprises né fonctionneraient pas

comme cela.
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Il me semble que, lorsque le membre se sent'attaqyc; da?s. ses
droits, I'entreprise fonctionne comme une famille, ou la p ax(rjlte
remonte a la personne en autorité; les enfants peuvent demlan CIt'
toutes sortes de choses et penser qué leurs droits personnels son
violés.

Il me semble qu’au lieu de laisser oeila sur les e:pau_les de Mt
Cooper, il serait bon de renvoyer cela @ un comite qui pourrai
étre rattaché au Président de la ’Chambrc’ et comp;endg:
notamment les whips ou leurs délégués. Cela dépersonnaliserai
le débat et la réponse.

[Traduction]

M. Cooper: Si cela se produit, ce n’est que dans des cas trés
rares. Ce n’est pas prévu. Il ne fait aucun doute que certaines des
questions qu’il pose sont embarrassantes. Ce sont des questions
auxquelles il est difficile de répondre. Par conséquent, cela
demande beaucoup de travail. Personnellement, et d’aprés mon
expérience, nous n’avons nullement Iintention de le limiter &
quatre questions.

En fait, je m’opposerais assez violemment a une telle chose,
car cela serait 2 mon avis tout a fait injuste. Ce n’est pas
I'impression que j’ai ici. Je ne vois absolument aucun probléme
avec ce qu’il propose.

M. Boudria: Alors, marché conclu.

Mr. Jean-Pierre Hogue (Outremont): Mr. Cooper, when did
this phenomenon first appear? From a management perspecti-
ve, can you say that everybody is doing his utmost to answer the
questions?

M. Cooper: Vous voulez parler des gens qui devraient
répondre aux questions?

M. Hogue: Ils ne se racontent pas de blague mais ils font ce
qu’ils sont supposés faire.

M. Cooper: Je I'ai remarqué tout de suite dés que je suis
devenu secrétaire parlementaire il y a environ un an. Jai
rencontré ces problémes tout de suite.

Pour ce qui est des gens qui répondent, il m’est arrivé
quelques reprises de me pas étre satisfait. Je trouvais qu'on
trainait trop les pieds. Nous avons fait un peu de bruit, et
cela a réglé le probléme. Mais en général, je pense qu’on fait
vraiment un effort pour répondre a ces questions. Je ne crois pas
que T'on tente délibérément de ralentir le processsus. Dans la
plupart des cas, on répond assez rapidement. Cela cofite assez
cher, car trés souvent nous avons une ou deux personnes au
ministére qui se consacrent a plein temps a répondre A certaines
de ces questions. Je crois qu’elles sont examinées sérieusement.

Mr. Hogue: You did not say whether this was a new
phenomenon or not.

M. Cooper: Le phénomene est nouveau en ce sens que le
réglement a été changé en 1986. Avant 1986, nous n’avions pas
les mémes restrictions.

Mr. Hogue: From a management point of view, it seems to me
that it would be inadequate and unbearable to have to hear
recriminations or complaints for 7 minutes. It seems to me that
businesses would not operate in such a manner.

It seems to me that when a Member feels that his or her rights
have been violated, the whole system operates like a family,
where the complaint goes back all the way to the person in
authority; children may ask for all kinds of things and feel that
their individual rights have been violated.

In my view, instead of holding Mr. Cooper responsible, it
would be useful to refer the matter to a Committee that could
report to the Speaker of the House and on which would sit
among others whips or their delegates. The debate and the
response would then be less personal.
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M. Boudria: La j’ai une difficulté.

M. Hogue: Il me semble qu’il faut dépersonnaliser cela,
monsieur Boudria. Parce que ¢a peut s’appliquer a nous aussi.
L’opposition pose des questions, mais peut-étre voudrai-je, moi
aussi, en poser.

On entre among brothers dans une démarche de confronta-
tion. Si on dépersonnalise la réponse, elle n appartient plus a
quelqu’un en particulier. La procedure appartient 8 M. Cooper,
mais la réponse appartient au pcre de la famille, c’est-a-dire au
Président de la Chambre. C’est a lui que revient la responsabilité
finalement. Elle ne revient pas au premier ministre.

Cest une question qui est posée non pas a un
gouvernement, mais 4 une organisation gouvernementale, a
moins que ces questions ne soient partisanes. C'était le sens
de ma premiere question. Si les questions étaient partisanes,
elles pourraient étre percues comme vicieuses. Si tel est le sens,
je ne peux pas voir comment M. Cooper peut prendre I'odieux
de cette situation. C’est au Président de la Chambre de dire qu’on
ne peut pas répondre a cette question pendant telle période de
temps et qu’elle sera donc remise au late show.

Mr. Cooper: Technically, the Clerk right now can examine a
question and recommend changes to it. I do not see that as a
major problem. The questions are largely partisan in nature.
That is the nature of the question and I do not have a problem
with that either.

I think the system we have now in terms of the
adjournment debate seems to be working quite well. I have
not heard a lot of complaints about it. In fact, I have not
heard any complaints. I think the members are happy to get
in there and for seven minutes attack, attack, attack, and the
government takes its three minutes and tries to do its best to
defend, defend, defend. But I think it is working and I think what
we are after here is just a balance in the system that I think has
gotten out of whack a little bit since the reforms of the McGrath
task force.

Mr. Boudria: First of all, I do not quite agree with Dr. Hogue.
A couple of things he is saying is not really the way we should look
at it.

First, the government always has to be accountable for the
government, whoever is in power. You cannot really expect the
Speaker to act as a form of police—

Mr. Hogue: I know that. I know that.
Mr. Boudria: —and that is the difficulty with that proposition.

Of course, the Clerk does have the responsibility to
ensure that questions are properly formulated. They will
often change the text of it and usually they will phone the
member and say they have changed the question around. It is
going to say such and such instead, how about it? There is usually
agreement with that. I guess one or two members get their backs
up, but of course the reason they get their backs up is probably
the same reason the question is wrong to start with. So I cannot
get worked up too much over that.

The point is, in terms of form and so on, there is assistance
from the office of the Speaker through the clerks and so on, but
in terms of accountability, that I think has to be left with the
government.

[Translation]

Mr. Boudria: I have a problem here.

Mr. Hogue: The whole matter should be less personal, Mr.
Boudria, because it could apply to us as well. The opposition is
asking questions, but I too might want to ask some.

We are stating «entres fréres» a confrontational process. If
the response is less personal, it does not come from one person
in particular. Mr. Cooper is responsible for the process, but the
answer comes from the head of the family, that is the Speaker
of the House. The final responsibility falls upon him and not
upon the Prime Minister.

It is a question that is being asked not from a
government but from a government agency, unless it is a
partisan question. That was the purpose of my first question.
If questions were partisan, they could be perceived as being
nasty. If that is the case, I fail to see how Mr. Cooper can accept
such an obnoxious situation. It is incumbent upon the Speaker
of the House to say that that question cannot be answered in
such a short period and that it will be put again during the late
show.

M. Cooper: Du point technique, le greffier peut dés a présent
examiner une question et y recommander certains changements.
Cela ne pose pas de probléme majeur, selon moi. Les questions
sont bien souvent suggestives. C’est la nature de la question et
cela ne me dérange pas non plus.

La procédure en vigueur pour le débat d’ajournement
semble donner de bons résultats. Je n’ai guere entendu de
plaintes a ce sujet. En fait, je n’en ai jamais entendu. Les
députés sont heureux de pouvoir intervenir et porter des
attaques pendant sept minutes, aprcs quoi le gouvernement a
trois minutes pour présenter au mieux sa défense. Je pense que
ce systéme donne de bons résultats et que la discussion actuelle
vise simplement a rétablir un juste équilibre qui,  mon sens, a
quelque peu disparu depuis les reformes du groupe de travail
McGrath.

M. Boudria: Tout d’abord, je ne suis pas entiérement
d’accord avec M. Hogue. Ce n’est pas la bonne fagon, @ mon avis,
d’aborder la question.

Tout d’abord, le gouvernement doit toujours rendre compte
de ses actes, quel que soit le parti au pouvoir. On ne peut
s’attendre a ce que le président essaie de controler. . .

M. Hogue: Bien siir, je le sais bien.

M. Broudria: ...et cest le probléme que pose cette
proposition.

Bien entendu, le greffier est tenu, pour sa part, de veiller
a ce que que les questions soient bien formulées. Il arrive
souvent qu’il modifie le libellé et en général il téléphone au
député pour l'en avertir. Il lui propose une autre facon de
formuler sa questlon et, en général, les deux partlcss ‘entendent.
Je suppose qu’a I'occasion, un député proteste, mais s'il le fait,
c’est sans doute justement parce que la question est mal
formulée au départ. Il n’y a donc pas lieu de s’énerver a ce sujet.

Le fait est que, du point de vue de la forme et ainsi de suite,
on peut obtenir 'aide du bureau du président par I'entremise des
greffiers, mais pour ce qui est de I'imputabilité, elle revient
entiérement au gouvernement.
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What I see developing here is an exchange of positions. We
may be arriving at some sort of consensus whereby members
would agree to say a 20-day extension if the Parliamentary
Secretary to the Government House Leader asks for it. If the
member refuses to give a 20-day extension, it is automatically a
late show item. That is fine.

In either case, once the 45 days have expired, whether
the government gets its extension or it is transferred to the
late show, it is deemed to be removed from the criteria of the
four. Maybe most members will not even want to put another
question on. The point is that it prevents any
government—not just this one—from ever abusing the ].“]e§’
in the unlikely event they would want to do so, and saying it
does not answer questions from Joe Schmo because his
questions are always mean and nasty, but leaving them
unanswered on the Order Paper so he cannot ask any more once
he has put four on there. I think there is a marriage of those
positions that I see developing.

I do not know whether 20 days is what Albert has in mind.
Maybe it is something a little longer, but 45 and 20 are 65. I think
you said you needed 50-something on average.

Mr. Cooper: I think 20 would be adequate. The only comment
I would have on what you have said is that I would like to have
the option as well of recommending the transfer to the late show.
The member would have to agree with it perhaps. I do not have
a major problem with that but I do not want my only option to
be the 20 days. There are some questions that I think would be

better answered by way of a debate.

Mr. Boudria: Who would have the ultimate decision, Mr.
Chairman, if I might ask?

The Chairman: This is where we get to the interesting
part. There is an interesting dichotomy here. I believe the
member should be able to say no to the late show. If he says
he wants it in written form, this enables Mr. Cooper or any
number of successors to report to the House that this question
will be delayed in being answered, saylpg it is going t0 cost
$18,426 to answer this particular member’s question because he
has refused to debate the matter on the late show. Both sides
have some clout in terms of how the things is gong to be handled

Mr. Boudria: I agree with that.

The Chairman: It would be the member who would
make the decision. Obviously you g0 to the merpber _an_d
threaten to hit him over the head, as it were, by saying this 1;
going to cost $18,000 to answer and if he wants you to stiqu
up in the House and say this, then he would be u;'geti1 to c?p ?1111;
it to the voters as to why he is demanding all of this len, o}:
point, probably he can do it in seven minutes in the late Show.
If he does not want to do the late show, then th1§ is }he way it
happens. You find nothing offensive in terms of doing it this way.

[Traduction]

1l s’agit en l'occurence d’'un échange de positions. Nous
pourrons en arriver a une entente générale selon laquelle les
députés accepteront une prolongation de 20 jours si le secrétaire
parlementaire du leader du gouvernement a la Chambre en fait
la demande. Si le député refuse cette prolongation de 20 jours,
sa question est automatiquement reportée au débat d’ajourne-
ment. Cest trés bien.

Dans les deux cas, une fois la période de 45 jours
écoulée, que le gouvernement obtienne sa prolongation ou
que la question soit reportée a I'heure des couche-tard, elle
est censée ne plus étre visée par le critere de quatre. La
plupart des députés ne souhaitent peut-étre méme pas faire
inscrire une autre question. En réalité, cela empéche le
gouvernement—quel qu’il soit—de profiter du réglement, au
cas peu probable ou ils veulent le faire, en disant qu’ils
refusent de répondre aux questions de M. Untel parce que
celles—ci sont toujours mesquines et vicieuses, mais qu’il les
laisse inscrites au Feuilleton, pour 'empécher d’en poser d’autres
une fois que le député a déja fait inscrire quatre questions. A
mon avis, on est en train de concilier ces deux positions.

Je ne sais pas si Albert souhaite une prolongation de 20 jours.
C’est peut-€tre plus, mais 45 plus 20, cela fait 65. Je pense vous
avoir entendu dire que vous aviez besoin d’'une cinquantaine de
jours en moyenne.

M. Cooper: A mon avis, 20 jours suffiraient. Pour répondre a
VOS propos, je dirais simplement que j’aimerais également avoir
la possibilité de recommander que ma question puisse étre
reportée a 'heure des couche-tard. Il faudrait peut-étre obtenir
I'accord du député sur ce point. Cela ne pose pas de probleme
majeur, mais je ne voudrais pas que la prolongation de 20 jours
soit la seule option possible. Il y a des questions dont la réponse,
selon moi, justifie un débat.

M. Boudria: A qui reviendra la décision finale, monsieur le
président?

Le président: Cest la que les choses deviennent
intéressantes et que les positions divergent. D’aprés moi, le
député devrait étre en mesure de refuser de poser sa question
lors du débat d’ajournement. S’il souhaite I'inscrire et obtenir
une réponse écrite, cela permet @ M. Cooper ou a I'un de ses
successeurs de déclarer a la Chambre que la réponse a cette
question sera différée, car il en cofitera 18,426 $ pour répondre
a cette question du député qui a refusé d’en discuter pendant
I'heure des couche-tard. Les deux parties en cause ont une
influence sur la suite des événements.

M. Boudria: J’en conviens.

Le président: Cest le député qui prendra la décision. II
suffit d’aller le voir et de menacer de I'assommer,
littéralement, en disant que la réponse a sa question va
cofiter 18,000 $ et, s’il insiste pour que vous interveniez a la
Chambre en disant cela, le député sera alors tenu d’expliquer &
ses électeurs pourquoi il a de telles exigences alors qu’il pourrait
sans doute poser sa question au cours des sept minutes prévues
lors du débat d’ajournement. S'il refuse de la poser a ce
moment-1a, alors il n’y a pas d’autre choix. Il n’y a rien de mal
a agir de cette fagon.
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M. Hogue: Je suis presque totalement d’accord avec
notre collégue Boudria. L'imputabilité, ou accountability,
c’est une chose. Je pense qu'elle appartient a Albert.
Cependant, nous faisons actuellement une démarche de
procédure, et la procédure n’appartient pas nécessairement au
gouvernement au pouvoir. La procédure appartient au Président
de la méme fagon que nous, ici, sommes non-partisans. Nous
sommes des députés de tous les partis de la Chambre.

The Chairman: I am sorry, sir. Procedure is not up to the
Speaker. Procedure is up to the House itself. The Speaker merely
interprets what the House has decided the rules will be. He is an
administrator; he does not make the rules. The House makes the
rules.

Mr. Hogue: Who is the final authority in the House?

The Chairman: The House itself is the final authority. You
have the right to challenge a Speaker any time you want. He is
the servant of the House of Commons, not the master.

Mr. Hogue: Who would have the final word?
The Chairman: The House of Commons itself.
Mr. Hogue: Would it be the vote?

Si c’est le vote, ce n’est pas le parti au pouvoir.

The Chairman: Of course not, no. You are off in left field, I
am afraid, Dr. Hogue, really.

Mr. Cooper, if we adopt Mr. Boudria’s suggestions or if
we come up with that one, would it change your request from
45 to 90 days? In other words, after 45 days you make your
declaration that it will take much longer than that.
Otherwise, you would want to go into a 20-day thing you would
have to announce or to the late show, in which case the member
then would have to agree it was going to the late show. Would
you have no difficulty with something of that nature?

e 1045

Mr. Cooper: No, I see no problems with that. I suppose in a
very rare circumstance you might need a second 20, but I think
it would be really rare and I am not sure that you need to even
address it in your rules.

The Chairman: No, you would be subject to all kinds of
criticism on that.

Mr. Cooper: Yes. I could simply work something out with a
member on a personal basis if we had to when we get into that
circumstance.

I think that would be adequate and provide the balances you
are looking for, Mr. Chairman.

The Chairman: Mr. Tétreault, you have not had a word to say,
sir. Do you have a question?

M. Jacques Tétreault (député de Laval-des-Rapides):
D’apres ce que vous nous avez dit, monsieur Cooper, au cours des
quatre ou cinq derniéres années, il y a eu beaucoup plus de
demandes et on y a répondu, en moyenne, dans un délai d’a peu
pres 55 jours. Est-ce quun délai de 60 jours au lieu de 45 jours
ne serait pas un délai raisonnable?

[Translation]

Mr. Hogue: I almost totally agree with our honourable
friend, Mr. Boudria. Accountability is one thing. I think it
rests with Albert. However, we are presently debating a
procedural point and procedure does not necessarily rest with
the government in power. Procedure is up to the speaker just as
we, here, are non-partisans. We are members of Parliament
representing all parties in the House.

Le président: Je regrette, monsieur. La procédure n’appar-
tient pas au président, mais a la Chambre elle-méme. Le
président se contente d’interpréter les régles établies par la
Chambre. Il agit comme administrateur mais n’établit pas le
Réglement. C’est la Chambre qui le fait.

M. Hogue: Qui est 'autorité supréme a la Chambre?

Le président: La Chambre elle-méme est 'autorité supréme.
Vous avez le droit de contester le président chaque fois que vous
le souhaitez. Il est au service de la Chambre des communes mais
ce n'est pas lui qui donne les ordres.

M. Hogue: Qui aura le dernier mot?
Le président: La Chambre des communes proprement dite.
M. Hogue: Est-ce que ce sera le vote?

If it is the vote, it is not the party in power.

Le président: Bien stir que non. Je crains que vous ne soyez
un peu perdu, monsieur Hogue.

Monsieur Cooper, si nous adoptons les propositions de
M. Boudria ou si nous en formulons une dans ce sens, cela
changera-t-il votre demande de 45 & 90 jours? En d’autres
termes, 45 jours plus tard, vous déclarez que cela va vous
prendre beaucoup plus de temps. Il y aura prolongation de 20
jours et il faudra I'annoncer ou passer aux couche-tard, auquel
cas, le député devra alors étre d’accord. Cela ne vous poserait pas
de probleme?

M. Cooper: Non, je n’y vois aucun probléme. Dans certaines
circonstances trés rares vous auriez peut-€tre besoin d’un
Second délai de 20 jours, mais je crois que ce serait plutot rare
et je ne suis pas sr que vous ayez méme le besoin d’en parler
dans les réglements.

Le président: Non, vous feriez face a toutes sortes de
critiques.

M. Cooper: Oui. Je pourrais tout simplement m’entendre
personnellement avec le député au besoin.

Je crois que cela suffirait et vous donnerait cet équilibre que
vous cherchez, monsieur le président.

Le président: Monsieur Tétreault, vous n’avez encore rien
dit. Vous avez une question?

Mr. Jacques Tétreault (Laval-des-Rapides): According to
what you have told us, Mr. Cooper, during the last four or five
years there have been a lot more requests and the average time
frame for the answers was about 55 days. Would a 60-day period,
instead of 45 be reasonable?
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Deuxiemement, vous nous avez dit que certaines Second, you have told us that some questions were of an

questions posées Etaient extrémement générales. Elles
s’adressaient au gouvernement. On rencontre souvent en
droit «la motion pour détails». Est-ce qu’il n’y aurait pas
moyen de demander a celui qui pose une question aussi générale
de détailler davantage sa question pour que vous puissiez y
répondre dans un délai plus court? Un mécanisme pourrait étre
mis en marche pour demander a celui qui pose la question s'il ne
peut pas la préciser afin qu'on puisse y répondre dans un délai
plus court.

Mr. Cooper: First of all, I think the 60 days would be adequate
in 90% to 95% of the cases. We will have to just work something
out on the other 5%.

M. Tétreault: S'il y avait un délai de 90 jours, est-ce que les
gens ne seraient pas portés a se trainer les pieds avant de
répondre?

Mr. Cooper: I think the 60 gives us the balance we are looking
for and—

Mr. Boudria: Even 65, Mr. Chairman, 45 and 20. I am quite
prepared to live with that.

Mr. Cooper: That would be ideal.

Mr. Boudria: I do not want to make it difficult.

Que la régle de 45 jours demeure. Les 20 jours, c’est une
exception; cest quelque chose de supplémentaire que le
gouvernement donne.

M. Tétreault: Etant donné qu’au cours des derniéres années,
il y a eu beaucoup plus de questions de posées, je me dcm’andc
si le délai de 45 jours est encore adéquat ou s'il n’est pas désuet.

M. Boudria: Quelle est la statistique que notre collégue: M.
Cooper, nous mentionnait? A quel pourcentage des questions
répond-on dans un délai de 45 jours?

Mr. Cooper: Just under 65% of all questions are answered
within the 45 days, both priority and non-priority. These are the
most recent sets of questions.

Mr. Boudria: What about priority?

Mr. Cooper: I did not break that down, but f_rorp memory on
average 70% to 80% of priorities are answered within the 45 days.

M. Tétreault: Depuis cinq ans, a_nnée apfés année, il y a une
augmentation du nombre de questions posecs.

M. Boudria: Oui, mais on répond a environ 80 p. 100 des
questions dans un délai de 45 jours, comme dit notre collegue.

M. Tétreault: Oui, mais 2 60 p. 100 de 'ensemble des
questions.

M. Boudria: Oui, mais pour celles auxquelles il dpit
répondre dans un délai de 45 jours, le gouvernement atteint
objectif 80 p. 100 du temps. A mon avis, on devrait
conserver lactuelle régle de 45 jours et do_nner au
gouvernement la possibilité de demander.une extension d(; 20
jours ou de demander que le dossier soit t.ransfere au débat
d’ajournement. Celui qui a posé la questlon,'a toujours le
dernier mot. Il peut dire au gouvernement qu il ne veut pas

extremely general nature. They were addressed to the
government. In law, you often have what is called a
“motion for details”. Wouldn’t it be possible to ask the
one putting such a general question to put more details in it so
that it might be answered more quickly. Some sort of mechanism
could be set up to ask the questioner to be more specific, if
possible, so that it might be answered more quickly.

M. Cooper: Tout d’abord, je crois que 60 jours suffiraient
dans 90 p. 100 a 95 p. 100 des cas. Il nous faudra tout simplement
trouver autre chose pour I'autre S p. 100.

Mr. Tétreault: If there were a 90-day period, wouldn’t people
be tempted to drag their feet before answering?

M. Cooper: Je crois que 60 nous donne cet équilibre que nous
cherchons et. . .

M. Boudria: Méme 65, monsieur le président, 45 et 20. Je
peux vivre avec cela.

M. Cooper: Ce serait I'idéal.
M. Boudria: Je ne veux pas faire le difficile.

That the 45-day rule remain. The 20 days are an exception;
it is something additional the government gives.

Mr. Tétreault: As during the last few years there have been
a lot more questions put, I wonder if the 45-day period is still
adequate or if it is not outdated.

Mr. Boudria: What was the statistic being mentioned by our
colleague, Mr. Cooper? What percentage of the question is
answered within the 45-day period?

M. Cooper: On réussit a répondre a un peu moins de 65 p. 100
de toutes les questions dans ce délai de 45 jours, prioritaires et
non prioritaires. C’est pour I'ensemble des questions les plus
récentes.

M. Boudria: Et pour les priorités?

M. Cooper: Je n’ai pas fait la ventilation, mais de mémoire,
en moyenne, de 70 p. 100 a 80 p. 100 des priorités trouvent
réponses en dedans des 45 jours.

Mr. Tétreault: Over the last five years, year after year, there
has been an increase in the number of questions.

Mr. Boudria: Yes, but about 80% of all questions are
answered within the 45 days as our colleague has just said.

Mr. Tétreault: Yes, but with 60% if all questions are included.

Mr. Boudria: Yes, but for those that are to be answered
within the 45-day period, the government attains its objective
80% of the time. In my opinion, we should keep the present
45-day rule and give the government the possibility to
request a 20-day extension or ask that it be transferred to the
adjournment proceedings. The questioner always has the last
word. He can tell the government that he does not want an
answer at adjournment proceedings and that he wants an
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qu’on lui réponde au débat d’ajournement, qu’il veut avoir une
réponse d’ici 45 jours, qu’il n’accorde pas au gouvernement 20
jours de plus. Il peut dire: Vous auriez dii répondre dans ces
délais-1a et ce n’est pas raisonnable; donc, débattons de cela tout
de suite. En somme, le député aurait le dernier mot, mais il
appartiendrait au gouvernement de faire la suggestion.

Je pense que la suggestion du secrétaire parlementaire est la
bonne. Je suis convaincu que mes collégues seront capables de
vivre avec cela. Le seul petit élément que j'aimerais ajouter, c’est
que lorsque le gouvernement est en période de gréce, cette
période de grace ne devrait pas étre soustraite du temps du
député qui veut mettre quatre questions a l'ordre du jour. C’est
la seule exception que j'ajouterais.

e 1050

The Chairman: I am glad you mentioned that, Mr.
Boudria. T have a proposal to which I hope the committee
and the our witness would agree. Let us take the testimony
to date, because we seem to have arrived at some relatively
fair conclusions here on both sides of the fence, prepare some
form of draft report on the matter, circulate it to the three parties
for comment, and as soon as that is done, if there is agreement
on the thing we can present our report and suggested rule change
to the House, and accomplish the object. Unfortunately, we do
not have a quorum this morning. There is nothing we can do
about it today. '

Mr. Cooper, we understand the situation, and unless you have
a final word I am going to hit the gavel.

Mr. Cooper: Thank you
The Chairman: Thank you, sir. This meeting is adjourned.

[Translation)

answer within 45 days and that he is not giving the government
20 days more. He cansay: You should have answered within that
period and it is not reasonable; so let us debate that right away.
In brief, the Member would have the last word, but it would be
up to the government to make the suggestion.

I think the parliamentary secretary’s suggestion is good. I am
convinced that my colleagues will be able to live with that. The
only small think I would like to add is that when the government
is being given a period of grace, this period should not be
subtracted from the time of the Member who wants to put four
questions on the order of the day. That is the only exception I
would add.

Le président: Je suis heureux que vous ayez souligné
cela, monsieur Boudria. J’ai une proposition, qui, je I'espere,
fera le bonheur du comité et de notre témoin. Prenons les
témoignages jusqu’ici, car nous semblons en étre arrivés a des
conclusions relativement justes des deux bords de la cloture,
préparons une sorte de rapport préliminaire sur le sujet,
envoyons-le aux trois partis pour leurs commentaires, et dés que
ce sera fait, si tous sont d’accord, nous pourrons présenter notre
rapport et les modifications proposées au Reéglement a la
Chambre, réalisant ainsi I'objectif. Malheureusement, nous
n’avons pas quorum ce matin. Nous n’y pouvons rien faire
aujourd’hui.

Monsieur Cooper, nous comprenons la situation, et & moins
que vous n’ayez un dernier mot a dire, je vais donner mon coup
de marteau.

M. Cooper: Merci.
Le président: Merci, monsieur. La séance est levée.
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REPORT TO THE HOUSE

Thursday, May 10, 1990

The Standing Committee on Privileges and Elections has the
honour to present its

THIRTEENTH REPORT

In accordance with the Order of Reference adopted by
the House on Tuesday, April 24, 1990, your Committee has
considered the petition of the Desjardins Mutual Life
Assurance Company praying for the passage of an Act to
amend its Act of incorporation, which was filed after the time
limit specified in Standing Order 132, together with the Seventh
Report of the Clerk of Petitions thereon presented to the House
on Thursday, April 5, 1990.

After consideration of the reasons given for the late filing of
this petition and for the desirability of passing an Act in this
Session, your Committee has agreed to recommend that
Standing Order 132 be suspended in this instance and that this
petition be received by the House. It further recommends that
the charges provided for by Standing Order 134(3)(a) be waived.

The petition referred to above, together with the Seventh
Report of the Clerk of Petitions, are returned herewith.

A copy of the relevant Minutes of Propeedings and Evidence
(Issue No. 25 which includes this Report) is tabled.

Respectfully submitted,

RAPPORT A LA CHAMBRE

Le jeudi 10 mai 1990

Le Comité permanent des privileges et des élections a
I'honneur de présenter son

TREIZIEME RAPPORT

Conformément a lordre de renvoi adopté par la
Chambre le mardi 24 avril 1990. le Comité a pris en
considération la  pétition  d'Assurance-vie Desjardins
sollicitant 1'adoption d'une loi modifiant la loi la constituant
en corporation, qui a été produite apres le délai prescrit a I'article
132 du Reéglement, ainsi que le septiéme rapport du greffier des
pétitions présenté a la Chambre le jeudi 5 avril 1990.

Apres avoir entendu les raisons pour lesquelles cette pétition
avait €té produite tardivement et celles pour lesquelles il est
souhaitable d’adopter une loi pendant la session en cours, le
Comité a convenu de recommander que I'application de I'article
132 du Reglement soit suspendue dans le cas présent et que la
Chambre regoive la pétition. Il est également recommandé que
le droit prévu par I'alinéa 134(3)a) du Réglement ne soit pas
pergu.

Ladite pétition et le septiéme rapport du greffier des pétitions
sont renvoyés avec le présent rapport.

Un exemplaire des Procés-verbaux et témoignages pertinents
(fascicule n° 25 qui comprend le présent rapport) est déposé.

Respectueusement soumis,

Le président,

CHUCK COOK,

Chairman.
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MONDAY, MAY 7, 1990 LE LUNDI 7 MAI 1990

(39 39)

[Text] [Traduction]

The Standing Committee on Privileges and Elections met in
camera at 3:40 o’clock p.m. this day, in Room 371, West Block.
the Chairman, Chuck Cook, presiding.

Members of the Committee present: Chuck Cook. Peter
Milliken, Jacques Tétreault and Scott Thorkelson.

Other Member present: Steven Langdon.

In attendance: From the Research Branch of the Library of
Parliament: Jamie Robertson, Research Officer. From the Private
Members’ Business Office: Thomas Hall, Procedural Clerk.

Witness: Robert Marleau, Clerk of the House of Commons.

The Committee began consideration of its mandate on
Parliamentary procedure in committees pursuant to Standing
Order 108(3)b).

The witness made statement and answered questions.
The Committee proceeded to discuss future business.

At 4:52 o'clock p.m., the Committee adjourned to the call of
the Chair.

WEDNESDAY, MAY 9, 1990
(40)

The Standing Committee on Privileges and Elections met at
7:35 o'clock p.m. this day, in Room 112-N, Centre Block. the
Chairman, Chuck Cook, presiding.

Members of the Committee present: Tain Angus, Chuck Cook,
Joe Fontana, Peter Milliken, Jacques Tétreault and Scott
Thorkelson.

In attendance: From the Research Branch of the Library of
Parliament: Jamie Robertson, Research Officer. From the Private
Members’ Business Office: Thomas Hall, Procedural Clerk.

Witness: Don Blenkarn, M.P.

The Committee began consideration of its mandate on
Parliamentary procedure in committees pursuant to Standing
Order 108(3)(b).

At 7:35 o'clock p.m., the Committee proceeded to sit in
camera.

The Committee considered a draft report on its Order of
reference, dated April 24, 1990, on the late petition of the
Desjardins Mutual Life Assurance Company praying for the
passage of an Act to amend its Act of incorporation.

After debate, it was agreed that the draft report be adopted
as the Committee’s Thirteenth Report to the House and that the
Chairman present it to the House.

At 7:36 o’clock p.m., the Committee proceeded to sit in public
session.

Le Comité permanent des privileges et des élections se réunit
a huis clos aujourd’hui a 15 h 40, dans la salle 371 de I'édifice de
I'Ouest, sous la présidence de Chuck Cook (président).

Membres du Comité présents: Chuck Cook, Peter Milliken,
Jacques Tétreault et Scott Thorkelson.

Autre député présent: Steven Langdon.

Aussi présents: Du Service de recherche de la Bibliotheque du
Parlement: Jamie Robertson, attachée de recherche. Du Bureau
des affaires émanant des députés: Thomas Hall, greffier a la
procédure.

Témoin: Robert Marleau, Greffier de la Chambre des
communes.

En conformité de I'alinéa 108(3)b), le Comité examine la
procédure parlementaire observée par les comités.

Le témoin fait un exposé et répond aux questions.
Le Comité délibére de ses travaux a venir.

A 16 h 52, le Comité s'ajourne jusqu'a nouvelle convocation
du président.

LE MERCREDI 9 MAI 1990
(40)

Le Comité permanent des privileges et des €lections se réunit
aujourd’hui a 19 h 35, dans la salle 112-N de I'édifice du Centre,
sous la présidence de Chuck Cook (président).

Membres du Comité présents: Iain Angus, Chuck Cook, Joe
Fontana, Peter Milliken, Jacques Tétreault et Scott Thorkelson.

Aussi présents: Du Service de recherche de la Bibliothéque du
Parlement: Jamie Robertson. attachée de recherche. Du Bureau
des affaires émanant des députés: Thomas Hall, greffier a la
procédure.

Témoin: Don Blenkarn, député.

En conformité de I'alinéa 108(3)b) du Reglement, le Comité
examine la procédure parlementaire observée par les comités.

A 19 h 35. le Comité déclare le huis clos.

Le Comité examine un projet de rapport découlant de son
ordre de renvoi du 24 avril 1990 et portant sur la pétition,
présentée aprés le délai prescrit, d’Assurance-vie Desjardins
sollicitant I'adoption d'une loi modifiant la loi la constituant en
corporation.

Aprés débat. il est convenu que le projet de rapport soit adopté
et devienne le Treizieme rapport du Comité et que le président
le présente a la Chambre.

A 19 h 36. le Comité met fin au huis clos.
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The witness made a statement and answered questions.
At 8:33 o’clock p.m., Peter Milliken took the Chair.
At 8:36 o’clock p.m., Chuck Cook took the Chair.

After debate, it was agreed,—That the Committee hear
further witnesses on subject of parliamentary procedure in
committees, including some committee chairmen, and some of
the House Leaders and whips of the various political parties.

At 8:44 o'clock p.m., the Committee adjourned to the call of
the Chair.

Susan Baldwin

Clerk of the Committee

Le témoin fait un exposé et répond aux questions.
A 20 h 33, Peter Milliken remplace le président.
A 20 h 36, Chuck Cook réintegre le fauteuil.

Apres débat, il est convenu.—Que le Comité entende d'autres
témoins sur la procédure parlementaire observée en comités,
dont quelques présidents de comités, et certains leaders
parlementaires et whips des partis.

A 20 h 44, le Comité s'ajourne jusqu'a nouvelle convocation
du président.

La greffiére du Comité

Susan Baldwin
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e 1935

The Chairman: Order, please.

We are dealing with parliamentary procedure in committee
pursuant to Standing Order 108.(3)(b). The witness is Mr. Don
Blenkarn, Member of Parliament, Chairman of the Standing
Committee on Finance.

Just so anybody who reads this stuff will understand what we
are talking about, we are basically talking about the rules of
Parliament, the rules of committee, and the privileges or lack of
privileges of committee chairmen and of committees in terms of
the House of Commons, and what happens when impasses occur.
That is what it is all about.

Mr. Blenkarn, sir, will you please give us your opening
statement.

Mr. Don Blenkarn, MP (Mississauga South): Why do we not
open up the issue, Mr. Chairman? This is not the first time this
matter has been raised by committees, but it came full front in
the finance committee’s hearing on Bill C-62.

At the outset of the committee procedures, there were the
usual meetings in camera to determine the order of procedure.
Notwithstanding those orders in camera. when the committee
went into open session hearings, a motion was made that the
committee travel and hear witnesses, and the travel was to every
single, conceivable, possible place in Canada, some 40 or so cities
and towns.

The Chairman: Mr. Blenkarn, I will correct you immediately,
sir. You did not get to Eyebrow, Saskatchewan, and it is a place
in Canada.

Mr. Blenkarn: Yes.

The Chairman: So you went to the 40 prominent places in
Canada.

Mr. Blenkarn: No. The motion was not just the most
prominent places, of course. In any event, the issue was on
the motion—made in this case by the New Democratic
members who were substituted, Messrs Barrett and
Rodriguez—to travel and a motion to hear witnesses
everywhere in creation. There was obviously a point to the
motion, in an effort to have travel and so on. but the issue
could never be brought to a vote simply because the members
moving the motion just continued to speak and speak and speak,
as they are entitled to do under the rules of the committee. That
became rather frustrating, to the effect that on a number of
occasions—on two occasions anyway—I just adjourned the
meeting and heard the witnesses privately. The motion was made
while we had witnesses in town, as a result of understandings of
the in camera meeting.

[Enregistrement électronique)

Le mercredi 9 mai 1990

Le président: La séance est ouverte.

N

Conformément a l'alinéa 108.(3)b) du Reglement nous
poursuivons nos travaux concernant les questions de procédure
parlementaire. Nous recevons aujourd’hui M. Don Blenkarn,
député et président du Comité permanent des finances.

Pour que les gens qui vont lire ceci puissent comprendre, je
rappelle que nous sommes ici pour discuter des régles de
procédure parlementaire, des régles qui s'appliquent aux
comités notamment. de la question de privilege ou d'absence de
privileges des présidents de comité et des comités eux-mémes,
de la Chambre des communes. et de certaines impasses possibles
qui peuvent survenir. Voila ce dont il est question.

Monsieur Blenkarn, je vous passe la parole.

M. Don Blenkarn, député (Mississauga-Sud): Pourquoi ne
pas ouvrir largement le débat. monsieur le président” Ce n'est
pas la premicre fois que la question est posée en comité, et elle
s'est reposée gravement pendant les séances du Comité des
finances portant sur le projet de loi C-62.

Nous avions eu pour commencer, comme ¢ ‘est I'habitude, des
réunions a huis clos ol nous avions décidé de la fagon dont nous
entendions procéder. En deplt de ces décisions qui ont été prises
a huis clos, lorsque le comité a siégé en séances publiques, une
motion a été déposée proposant que le comité se déplace pour
entendre des témoins, et sur la liste des déplacements prévus,
nous avions quelque 40 villes et petites villes disséminées dans
tout le Canada.

Le président: Monsieur Blenkarn, je me permets tout de suite
de vous reprendre. Vous n'étes pas allés a Eyebrow, en
Saskatchewan, qui est pourtant bien une localité canadienne.

M. Blenkarn: C'est exact.

Le président: Vous vous étes donc rendus dans les 40 villes les
plus importantes du Canada.

M. Blenkarn: Non. Il ne s’agissait pas des localités les
plus connues et les plus importantes, c'est bien évident. En
tout cas, une motion avait donc été déposée, et dans ce cas—ci
par des députés néo-démocrates, MM. Barrett et Rodriguez,
qui étaient 1a comme remplagants, et qui proposaient une
motion pour l'audition de témoins en milieux différents.
Cette motion avait une raison, il s'agissait de se déplacer,
etc.. mais on n'a jamais pu voter tout simplement parce que
les députés qui ont déposé la motion ont continué a conserver
la parole, et a discourir @ n'en plus finir, comme le leur
permettent les regles de procédure des comités. Ils pousserent
les choses a un point tel que jai di a diverses repnses en
I'occurrence deux—Ilever la séance et entendre les témoins a
titre privé. Cette motion avait été proposée alors que nous
avions fait venir des témoins a Ottawa. comme prévu au cours
d'une séance a huis clos.
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The Chairman: I do not mean to interrupt you improperly, but
there was a proper motion made. Is that correct?

Mr. Blenkarn: Yes.

The Chairman: They spoke to the motion.

Mr. Blenkarn: They just spoke to the motion, yes.
The Chairman: There is no limitation on speaking to a
motion.

Mr. Blenkarn: That is right. We went through three regular
meetings, and then finally—

The Chairman: Just a minute now. They were speaking to the
motion, and they continued speaking.

Mr. Blenkarn: Yes, they took turns speaking.

The Chairman: Then you recognized one after the other. Is
that the idea?

Mr. Blenkarn: There is no limit on the number of times a
member can speak.

The Chairman: To a motion.

Mr. Blenkarn: Under the rules of the finance committee,
there is no limit on the length of speeches.

The Chairman: Therefore, they were operating—

Mr. Blenkarn: All within the rules.

The Chairman: —quite properly in terms of speaking back
and forth.

Mr. Blenkarn: Quite properly within the rules. That is right.
e 1940

The Chairman: Go ahead, sir.

Mr. Blenkarn: The effort went on. Eventually that particular
issue was settled with an offer for some television hearings and
S0 on. A witness list was finally agreed on. That solved the first
stage of the committee hearings.

After the witness list was pretty well completed. efforts were
of course made, privately, to try to come to a conclusion of the
hearings and a system to vote the bill. There were a number of
amendments to be made and so on. The result_ was that a
Conservative member, Mr. Soetens, made a motion that was
essentially a motion of time allocation or closure—

The Chairman: In the committee?

Mr. Blenkarn: In the committee. The opposition members
proceeded to debate that and debate it and debate it. That debate
went on for 31 hours.

The Chairman: Now, just a minute. They were still doing it
quite properly—

Mr. Blenkarn: Oh, no question about it.

The Chairman: They have the right to debate that till
kingdom come. Is that correct?

[Traduction)

Le président: Non pas que je veuille & tout prix vous
interrompre, mais la motion était-elle recevable?

M. Blenkarn: Oui.

Le président: Et les auteurs ont pris la parole pour la
défendre.

M. Blenkarn: Oui.

Le président: Et dans ce genre de situation, il n'y a aucune
limite de temps.

M. Blenkarn: Exactement. Cela a donc pris trois séances
normales, et ensuite. . .

Le président: Un instant. Les auteurs de la motion ont pris la
parole et I'ont conservée.

M. Blenkarn: Oui, et ils avaient organisé des tours pour se
relever les uns les autres.

Le président: Vous leur donniez donc la parole I'un aprés
l'autre?

M. Blenkarn: Rien ne limite le nombre de fois o le député
peut prendre la parole.

Le président: Lorsqu'il s’agit d'une motion.

M. Blenkarn: Les régles du Comité des finances sont qu'il n'y
a aucune limite de temps imposée au temps de parole.

Le président: Ils respectaient donc tout 2 fait. . .

M. Blenkarn: Le Réglement, oui.

Le président: . . .dans leur prise de parole.

M. Blenkarn: Oui, les régles du jeu étaient respectées.

Le président: Allez-y.

M. Blenkarn: Et ce petit jeu a duré. Finalement, on a trouvé
une issue en s'entendant pour tenir des audiences télévisées, etc.
On s'est également et finalement entendu sur une liste de
témoins. Cela nous a permis de conclure cette premiére étape
des audiences du comité.

Apres que la liste des témoins eut été finalement pour ainsi
dire close, des efforts ont €té déployés, dans les coulisses, pour
que nous puissions parvenir a une cloture des débats et & un vote
du projet de loi. Il y avait bien stir des amendements, etc. Bref,
un membre du Parti conservateur, M. Soetens, a déposé une
motion dont on peut dire en gros que c'était une motion de
cloture. . .

Le président: Au comité?

M. Blenkarn: Oui. C'est alors que les députés de I'opposition
ont commencé a en débattre, a en débattre a n'en plus finir,
puisque cela a duré 31 heures.

Le président: Un instant. Tout cela était tout a fait conforme
aux régles. . .

M. Blenkarn: Sans aucun doute.

Le président: IIs ont le droit de conserver la parole jusqu'a la
fin des temps, si je ne me trompe?
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Mr. Blenkarn: That was their position.

Mr. Fontana (London East): If you are asking some questions
in terms of whether or not things were done within the rules, then
I will just ask one question of Mr. Blenkarn: is the time allocation
motion in committee a proper motion within the rules?

Mr. Blenkarn: Certainly. There is no question about it: the
motion was a proper motion. The motion was an in order motion.

Mr. Fontana: Can time allocation be instituted at committee
hearings?

The Chairman: If it is agreed to by the committee.

Mr. Blenkarn: [Inaudible— Editor] committee by motion, in
my view.

The Chairman: This is a procedural agrument at the moment.
But you say it is not time allocation; it is committee rules.

The Clerk of the Committee: It is not exactly what you find
in the Standing Orders, but it is a motion put forth that would
set out what witnesses you would hear, at what time, and when
you would get into clause by clause. It is a motion that would not
be effective unless it were passed by the majority.

Mr. Fontana: By the committee?
The Clerk: Yes.

Mr. Blenkarn: That is right. This particular motion was a very
extensive motion, with provision for further consultation called
for—all sorts of bells and whistles on a closure motion.

The Chairman: Mr. Blenkarn, at each stage of this thing I
want to know whether the procedure is proper or not. Now, you
agree that they had the right to debate the particular motion
forever, if they wanted to.

Mr. Blenkarn: That is the nub of the problem.

The Chairman: By the rules of your own committee, they
could continue debating.

Mr. Blenkarn: By the rules of the committees of the House
of Commons, there is no limitation on the debate on a motion
in committee.

The Chairman: But what they were doing was going from one
to the other on it.

Mr. Blenkarn: Other members were of course speaking on the
motion. In effect, it went on and on and on for 31 hours.

The Chairman: Thank you, sir.

Mr. Blenkarn: I then elected to take a rather novel procedure
that was taken by Mr. Lachance in the justice committee in 1984,
and that was to order the termination of the debate and make
achairman’s order. That chairman'’s order in effect was a closure
itself.

The Chairman: Now, let us not talk about closure. The
chairman made an order—

[Translation]

M. Blenkarn: C’est effectivement ce qu'ils ont maintenu.

M. Fontana (London-Est): Puisque vous posez la question du
respect des régles du comité, j"aimerais poser, moi, une question
a M. Blenkarn: une motion de cloture est-elle recevable en
comité?

M. Blenkarn: Certainement. La motion était tout a fait
recevable.

M. Fontana: Peut-on décider en comité de limiter la durée
des débats?

Le président: Si le comité le désire, oui.

M. Blenkarn: [Inaudible—Ile rédacteur] par simple motion, si
je ne me trompe.

Le président: I1s’agit 1a de régles de procédure. Cela n’est pas,
comme a la Chambre, une cléture du débat; vous fonctionnez a
l'intérieur des régles du comité.

La greffiére du comité: Ce n'est pas tout a fait ce que I'on
trouve dans le Réglement de la Chambre; il sagit d’une motion
qui en T'occurrence prévoit quels témoins seront entendus,
quand, et a quel moment I'on passera a I'examen article par
article. La motion prend effet a condition d’avoir été adoptée a
la majorité.

M. Fontana: En comité?
La greffiére: Oui.

M. Blenkarn: Exactement. En l'occurrence, la motion était
trés longue; elle prévoyait que I'on se consulte par la suite
pour. . .une motion de cloture avec des tas de paragraphes et
d’alinéas.

Le président: Monsieur Blenkarn, jaimerais savoir si, a
chaque étape de votre processus, les régles du comité ont été
respectées. Vous dites que les auteurs de la motion avaient le
droit d’en débattre ad vitam aeternam s'ils le désiraient.

M. Blenkarn: C’est exactement le noeud du probleme.

Le président: Conformément aux régles mémes de votre
propre comité, ils avaient la possibilit€ de poursuivre leur
discours.

M. Blenkarn: Conformément aux regles des comités de la
Chambre des communes, rien n'impose de limite aux débats
d'une motion déposée en comite.

Le président: Mais les intervenants se relayaient?

M. Blenkarn: Et d’autres membres du comité ont également
pris la parole. De fait, les choses ont duré 31 heures.

Le président: Merci.

M. Blenkarn: J'ai alors décidé de m'en tenir a la procédure
innovée par M. Lachance au Comité de la justice en 1984, a
savoir prendre la décision de clore les débats, par ordre du
président. Il s’agit d'une décision de cloture des débats du
président lui-méme.

Le président: Laissons de coté la question de la cloture des
débats. Le président a décidé. . .
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Mr. Blenkarn: That is right. The right of the chairman to
make that order was challenged; the Chair was challenged. But
when the Chair is challenged, there is no debate on the challenge
of the Chair, so the Chair put the challenge to the meeting and
the chairman was sustained. In effect, the chairman’s order then
became the order of the committee.

The Chairman: I will ask two questions about that, sir. I am
not limiting anybody else, I just want to get my stuff in so I'know
where I am.

First of all, sir, did you interrupt someone in order to make
that order?

Mr. Blenkarn: No, I did not. Mr. Fontana, as a matter of fact,
had just finished speaking. He made a delightful speech, a terrific
speech that—

Mr. Fontana: It was a perfect lead-in for—
® 1945

Mr. Blenkarn: He left me with an abundantly good excuse to
make the order.

The Chairman: In other words, he edited his speech, which
gave you the opportunity then—

Mr. Angus (Thunder Bay—Atikokan): Collusion once again.

The Chairman: —not to recognize somebody else, but to
make your order. Is that correct?

Mr. Blenkarn: That is correct.

The Chairman: That is what I wanted to know at this point,
which is the key point in the thing. There may be others with
questions.

Mr. Blenkarn: The matter was then, of course, brought to the
Speaker the next day—

The Chairman: Just a minute; let us deal with that. Mr.
Thorkelson, you had a question.

M. Blenkarn: —and the Speaker’s ruling you have in front
of you.

The Chairman: Mr. Blenkarn, will you wait, please, until we
have dealt with this particular point.

Mr. Thorkelson (Edmonton—Strathcona): I am willing to
wait.

The Chairman: You are prepared to wait? Oh, Isee. It_hought
this was the point you wanted to speak to. My apologies, Mr.
Blenkarn. Go ahead. ;

. . result is that the bill eventually
pas]\s?d ?r\l:ncl?r:rlnit}:;e i: eatccordance with my order that had

been approved by the committee. Then, on the next meeting

of the committee another motion was made, by Mr. Nystrom,

i i he
calling fi the committee and a report to t
= Pl ki debatable motion. There may

House. I accepted that motion as a " . :
have been argument as to whether it was a valid motion, but;":
any event I accepted that motion. But again there was 30 ey th:t
motion could be put to a vote because again e e d
the motion can be debated and debated and debated and debate
until—

[Traduction]

M. Blenkarn: C'est son droit. Ce droit du président de
prendre cette décision a alors été contesté; le président
lui-méme a été contesté. Mais dans ce genre de situation, on ne
débat pas de la motion d’opposition, et dans ce cas-ci, le
président a posé la question au comité et sa décision a été
maintenue. La décision du président devenait alors la décision
de tout le comité.

Le président: J’aimerais vous poser deux questions la-dessus.
Je n’interdis a personne d’autre d’en poser, je voudrais
simplement pouvoir y voir clair.

Au moment ol vous avez pris votre décision de clore les
débats, avez-vous été obligé d’interrompre qui que ce soit?

M. Blenkarn: Non, c’est d’ailleurs M. Fontana lui-méme qui
venait de finir une intervention. Une intervention d’ailleurs
merveilleuse, un discours remarquable. . .

M. Fontana: Une facon parfaite de vous amener. . .

M. Blenkarn: Il me donnait en quelque sorte I'occasion
parfaite de pouvoir ensuite prendre ma décision.

Le président: Il a amené son discours de telle fagon que vous
n’ayez pas besoin ensuite. . .

M. Angus (Thunder Bay—Atikokan): Encore un exemple de
collusion.

Le président: . . .de passer la parole a quelqu’un d’autre, mais
que vous puissiez de prendre votre décision. C’est bien cela?

M. Blenkarn: Oui.

Le président: C'est exactement ce que je voulais savoir, et
c’est absolument essentiel. D’autres membres du comité auront
peut-étre des questions a poser.

M. Blenkarn: Le président de la Chambre a été alors saisi le
lendemain. . .

Le président: Une seconde. Monsieur Thorkelson, vous
vouliez poser une question.

M. Blenkarn: . . .et vous avez sa décision sous les yeux.

Le président: Une seconde, monsieur Blenkarn, attendons
que toutes les questions aient été posées.

M. Thorkelson (Edmonton—Strathcona): Je peux attendre.

Le président: Vous voulez bien attendre? Trés bien. Je
croyais justement que vous vouliez intervenir la-dessus.
Excusez-moi, monsieur Blenkarn. Allez-y.

M. Blenkarn: Au total et finalement, le projet de loi a
été adopté en comité, et cela parce que j’ai pu prendre cette
décision qui a €té approuvée par le comité lui-méme. A la
réunion suivante, une autre motion a ét¢ déposée, par M.
Nystrom, demandant que je me retire et que I'on présente un
rapport a la Chambre. J’ai déclaré cette motion recevable, et elle
pouvait donner lieu & l'ouverture d’'un débat. On aurait pu
effectivement discuter de la recevabilité de la motion; toujours
est-il que je I'ai acceptée. Mais la encore, le débat pouvait se
prolonger a I'infini, conformément & notre procédure. . .
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The Chairman: Kingdom come. Le président: Jusqu’a la fin des temps.
Mr. Blenkarn: —the icebergs freeze over. M. Blenkarn: .. .jusqu'a ce que le combat cesse, faute de
combattants.

So eventually that matter was resolved in the settlement that
formed the report to the House that is now before you. But it
points out that on three separate occasions motions were made
that were debatable motions and there was no way in the current
rules for the committee in any way to limit the debate on the
motions or to force the motions to a vote.

The result is that it is almost impossible, if not impossible, for
chairmen of committees to carry on the business of the
committee. In effect, the committee is held to ransom by a
minority of members, because obviously the minority of
members refuse to let the matter come to a vote, knowing they
will lose the vote.

The issue before then you is: should the House itself in its
Standing Orders have rules vis-a-vis committees? In my view,
they ought to in view of the rather extended duties of committees
under our current rules.

The Chairman: One final question, Mr. Blenkarn. As I
understand the rules, committees make their own rules. Could
I suggest to you that had your committee perhaps formalized
their own rules as to how procedure would be in that committee,
knowing you were dealing with a highly controversial subject, the
committee could have voted its own rules which would have
covered the ground you are talking about.

Mr. Blenkarn: I do not know about that. What you are
suggesting is that it would be possible for committees to have
special rules with respect to motions, as to—

The Chairman: No. All committees have different rules.

Mr. Blenkarn: —how many people could speak on a motion,
and as to whether you could terminate speaking on motions.

The Chairman: Well, it is clearly within the purview of a
committee to decide its rules itself.

Mr. Blenkarn: That is fine. If you would make that kind of a
recommendation from this committee —

The Chairman: No, I am not making that kind of a
recommendation; I am asking you—

Mr. Blenkarn: —then, seriously, that is not my
understanding of it from the people in the Committees
Branch. This is not possible. But if you say it is possible, if it
was the order of this committee that the committees were
responsible for their own rules and procedures, then you might
have committee rules determined at the outset of a committee
determining all of these matters for everything that would ever
come before the committee during the history of the committee.

® 1950

The Chairman: A good many of them are possible, because
committees do decide now in terms of whether each person is
going to have 10 minutes to speak, 5 minutes to speak, whether
there is going to be a second round, and whether the opposition
is first.

Finalement, la question a été résolue par le truchement du
rapport a la Chambre que vous avez également sous les yeux. Il
indique qu’en trois occasions, des motions ont été déposées,
motions qui pouvaient étre débattues, et que rien dans les régles
de procédure du comité ne permettait de limiter le débat d’une
motion, ou de contraindre le comité a voter.

Les présidents de comités sont donc dans I'impossibilité
presque absolue, dans ce genre de situation, de remplir leurs
fonctions. On peut dire que le comité est pris en otage par une
minorité de membres, qui empéchent le comité de passer au
vote, puisqu’ils savent qu’ils vont étre défaits.

La question qui vous est maintenant posée est celle~ci: la
Chambre des communes elle-méme devrait—elle, dans son
réglement concernant les comités, prévoir quelque chose a cet
effet? A mon avis oui, étant donné les responsabilités plutot
élargies qui sont a I’heure actuelle confiées aux comités.

Le président: Une derniére question, monsieur Blenkarn. Si
je comprends bien, les comités sont responsables de leurs
propres réglements internes. Je pense alors que votre comité
aurait peut-étre pu formuler son propre réglement de fagon a
prévoir ce genre de situation, étant donné le sujet extrémement
controversé qui vous était confié.

M. Blenkarn: Je ne sais pas. Vous proposez que les comités
adoptent des régles spéciales pour ces motions. . .

Le président: Non. Chaque comité adopte ses propres régles.

M. Blenkarn: ...limitant le nombre d’interventions au
moment du débat de la motion, et prévoyant éventuellement
une cloture du débat.

Le président: Il appartient trés clairement au comité
lui-méme d’en décider au moment ol il fixe ses propres régles.

M. Blenkarn: Trés bien. Si c’est le genre de recommandation
que vous voulez faire ici. . .

Le président: Non, je ne veux pas encore faire de recomman-
dation, je vous demande simplement. . .

M. Blenkarn: ...d’aprés l'avis que j'ai pu recevoir de la
Direction des comités, ce n’est pas comme cela que je
comprends les choses. Cela ne me parait pas possible. Mais
si cela vous parait possible, si ce comité—ci décide que les
comités sont responsables de leurs régles de procédure, ils
fixeront alors ces régles au début de leurs travaux en essayant de
prévoir tous les cas de figure possibles.

Le président: Dans bien des cas, c’est possible, et les comités
décident déja si chaque intervenant aura 10 minutes ou 5
minutes, s’il y aura un deuxiéme tour et si I'opposition prend
d’abord la parole.
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Mr. Thorkelson: If you adopt more complex rules, then
committees are writing a book of standing orders for themselves.
You might have 20 different standing orders—

The Chairman: I think that is true even now. Am I wrong or
right?

The Clerk: The chairman is always right.

The Chairman: Well, that solves it: the chairman is always
right.

But I am curious. And mind you, I am not an expert on
procedure, obviously. Mr. Milliken, we will have to have your
opinion in a minute here.

Mr. Milliken (Kingston and the Islands): I will tell you, that
question is out of order.

The Chairman: But the key factor is: do committees have the
right, when they are setting up a set of hearings or something,
to determine their own procedure?

The Clerk: As long as it does not conflict with the rules of the
House that apply to committees. If you are talking about the
number of times of speaking, length of speeches, those kinds of
things they could certainly impose upon themselves.

Mr. Blenkarn: Could they impose upon themselves the
position that no one could speak for more than 20 minutes on
amotion and that after we had exhausted all of the members the
question would then be put?

Mr. Angus: But on that same point, Mr. Chairman, the
realities of that motion will be debatable the first time it is raised.

The Chairman: Right. Then of course you get the “it goes on
forever”.

Mr. Angus: That is right. It becomes a tactical question for
each committee, assuming it is up to each committee that they
start off their relationship with a negative.

The Chairman: Oftentimes all committees start off with a
negative.

I want to get back to Mr. Blenkarn, but may I go to Mr.
Milliken for a minute, who has been studying procedure since he
was 16 years old.

Mr. Angus: That is not true. I think he was six and a half.

The Chairman: Oh, I am sorry: I apologize.

Peter, in an informal sense. could you offer your expertise in
this area, because this is not a partisan thing.

Mr. Milliken: I agree with our clerk in saying that I think the
committee can adopt its own rules. as we have adopted many of
our own, Mr. Chairman. You need only to g0 back.to the first
meeting of the committee, and indeed the last meeting but_ one
where we adopted a rule that the spokesmen for the opposition
be called upon first to ask questions for an extended period.

The Chairman: Only if they arrived on time.

[Traduction)

M. Thorkelson: Mais si I'on entre dans des détails de
procédure plus compliqués, les comités vont étre amenés a
rédiger un véritable Reéglement. Vous aurez 20 Réglements
différents. . .

Le président: Mais c'est déja un peu ce qui se passe. Est—ce
que je me trompe?

La greffiére: Le président a toujours raison.

Le président: Voila qui résout notre dilemme, le président a
toujours raison.

Mais je me pose quand méme quelques questions. Sachez
bien que je ne suis pas un spécialiste de ce domaine, et dans
quelques instants. nous demanderons son avis a M. Milliken.

M. Milliken (Kingston et les Iles): Je vous dis tout de suite
que la question n'est pas recevable.

Le président: Le centre du probléme est celui-ci: les comités
ont-ils le droit, au début de leurs travaux, d'arréter leur propre
Réglement?

La greffiere: Tant que celui-ci n'est pas en conflit avec le
Reéglement de la Chambre concernant les comités. Si vous
voulez parler du nombre d’interventions de chacun, de la durée
des interventions, ce genre de détails peuvent certainement étre
réglés par le comité lui-méme.

M. Blenkarn: Les comités pourraient-ils alors s'imposer de
ne pas laisser parler qui que ce soit plus de 20 minutes sur une
motion, et que celle-ci serait mise aux voix dés que tous les
membres du comité auraient eu leur tour?

M. Angus: A ce sujet-1a, monsieur le président, je tiens 4 faire
remarquer que cette méme motion donnera lieu a un débat dés
qu’elle sera déposée.

Le président: Oui. Et alors on retourne a ce cercle vicieux
d'un débat interminable.

M. Angus: Exactement. C'est une question de tactique; il
appartient a chaque comité d'en décider, a supposer que le
comité veuille commencer ses travaux sur une régle négative.

Le président: C'est pourtant souvent ce qui se passe.

J'aimerais revenir @ M. Blenkarn, mais j'aimerais également
donner quelques instants la parole a M. Milliken, qui étudie la
procédure parlementaire depuis qu'il a 16 ans.

M. Angus: Ce n'est pas tout a fait vrai; je pense qu'il a
commencé a six ans et demi.

Le président: Excusez-moi.

Peter, de fagon trés informelle, pourriez-vous nous faire
profiter de vos lumicres dans ce domaine, étant donné le coté
completement apolitique de notre débat?

M. Milliken: Je suis d'accord avec la greffiére: le comité peut
fixer lui-méme ses propres régles. comme nous l'avons trés
largement fait nous-mémes. monsieur le président. Reportez-
vous a la premicre réunion du comité, et méme & notre derniére
réunion. ot nous avons décidé que 1'on donnerait d’abord la
parole aux représentants de I'opposition. et pour une période de
temps dailleurs plus longue.

Le président: A condition qu'ils soient & I'heure.
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Mr. Milliken: It did not say that. If Mr. Chairman will read the
rule—

The Chairman: Then we will change it.
Mr. Milliken: You will have to get a majority here first.
The Chairman: But, Peter, deal with this issue.

Mr. Milliken: The fact is that the committee can set its
own rules; and as Mr. Angus has pointed out, they have to be
agreed to with unlimited debate, because once the committee
starts to meet the motions concerning its rules are debatable.
We, in a great spirit of unanimity, agreed to a series of rules at
the outset of our proceedings, and I am surprised the finance
committee had not adopted some similar provision. Certainly we
have limits on the times members can ask questions. Our
motions are currently unlimited as to their debatability.

Mr. Thorkelson: I have a couple of questions, and please
correct me if I am wrong. I would like to ask the advice of the
clerk. The House rules state that no person may speak more than
twice.

Mr. Milliken: More than once.

Mr. Thorkelson: More than once or more than twice?

Mr. Milliken: More than once on an individual issue.

Mr. Thorkelson: Were there members of the committee or
substitute members who spoke twice during the same —

Mr. Blenkarn: Twice? Like maybe 25 to 30 times each.

The Chairman: May I interrupt for one second. That rule of
the House has does not apply in committees, so you can speak
any number of times.

Mr. Thorkelson: So that is another rule that could be adopted.
because it is not a House rule.

Mr. Blenkarn: The issue, as Mr. Angus pointed out, is that
suppose you could adopt that rule if you could ever get it through.
Would the opposition in any committee ever allow you to adopt
it?

® 1955

The Chairman: Doing it in committee, perhaps. But
remember, the purpose of your being here, sir—

Mr. Blenkarn: The only way you could ever do it in committee
is by closure.

The Chairman: Mr. Blenkarn, when I am speaking, please be
quiet.

What I was saying, Mr. Blenkarn, is that the purpose of having
you here is to look at what rules of the House of Commons might
be changed to the benefit of all of Parliament. Now, then, if you
cannot do it in committee, if you cannot do it in the House,
maybe you should not be able to do it in committee. That is what
we are looking at. And remember what the purpose of this
meeting is.

[Translation]

M. Milliken: Ce n’est pas ce que nous avons décidé. Si vous
voulez vous reporter a la régle. . .

Le président: II faudra alors la modifier.
M. Milliken: Il vous faudra pour cela une majorité.
Le président: Revenons a nos moutons, Peter.

M. Milliken: Toujours est-il que le comité peut décider
lui-méme de son propre Reéglement; et comme M. Angus I'a
fait remarquer, le temps de discussion des régles du comité
n'est pas limité, les motions portant sur ce Réglement sont
des motions donnant lieu a un débat. A ce comité-ci, nous avons
adopté toute une série de régles des le début de nos travaux, dans
un esprit de conciliation unanime, et je suis surpris que le
Comité des finances n'en ait pas fait autant. Nous avons ainsi
limité le nombre de fois ou les membres du comité peuvent
poser des questions. Mais nos motions peuvent effectivement
étre débattues sans aucune limite du temps de parole.

M. Thorkelson: Jaurais quelques questions a poser, et
dites-moi si je me trompe. J'aimerais d'ailleurs avoir I'avis de la
greffiere. Le Réglement de la Chambre précise que personne ne
peut prendre la parole plus de deux fois.

M. Milliken: Pas plus d’une fois.
M. Thorkelson: Une fois. ou deux?
M. Milliken: Sur une question donnée, pas plus d'une fois.

M. Thorkelson: Est-ce que pendant ce débat, certains
membres du comité, ou leurs remplagants, ont pris la parole
deux fois sur la méme. . .

M. Blenkarn: Deux fois? A raison de 25 & 30 minutes chaque
fois.

Le président: Permettez-moi de vous interrompre un instant.
Cet article du Réglement de la Chambre ne concerne pas les
comités, ol le nombre de vos interventions n'est pas limité.

M. Thorkelson: Voila donc une }'égle. qui ne concernerait pas
la Chambre. qui pourrait elle aussi €tre adoptée en comité.

M. Blenkarn: Mais comme I'a dit trés justement M. Angus, a
condition que le comité adopte cette disposition. Peut-on
imaginer que I'opposition, en comité, accepte jamais qu'on
adopte cette regle?

Le président: Peut-étre peut-on le faire en comité. Cepen-
dant, rappelez-vous que vous étes ici aujourd’hui, monsieur,
pour. . .

M. Blenkarn: La seule facon d'y parvenir en comité, c'est
d'invoquer la cloture.

Le président: Monsieur Blenkarn, veuillez vous taire quand
je parle.

Comme je le disais, monsieur Blenkarn, vous étes ici ce soir
pour que I'on étudie les régles de la Chambre des communes qui
pourraient étre modifiées a I'avantage de tous les parlementai-
res. Si vous ne pouvez pas le faire en comité, si vous ne pouvez
pas le faire a la Chambre, peut-étre ne devriez-vous pas étre en
mesure de le faire en comité non plus. C’est ce fait que nous
étudions. Et rappelez-vous bien de l'objet de la réunion de ce
SOIT.
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With that background of the thing, let us cut the guff
and get to the point. What rules do you feel should be
adopted for the benefit of committees and for the benefit of
Parliament: not for the benefit of committee chairmen but for
the benefit of Parliament and the Canadian public as a result?
What do you think is wrong with our rules? How should they be
changed? What are your recommendations? That is really why
you are here.

Mr. Blenkarn: I recommend you have some sort of an ultimate
closure rule for committees.

The Chairman: Which goes to the House of Commons.

Mr. Blenkarn: Which should not have to go to the House.

The Chairman: We have a rule now whereby if a
minister stands up in the House of Commons he can bring in
time allocation for a committee. That is already in the rules.
Why do we need to change that, and why should you or I, sir,
as a committee chairman, have the right to do it on our own?
Why should we not have to go to a Cabinet minister and say to
him, I have an impossible situation in this committee, please
bring in time allocation?

Mr. Blenkarn: For two reasons. First of all, if the concept of
Parliament is to improve the status of committees, the last thing
you want to do is to have to go beg before ministers of the Crown
to move motions of closure.

The Chairman: Time allocation, sir. There is a distinction.

Mr. Blenkarn: Well, whatever.

Secondly, if you do that, you do not solve the prob.lem. bepause
once that time allocation motion is passed, there is nothing to
prevent another motion in the committee.

Mr. Milliken: There is.

Mr. Blenkarn: After the time allocation is over.

Mr. Milliken: What the time allocation motion in the
House does is require the committee to report by such.—and—
such a day. So you have to; you have no choice. As chairman,
you have to enforce that order in the committee. You have
to say the House is directing me to report this by a House order
that comes to the committee, requiring the committee to report.
That is the advantage of the procedure the chairman just
outlined.

Mr. Fontana: Do we really want to go back to the time,
obviously before I was here. . .but in light of the McGrath report,
in the spirit of committee reform, and everything else, do you
want the committees to be extensions of the House of
Commons? As you know, Mr. Chairman, and as Don kqows.}he
committees work most of the time. in fact 90% of the time. in a
very co-operative way.

To tell you the truth, what happened at thevﬁ‘n.ance
committee was probably a rare occasion, but it was npuated
by, obviously, a government member who wanted to impose
time allocation because of the urgency of getting the

[Traduction)

Allons directement au coeur du sujet. A votre avis,
quelles regles devrions-nous adopter pour faciliter la tache
des comité et du Parlement, non pas la tiche des présidents
de comités, mais la tdche du Parlement, et pour faciliter
¢galement les choses pour le public canadien? Qu'est-ce qui
cloche avec notre Reéglement? Comment devrions-nous chan-
ger les régles? Quelles sont vos recommandations? Clest
pourquoi vous €tes des notres ce Soir.

M. Blenkarn: Je crois qu'on devrait avoir une régle spéciale
pour I'imposition de la cloture en comité.

Le président: Toute décision serait renvoyée a la Chambre
des communes.

M. Blenkarn: Justement, dans ces circonstances. cette
décision ne devrait pas étre renvoyée a la Chambre des
communes.

Le président: D'apres le Réglement, un ministre peut se
lever & la Chambre et demander T'attribution du temps pour
un comité. Cette possibilité figure déja au Reéglement.
Pourquoi devrions-nous changer cela, et pourquoi vous ou
moi, a titre de président de comité, devrions-nous avoir le droit
de le faire de fagon indépendante? Pourquoi ne pas simplement
s'adresser a un ministre et lui dire: il y a une situation impossible
au sein de mon comité: je vous en prie, proposez I'attribution du
temps?

M. Blenkarn: Il y a deux bonnes raisons. Tout d’abord, si le
concept du Parlement vise a améliorer le statut des comités. la
derniére chose que vous voulez faire, c'est d’avoir a supplier un
ministre pour qu'il présente une motion de cloture.

Le président: Une motion d"attribution du temps. Il y a une
différence.

M. Blenkarn: Appelez cela comme vous voulez.

Deuxiemement, si vous le faites, vous ne réglez pas le
probleme, parce qu'une fois la motion d'attribution du temps
adoptée, rien n'empéche que I'on présente une autre motion au
comité.

M. Milliken: Si.

M. Blenkarn: Une fois que I'attribution du temps est faite.

M. Milliken: La motion d’attribution du temps présentée
a la Chambre stipule que le comité doit présenter un rapport
pour une date donnée. Vous devez le faire, vous n’avez pas
le choix. A titre de président. vous devez vous assurer que le
comité respecte cet ordre. Vous devez dire que la Chambre vous
ordonne de présenter un rapport pour une date donnée. C'est
I'avantage qu'offre la procédure que vient de décrire le
président.

M. Fontana: Faut-il vraiment en revenir au temps, évidem-
ment, avant que je ne sois €lu. . . Mais compte tenu de ce qu'on
proposait dans le rapport McGrath, dans I'esprit de la réforme
des comités. et toutes les autres choses, voulez-vous que le
comité ne soit qu'une prolongation de la Chambre des
communes? Comme vous le savez, monsieur le président, et
comme Don le sait également, les comités travaillent de fagcon
positive, les députés collaborent, 90 p. 100 du temps.

Pour étre honnéte. ce qui s'est produit au Comité des
finances. c'était probablement quelque chose de rare., qui a
¢té lancé par—c'est évident—un député du gouvernement qui
voulait imposer I'attribution du temps en raison du fait qu'il
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legislation through. The rules seem to be clear that the
House can always be the main body by which to impose
certain restrictions on committees. But if you want to keep
some good decorum in committee and the co-operative
approach amongst committee members from all parties, it would
seem to me you should allow the committees to determine their
own rules at the outset in an amicable fashion. without having
to do what Don has suggested, have a Standing Order for all
committees that time allocation is an inherent part of procedure.

* 2000

Mr. Blenkarn: Our procedure, though, is separate from the
House’s.

Mr. Fontana: I think that would be counterproductive. The
hatchet approach of having a minister in the House of Commons
determine the time allocation for committee is probably the
more democratic way of doing it.

Mr. Blenkarn: I do not know. Do you think so?

The Chairman: Mr. Fontana, your comments are quite
appropriate. I agree with them, and I do not want this thing to
get out of hand. The idea is “if it ain’t broke, don’t fix it”.

Mr. Blenkarn is telling us it is broke, and that is what I want
to hear about. We need to know whether this is a unique situation
or not, whether it could come up again. I do not believe filibusters
belong in committees. For a filibuster or an obvious attempt at
publicity to go on for 31 hours—is that reasonable, even in your
mind, Mr. Angus? I doubt it.

Mr. Angus: I was hoping for a little longer, actually.

The Chairman: Is there a change in the rules we can make that
will be fairer to all parties, fairer to committee chairmen? At any
time any committee chairman could find himself in the position
Mr. Blenkarn found himself in. Is there a solution? Was it a
unique situation, or was it not? If it was unique, then what are
we looking at?

Mr. Angus: I think your remarks are quite valid, but we
have to remember that since the McGrath reform the
opposition parties have given up a fair number of tactical
advantages. We can no longer have bell-ringing ad nauseam;
we have given up other procedural rules that allowed us to
talk to the House. We have been forced to look beyond the
House for means of attempting to thwart the implementation
of government policy. That leaves us with the committee.
And that leads to the filibuster that the finance committee
experienced. Should we be giving up anything more? Should that
tactic be there for certain items we feel strongly about? You say
it was for publicity; we say it was for protest. Actually, it was a bit
of both.

[Translation)

fallait absolument adopter cette loi le plus tot possible. Le
Réglement semble indiquer clairement que la Chambre peut
toujours étre I'organisme principal qui impose certaines
restrictions aux comités. Cependant, si vous voulez qu’il y ait
décorum au sein des comités et qu'il y ait collaboration entre les
membres du comité représentant tous les partis, il me semble
que vous devrez permettre aux comités de déterminer leurs
propres reglements a I'amiable au début des réunions, sans
qu’on ait besoin de faire ce qu'a dit Don, soit avoir pour chaque
comit¢ un Réglement faisant de I'attribution du temps une
partie inhérente de la procédure.

M. Blenkarn: Cependant, notre procédure est bien distincte
de celle de la Chambre.

M. Fontana: Je crois que ce ne serait pas une facon productive
de procéder. Il est probablement plus démocratique de
demander a un ministre a la Chambre d'invoquer I'attribution
du temps pour le comité.

M. Blenkarn: Je ne sais pas. Pensez-vous vraiment que c’est
plus démocratique?

Le président: Monsieur Fontana, vos commentaires sont
appropriés. Je suis d'accord avec ce que vous avez dit, et je ne
veux pas qu'on perde tout controle de la situation. Apres tout, s'il
n'y a rien qui cloche, nous n'avons rien a modifier

M. Blenkarn nous dit qu'il y a quelque chose qui cloche, et
c'est justement ce dont nous voulons entendre parler. Nous
avons besoin de savoir s'il s’agit d’'une facon unique ou pas, de
savoir si cela pourrait se produire a nouveau. Je ne crois pas qu'il
devrait y avoir obstruction systématique en comité. Qu'une
obstruction ou une recherche de publicité se prolonge pendant
31 heures—est-ce raisonnable d’aprés vous, monsieur Angus?
Jen doute.

M. Angus: J'aurais espéré que cela dure un peu plus
longtemps.

Le président: Pourrions-nous modifier le Reglement de
fagon qu'il soit juste pour tous les partis, et pour les présidents
des comités? A tout moment, un président de comité pourrait se
retrouver dans la position dans laquelle s'est trouvée M.
Blenkarn. Y a-t-il une solution? Etait-ce une situation unique?
Si c'est le cas, pourquoi nous pencher sur la question?

M. Angus: Je crois que vos commentaires sont fondés.
mais nous devons nous rappeler que depuis la réforme
McGrath, les partis de I'opposition ont dii céder un certain
nombre d'avantages tactiques. Nous ne pouvons plus laisser
sonner les cloches pendant des heures; nous avons abandonné
d'autres régles de procédure qui nous permettaient de
prendre la parole a la Chambre. Nous avons di trouver des
moyens, autre que la Chambre des communes. pour essayer
d'empécher la mise en application de politiques gouvernementa-
les. Ce qui nous reste. ce sont les comités. C'est pourquoi il y a
eu obstruction au sein du Comité des finances. Devrions-nous
céder d'autres avantages? Cette tactique ne devrait-elle pas étre
1a pour les questions qui nous tiennent & coeur? Vous dites que
nous avons fait de 1'obstruction pour avoir de la publicité; nous
disons que nous I'avons fait parce que nous voulions contester.
De fait. nous I'avons fait un peu pour ces deux raisons.
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Mr. Milliken: On what authority did Mr. Blenkarn make this
ruling that was so provocative? What was the basis of it?

Mr. Blenkarn: We used the Lachance precedent of 1984.
This took place in the justice committee in exactly the same
circumstances, though the debate was not so long. They had a
closure motion before the committee. and the committee was
sitting for hour and half stretches. In the third meeting of a
committee, Lachance decided to make a declaration. The Chair
was challenged; the Chair was sustained: and that became the
order of closure.

Mr. Milliken: Tell me what order you made.

® 2005

Mr. Blenkarn: I did exactly the same thing. I made a closure
order in exactly the same fashion as Lachance did.

Mr. Milliken: What did you say?

Mr. Blenkarn: It was almost word-for-word the same type of
wording. I do not have it in front of me, but what I said is in the
Minutes of Proceedings and Evidence that were directed here. It
was almost exactly the same wording as the Lachance motion of

1984.

Mr. Milliken: You made your ruling; there was an appeal and
a new motion was put to the committee. I understand. The other
motion was withdrawn and a new motion of closure was put, in
effect.

Mr. Blenkarn: No, my motion was a chairman’s ruling.

Mr. Milliken: Yes.

Mr. Blenkarn: It considerably changed the original motion
put by Mr. Soetens in the committee. SO we went from there.
Then the motion, the chairman was challenged.

Mr. Milliken: You withdrew Mr. Soetens motion?

Mr. Blenkarn: I declared Mr. Seutens motion to be withdrawn
in exactly the same fashion as Mr. Lachance declared the motion
in his committee to be withdrawn and I then proceeded with my
own motion.

Mr. Milliken: Which you moved.

Mr. Blenkarn: Not a motion. I suppose 1t would be a}
chairman’s order. It was appealed and then became the order o
the committee.

Mr. Milliken: By virtue of having been appealed?

Mr. Blenkarn: That is right. '

Mr. Milliken: Not because it was ever put to the committee
and decided upon. )

Mr. Blenkarn: That is right. It was put to the committee by
an appeal of the order.

Mr. Milliken: If T was on the committee. I would. of course,
want to do it that way.

Mr. Blenkarn: That is exactly what happened in the Lachance
case.

[Traduction)

M. Milliken: De quel droit M. Blenkarn a-t-il rendu cette
décision? De quoi s'est-il inspiré?

M. Blenkarn: Nous nous sommes servis du précédent
Lachance de 1984. L'affaire Lachance s’est produite au sein
du Comité de la justice dans des circonstances identiques,
quoique dans l'affaire Lachance la discussion n'ait pas duré
aussi longtemps. Ils ont présenté une motion de cloture, et le
comité se réunissait pendant des périodes d'une heure et demie.
Lors de la troisieme réunion du comité, M. Lachance a décidé
de faire une déclaration. On a contesté la décision du président,
la décision a été maintenue, et il y a eu ordre de cloture.

M. Milliken: Dites-moi ce que vous avez décidé.

M. Blenkarn: J'ai fait exactement la méme chose. J'ai
présenté un ordre de cloture de la méme fagon que I'avait fait le
président Lachance.

M. Milliken: Qu'avez-vous dit?

M. Blenkarn: Presque textuellement la méme chose. Je n'ai
pas le texte sous les yeux, mais ce que j'ai dit figure dans les
Procés—verbaux et témoignages que 1'on vous a envoyés. C'est
presque exactement le méme texte que la motion Lachance de
1984.

M. Milliken: Vous avez rendu votre décision; on a interjeté
appel, et une nouvelle motion a été présentée au comité, si jai
bien compris. L'autre motion a été retirée, et une nouvelle
motion de cloture a été présentée.

M. Blenkarn: Non, ma motion était une décision du
président.

M. Milliken: Je vois.
M. Blenkarn: Cette décision changeait de fagon considérable
la motion originale présentée par M. Soetens au comité, et nous

avons procédé a partir de ce texte. Puis cette motion a été
contestée.

M. Milliken: Vous avez retiré la motion de M. Soetens?

M. Blenkarn: J'ai déclaré que la motion de M. Soetens était
retirée, de la méme fagon que M. Lachance avait déclaré que la
motion qu'étudiait son comité était retirée. Puis j'ai présenté ma
propre motion.

M. Milliken: Vous I'avez présentée.

M. Blenkarn: Il ne s’agit pas d'une motion. Je suppose qu'il
s'agit plutdt d'une décision du président. On I'a constestée, et
c'est devenu la décision du comité.

M. Milliken: Parce qu’on I'avait contestée?
M. Blenkarn: C’est exact.

M. Milliken: Non pas parce qu'elle avait été présentée au
comité, qui a pris une décision.

M. Blenkarn: C'est exact. Puisqu'on I'a contestée. la motion
a été soumise au comité.

M. Milliken: Si je faisais partie du comité, je voudrais
évidemment qu'on procéde de cette fagon.

M. Blenkarn: C'est justement ce qui s'est produit dans
l'affaire Lachance.
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Mr. Milliken: Yes. We may want to say something about that.

I would like to follow up. Your sole precedent for this action
was the Lachance case.

Mr. Blenkarn: That is correct.

Mr. Milliken: You had no rule or other authority upon which
you were relying in making that decision.

Mr. Blenkarn: Oh, the basic right of a chairman of any
meeting to move the committee or the meeting forward by taking
action when it is apparent nothing would be accomplished.

The Chairman: Hold it right there, sir! Where is it written that
a chairman of a committee of the House of Commons has any
authority to do that?

Mr. Blenkarn: The chairman or speaker of any body has a
basic requirement to keep order and to solve issues when there
is no apparent solution for those issues by moving the
proceedings forward.

The Chairman: By making an order, sir?
Mr. Blenkarn: Indeed; that comes from—
The Chairman: But what is the authority for that order?

Mr. Blenkarn: The original debate is involved, and comes
from Great Britain. The debate was an effort of the Speaker in
the British House at the time Irish nationalists were blocking the
activity of the House by continually speaking and by filibustering.
The British Speaker stepped in and terminated the filibuster.

Our Speaker obviously does not do that any longer because
we now have rules, but this took place before there were rules.
We have a situation in which there were no rules and therefore
the inherent obligation of the Chair is to terminate the ability of
the group. . .get to a vote.

The Chairman: Sir, you are saying you took the rules into your
own hands—

Mr. Blenkarn: That is right, yes.
The Chairman: —and you made a decision without—
Mr. Blenkarn: Oh, yes.
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The Chairman: —without precedent on the whole area.
Mr. Blenkarn: No, no, no!
The Chairman: With your precedent, sir, I do not agree.

Mr. Blenkarn: The precedent was there, and if you go back
to Madam Sauvé, after the bell-ringing affair she made a fairly
substantial long speech in the House, setting out what she felt she
should perhaps have done. What she felt she should have
perhaps done was to have gone back into the Chamber at a
certain point and called the vote, regardless of whether Whips
came in, or other parties came in.

[Translation]

M. Milliken: Je vois. On voudra peut-étre dire quelque chose
la-dessus.

Jaimerais poursuivre. Votre seul précédent pour cette
décision était I'affaire Lachance.

M. Blenkarn: C'est exact.

M. Milliken: Vous ne vous étes pas fondé sur une autorité
particuliére ou sur un réglement particulier.

M. Blenkarn: Sur un droit fondamental du président d’un
comité, soit le droit de s'assurer que la réunion se déroule
convenablement et de prendre des mesures s'il est évident qu'on
ne peut rien accomplir sans cela.

Le président: Un instant, monsieur! Ou dit-on que le
président d'un comité de la Chambre des communes a ce
pouvoir?

M. Blenkarn: Le président de toute organisation a I'obliga-
tion fondamentale de maintenir l'ordre et de régler les
problemes lorsque aucune solution ne semble s’offrir. Il doit
donc s'assurer que la réunion se poursuit.

Le président: En présentant un ordre, monsieur?
M. Blenkarn: En effet. Cela découle. . .

Le président: Mais qui vous donne le pouvoir de présenter cet
ordre?

M. Blenkarn: Cette décision vient de la Grande-Bretagne, du
président de la Chambre britannique, a I'époque ou des
nationalistes irlandais bloquaient toute activité de la Chambre
en prenant continuellement la parole et en faisant de
I'obstruction. Le président britannique est intervenu et a mis fin
a cette obstruction.

Il est évident que notre Président ne procéde pas de cette
facon parce que nous avons maintenant un réglement, mais cela
s'est produit avant qu'il n'existe de réglement. Nous avons une
situation ou il n'y avait aucun réglement, et I'obligation
inhérente du président était donc de mettre fin a cette activité
de la part de ce groupe. . .d’obtenir un vote.

Le président: Monsieur, vous dites que vous avez pris le
réglement et que. . .

M. Blenkarn: C’est exact.
Le président: . . .vous avez pris une décision sans. . .
M. Blenkarn: Ah, oui.

Le président: . . .sans précédent.
M. Blenkarn: Pas du tout!

Le président: Je ne suis pas d'accord avec le précédent que
vous avez choisi.

M. Blenkarn: Le précédent existait, et si vous remontez a M™
Sauvé, apres l'affaire des cloches, elle a prononcé un discours
assez long a la Chambre, disant ce qu'elle pensait qu'elle aurait
peut-étre di faire. Elle pensait qu'elle aurait dii retourner a la
Chambre a un moment donné et procéder au scrutin sans tenir
compte des whips ou des autres partis présents.



9-5-1990

Priviléges et des élections

[Texte]

The Chairman: Both of us having been there at the time, Mr.
Blenkarn—

Mr. Blenkarn: The elected Speaker had the obligation to stop
this blockage of the House's business.

The Chairman: Mr. Blenkarn, we were both there at the time.

Mr. Blenkarn: That is right.

The Chairman: And as the Speaker of the House at that time,
Madam Sauvé said that the House had got itself into this
problem, the House itself could get itself out of this problem.
You, sir, did not do that.

Mr. Blenkarn: Yes, but that is what she said after I said that.
Her original position was that the House got itself into this
problem and will have to get itself out—I am going to wash my
hands of it. Her subsequent declarations, after the matter was
over, were quite different.

The Chairman: No. I do not think—

Mr. Blenkarn: I am talking about her subsequent declaration.

The Chairman: I am not challenging you, sir. What I am
curious about is what rules you yourself were—

Mr. Blenkarn: You and I both were there at the time, and you
and I both were intimately involved.

The Chairman: You, perhaps, more intimately than I was. I
try to avoid these confrontations.

Mr. Blenkarn: Maybe I was.

Mr. Fontana: I think the issue is that we can forget about the
fact of what Mr. Blenkarn had done and on what basis he u§ed
it, because the Speaker has already spoken to that on the points
of privilege, and essentially deemed that the order of the
chairman was proper and in order.

Mr. Blenkarn: That is right. That is right.

Mr. Fontana: Mr. Fraser has already done that. What is before
us, to use your phrase, is, if it is not broken, why fix it? It would
seem to me that Don has proposed, in the absence of any
rules—because he believes there are no rules—that one should
. make rules. :

My opinion is that the exception is really what we are t_alkmg
about. To a certain extent, committ€es work on the basis of a
relationship different from the one that exists in thc; House of
Commons and so whether or not we want to deal with the rule
or the exception becomes what we have to discuss today.

You have been here a lot longer, Don. You have been a
member of that finance committee. you have dealt with anumber
of contentious bills, and you have never had to use that recourse
before. Is it—

Mr. Blenkarn: I hope to never have to use 1t agam..The
problem I find around here is that, as Mr. Angus pointed
out, a procedure becomes open and thgn does someone else
use that procedure? I guess my committee men1ber§. on all
sides, are telling you what we did, and that we donot gh;(nkl whi;
we did is really the right thing to happen. Wha} we thin fs 10111] .
happen is that there should be more appropylatg mles or this
situation when it occurs. because—let us face 1t—.1f it does occur
again someone else s likely to do exactly what I dl.d. ;md is gmgg
to say that since Lachance did it and Blenkarn did it. I caan do
1t.

[Traduction)

Le président: Monsieur Blenkarn, nous étions tous deux a la
Chambre a I'époque. . .

M. Blenkarn: Le Président €lu avait I'obligation de mettre fin
a cette obstruction des travaux de la Chambre.

Le président: Monsieur Blenkarn, nous étions tous deux a la
Chambre a I'époque.

M. Blenkarn: C’est exact.

Le président: Et comme Président de la Chambre a I'époque,
M™ Sauvé a dit que la Chambre avait causé elle-méme le
probléme, et quelle pouvait se tirer elle-méme d’affaire. Ce
n'est pas ce que vous avez fait.

M. Blenkarn: Oui, mais c'est ce qu'elle a dit. A I'origine, elle
était d’avis que la Chambre se trouvait dans ce pétrin de sa
propre initiative, et devrait s’en tirer seule—elle a décidé de s'en
laver les mains. Une fois que la question a été réglée, ses
déclarations ont été bien différentes.

Le président: Non, je ne crois pas. . .

M. Blenkarn: Je parle de ce qu'elle a dit par la suite.

Le président: Je ne doute pas de ce que vous dites, monsieur.
J'aimerais savoir quels réglements vous-méme avez. . .

M. Blenkarn: Nous étions tous deux la a Pépoque, et nous
avons participé de pres a cette discussion.

Le président: Vous étiez peut-étre mélé de plus pres que moi
a cette affaire. J'essaie d'éviter ces confrontations.

M. Blenkarn: C'est peut-étre vrai.

M. Fontana: Je crois que nous pouvons ignorer ce qu'a fait M.
Blenkarn et les raisons pour lesquelles il a procédé de cette
facon, parce que le Président de la Chambre a déja parlé des
questions de privilege et a décidé que la décision du président
était appropriée et recevable.

M. Blenkarn: C'est exact. C'est vrai.

M. Fontana: M. Fraser I'a déja fait. Il faut donc se demander,
comme vous l'avez dit plus tot, pourquoi nous devrions
intervenir si rien ne cloche. Il me semble que Don a proposé, vu
qu'il n'y a pas de réglement—parce qu'il croit qu'il n'y a aucun
réglement a cet égard—d’en créer.

A mon avis, il s'agit vraiment d’une exception. Dans une
certaine mesure, les comités travaillent en fonction de rapports
qui sont différents de ceux que I'on retrouve a la Chambre. I
nous faut donc décider aujourd’hui si nous voulons discuter de
la régle ou de I'exception.

Don, vous étes a la Chambre depuis bien plus longtemps.
Vous avez été membre de ce Comité des finances. et vous avez

eu a étudier nombre de projets de loi qui ont suscité de vives

controverses, €t vous n'avez jamais eu recours a une telle
pratique auparavant. Est-ce. . .

M. Blenkarn: J'espere que je n'aurai plus jamais besoin

d'avoir recours a une telle pratique. Le probléme est, comme

I'a signalé M. Angus, qu'une procédure devient ouverte, et
comment s'en sert-on? Je suppose que les membres de mon
comité, de tous les partis. vous disent ce qu'on a fait, et que nous
ne croyons pas que cette facon de procéder devrait se répéter. |

Nous croyons qu’il devrait y avoir un réglement plus approprié
pour ce genre de situation lorsqu'elle se produit, parce

que—nous devons le reconnaitre —si cela se produit & nouveau, |
quelqu'un fera exactement ce que j'ai fait et dira que, puisque

Lachance et Blenkarn I'ont fait, il peut le faire également.
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Mr. Fontana: But at what point do you use the trigger? I can
see it now. The first moment of the meeting to deal with a bill,
the chairman can make an order prescribing the agenda to meet
certain time allocations, to meet certain time requirements—at
the very first instance lay out an agenda which in a sense stifles
all kinds of. . .

If you were to use that rule, it becomes important at what point
the chairman can trigger that rule. One has to take into account
what is reasonable, in terms of making sure the opposition. . .and
bearing in mind that witnesses have to be taken into account.

® 2015

I will tell you what was repugnant to me and perhaps
even to Don, was that while all the skirmish was going on
the witnesses who still had to be heard were there and were
never heard because of the guillotine action. One has to be
respectful that in committees, unlike the House of Commons,
you are dealing front and centre with the public and with
witnesses, and one should have common courtesy in how you
deal with the public and with those witnesses. You do not have
that opportunity in the House of Commons, but that is why the
committee is a different animal altogether and should be treated
in a different way.

The Chairman: It is a very valuable point.

Mr. Blenkarn: Mr. Chairman, I believe that you ought
to consider seriously a draft set of orders for our committee
to operate under that takes into account as many situations
as foreseeable so that you do not create an unfair burden on
the opposition and an unfair burden on the government side
of a committee. Because as we use committees more and
more and the committee end of the House becomes more
important, you may wind up with more challenges and more
action in the committee. It is important that the committee
operate effectively, and the position at the present time that a
person or people can prevent a matter ever coming to a vote by
filibustering the matter ad nauseam is just an unacceptable
situation in a parliamentary sense.

The Chairman: Is there anyone here who would object to a
House rule to the effect that if witnesses are scheduled to be
heard, they be heard, and that all other business cease and desist
until after the witnesses have spoken?

Mr. Angus: I have no problem with that, Mr. Chairman,
provided that if a committee was into a situation like the finance
committee was, in effect the filibuster would be suspended.

The Chairman: That is all I am suggesting as a common
courtesy, because I think it is wrong that a filibuster continue if
there is some person there who has come and is scheduled to
appear.

Mr. Blenkarn: That is what happened on two occasions. One
was a motion by Mr. Soetens that led to the 31 hours; the other
was a motion by Mr. Rodriguez that on two separate occasions
blocked witnesses who had been legitimately called.

[Translation)

M. Fontana: Mais dans quelles circonstances avoir recours a
de telles choses? Je peux imaginer la situation. Dés le début
d’une réunion portant sur I'étude d'un projet de loi, le président
peut dire qu'il faut respecter certaines attributions du temps, deés
que I'on établit le programme pour le comité. Cela empéche a
ce moment-I1a toutes sortes de choses. . .

Si vous vous servez de ce réglement, il devient important de
déterminer dans quelles circonstances et a quel moment on peut
le faire. Il faut tenir compte de ce qui est raisonnable, il faut
s'assurer que I'opposition. . . Il ne faut pas oublier non plus qu'il
faut entendre les commentaires des témoins.

Quant a moi, jai trouvé répugnant, et peut-étre que
Don est de mon avis, que les témoins ne puissent étre
entendus a cause de nos querelles. Contrairement a la
Chambre des communes, les comités ont directement affaire
au public et aux témoins, et il faudrait les traiter avec un
minimum de courtoisie. Il faut bien comprendre que les comités
ne fonctionnent pas selon les mémes régles que la Chambre des
communes.

Le président: C'est tres juste.

M. Blenkarn: Je crois, monsieur le président, qu'il
faudrait envisager sérieusement de préparer, a l'intention du
comité, une ébauche de réglements qui prendrait en compte
le maximum de situations prévisibles pour éviter d'imposer
un fardeau trop lourd aussi bien aux membres du comité
représentant l'opposition qu'a ceux qui représentent le
gouvernement. En effet, les comités risquent de devenir le
théatre d'interventions et de défis de plus en plus nombreux,
étant donné que les comités revétent désormais une plus grande
importance et que I'on fait de plus en plus souvent appel a eux.
Il est important de préserver I'efficacité des comités, et il est tout
simplement inacceptable, dans un régime parlementaire, qu'un
individu ou un groupe puisse, en faisant de I'obstruction,
empécher le comité de passer au vote.

Le président: Est-ce que quelqu'un s'oppose a l'adoption
d'un réglement visant a garantir I'audition des témoins prévus et
a suspendre toutes les autres activités jusqu'a ce que les témoins
aient été entendus?

M. Angus: Je suis tout a fait d’accord avec cela, monsieur le
président, a condition que toutes les manoeuvres d’obstruction
soient suspendues si survient une situation telle que celle qu'a
connue le Comité des finances.

Le président: Je propose cette régle de courtoisie élémentaire
parce qu'il me semble regrettable d'autoriser des manoeuvres
d'obstruction qui empéchent la présentation des témoignages.

M. Blenkarn: C'est ce qui est arrivé a deux reprises. La
premiere fois. la motion de M. Soetens a donné lieu a une
obstruction qui a duré 31 heures: ensuite, la motion de M.
Rodriguez a, a deux reprises, empéché de témoigner les témoins
qui avaient été appelés a comparaitre.
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The Chairman: The thought of a rule, and it is only a
thought, is that if witnesses are scheduled to be heard, they
be heard, and if the House is called to vote or something,
where you must go to the Chamber to vote, the witness is
heard immediately following the vote, and cover those kinds of
circumstances where. . .but if the building is burning down, the
committee obviously does not sit and hear a witness. If the
building burns down, you go outside.

Covering those kinds of situations that a witness be heard
when they are scheduled, if that has been agreed by the
committee before in terms of scheduling witnesses, that would

be one point.

The other point—Mr. Blenkarn, correct me if T am wrong—is
that I believe you feel that after 10 hours, shall we say. it could
be 15, it could be 5, after so many hours of debate on a particular
point, on a motion or something, the chairman should have some
discretion in terms of saying that is it; now we will take the vote.

Is that what you are after?
Mr. Blenkarn: That is really what I am saying, yes.

The Chairman: May I hear any comments on that proposal?

Mr. Angus: Mr. Chairman, because of my ea.rlier comments
about the fact that we have given up our tools in the House, I
cannot see us supporting an automatic time limit.

The Chairman: Wait a minute; you misunderstand me. It is
not an automatic time limit. It is simply a limit in terms of how
long anything can go on, and it would be up to the chairman to
call the vote. But if you win the vote, that is it.

Mr. Angus: That would prevent a filibuster on a particular
motion.

Mr. Blenkarn: It would prevent a filibuster beyond a certain
time, and obviously if there is any limit on a filibuster. the
filibuster loses its meaning.
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The Chairman: Then, as my clerk points out, it simply mezns
you propose another motion at that point and you have another

ten hours.
Mr. Angus: Then you are fooling yourself.

Mr. Thorkelson: Iain, is your purpose, as you said. to thl:vart
the House of Commons? Canadian governments over ime . ave
had increasing workloads of legislation. Is not th; purpose ob?m‘);
private member or the House of Commons to give every subjec

a full public debate? At some point that debate is over.

You are talking about tools to thwart the House.ﬂ? ev ?;Jewﬁ;g
on the opposition side, I would think that as long isf You have
received a complete hearing that is all one can as lors o Fwise
to make your case to the public, not thwart theTuic '

[Traduction]

Le président: Le principe d'une telle régle, c’est que les
témoins prévus doivent étre entendus. En cas d'interruption
pour un vote a la Chambre, les témoins seront entendus au
retour, afin d'éviter de telles situations...en cas d'incendie,
bien entendu, le comité ne sera pas tenu de continuer 'audition
des témoins. S’il y a le feu, il faut évacuer le batiment.

La premiére chose, cest de garantir I'audition des témoins
que le comité a convoqués.

Ensuite—que M. Blenkarn me corrige s'il n'est pas d’ac-
cord—vous demandez que le président ait le pouvoir de mettre
fin au débat pour passer au vote apres 10, 15 ou 5 heures de débat
sur une question. Est-ce que cela correspond a ce que vous
demandez?

M. Blenkarn: Oui, c'est exactement ce que je demande.

Le président: Les autres membres du comité ont-ils des
commentaires a présenter au sujet de cette proposition?

M. Angus: Monsieur le président, je ne crois pas que nous
puissions appuyer une limite de temps automatique, étant
donné, comme je l'ai dit tout a I'heure, que nous avons
abandonné nos moyens d'intervention a la Chambre.

Le président: Vous m’avez mal compris. Il n’est pas question
d’'une limite de temps automatique. Il s’agit tout simplement
pour le président de limiter la durée des débats et d’exiger le
vote. Cependant, si vous gagnez au vote, c'est fini.

M. Angus: Cette régle empécherait I'obstruction sur telle ou
telle motion.

M. Blenkarn: Elle empécherait les manoeuvres d’obstruction
de dépasser un certain temps et, bien entendu, des lors qu'on
appose une limite. I'obstruction perd sa signification.

Le président: La greffiere me signale qu'il suffit a ce
moment-la de proposer une autre motion pour disposer d'une
autre période de 10 heures.

M. Angus: Alors, votre régle ne sert a rien..

M. Thorkelson: Comme vous I'avez dit, avez-vous l'intention
de limiter le débat a la Chambre des communes? Les
gouvernements canadiens doivent examiner des textes égislatifs
de plus en plus nombreux. N'est-il pas du devoir des députés et
de la Chambre des communes de garantir que toutes les
questions soient débattues pleinement et en public? Au bout
d'un certain temps, le débat s’acheve de lui-méme.

Vous parlez d'aller a I'encontre des régles de la Chambre.
Méme si j'étais dans 'opposition, je ne réclamerais rien de plus
que I'examen complet de la question débattue. Il faut présenter
la question au public, et non pas contourner le Réglement de la
Chambre.

1
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I know we on the government side have done that in the past,
but it comes to a point where we have increasing numbers of
legislative items before us and we are backed up. Now it is taking
14 and 18 months for some pieces to go through the
system—more now with the Senate. We have to be able to
manage the issue in an acceptable way so that public debate is
heard.

Mr. Angus: I have a couple of comments. First of all, we do
not thwart the rules of the House.

Mr. Thorkelson: Well, I used that in quotes.

Mr. Angus: No, we thwart the will of the government. We use
the rules of the House.

The Chairman: Use the rules of the House, yes.

Mr. Angus: Let us face it—and I am not being partisan when
I say this—the current government has used closure in the House
more often—

Mr. Thorkelson: Time allocation. Time allocation.

Mr. Angus: Whatever you call it. You have restricted the
amount of debating time—

Mr. Milliken: Thirteen times.

Mr. Angus: —more than any previous government in the past.

As for the situation with the finance committee, it is the
second time in 120 years that a chairman has seen fit to take
this approach. I recognize that both have happened in the
last six years—1984 and 1990. I cannot remember the item
that was before the committee before, but the reality is that
you would be hard pressed, no matter what side of the issue
you are on. .. The bill in question is probably one of the most
contentious bills that Parliament has seen in a long time in
terms of public opposition. It has even greater public opposition
than the free trade deal, on which an election was fought. You
have to recognize that opposition members will seek the tools
that are available to them. . .the public pressure. We needed to
buy time in the House to allow that public pressure to increase
on the government—

Mr. Thorkelson: Iain, I want to address your other point. You
said that there are increasingly fewer tools to thwart the
government in the House of Commons. Yes, that may be true,

1 but on the other hand what has balanced it is that committees
are increasingly powerful.

Mr. Angus: That is a myth.

«  Mr. Thorkelson: Look at all the changes that happened in the
GST. That is not a myth.

Mr. Angus: Oh, come on it is—

¢  Mr. Blenkarn: We changed that GST bill around like there
1 was no tomorrow.

¢ Mr. Fontana: There are very few chairmen like you. I have sat
in the committee and, yes, you are more than fair and, yes,

y changes do occur. But in most committees nothing happens. It

y is only a myth.

t

[Translation)

Je sais que les députés conservateurs ont déja utilisé de telles
tactiques, mais nous en sommes actuellement a un point tel que
nous avons pris du retard dans I'examen des textes de loi de plus
en plus nombreux qui nous sont fournis. Actuellement, il faut de
14 a 18 mois pour que certains textes de loi soient adoptés. C'est
encore plus long avec le Sénat. Nous devons étre en mesure de
proposer un débat public raisonnable.

M. Angus: J'aimerais faire quelques commentaires. Tout
d’abord, nous n'allons pas a I'encontre du Réglement de la
Chambre.

M. Thorkelson: J'ai dit cela entre guillemets.

M. Angus: Nous utilisons le Reéglement de la Chambre pour
contrecarrer la volonté du gouvernement.

Le président: Oui, nous appliquons le Reglement de la
Chambre.

M. Angus: Il faut se rendre a I'évidence et reconnaitre que
I'actuel gouvernement a eu recours aux motions de cloture a la
Chambre plus souvent. . .

M. Thorkelson: C'était plutdt une attribution de temps.

M. Angus: Peu importe le nom quon lui donne, le
gouvernement a limité le débat sur certaines questions. . .

M. Milliken: Treize fois.
M. Angus: ..plus souvent qu'aucun gouvernement précédent.

Quant au Comité des finances, c'est la deuxieme fois en
120 ans qu'un président a jugé bon de choisir une telle
approche. Je reconnais que ces deux épisodes ont eu lieu au
cours des six derniéres années, soit en 1984 et en 1990. Je ne
me rappelle plus la question qui a ét€ débattue en comité la
premiere fois, mais il est clair que les députés se sentaient
pressés. peu importe leur opinion... Le projet de loi en
question est probablement I'un des projets les plus constestés
par le public. La population est méme plus farouchement
opposée a ce projet de loi qu'a I'’Accord de libre-échange, qui
était devenu un enjeu électoral. Vous devez reconnaitre que les
membres de 'opposition utiliseront les leviers qui sont a leur
disposition et qu'ils demanderont & la population d’exercer des
pressions. Nous devons ralentir les travaux de la Chambre pour
permettre au public d’augmenter ses pressions sur le gouverne-
ment.

M. Thorkelson: Iain, j'aimerais répondre a votre deuxiéme
point. Vous prétendez que vous disposez de moins en moins de
moyens pour contrecarrer le gouvernement a la Chambre des
communes. C'est peut-étre vrai, mais en revanche, les comités
ont de plus en plus de pouvoirs.

M. Angus: Ca, c'est un mythe.

M. Thorkelson: Et pourtant, c'est grace a eux que de
nombreuses modifications ont été apportées a la TPS.

M. Angus: Mais pas du tout. ...

M. Blenkarn: Nous avons compléetement modifié le projet de
loi sur la TPS.

M. Fontana: Il y a trés peu de présidents comme vous. J'ai
siégé dans de nombreux comités et j'ai pu constater que vous
étes extrémement juste et que certains comités parviennent a
imposer des changements. Pourtant, il ne se passe rien dans la
plupart des comités. C'est un mythe de croire qu'ils apportent
des changements.
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Mr. Thorkelson: It was Don Blenkarn and the committee who
made those changes, not the legal people from the finance
department.

Mr. Angus: In fairness, those are minuscule changes.

Mr. Blenkarn: They were not minuscule. They were very,
very—
Mr. Angus: The reality is that we have still a GST.

Mr. Blenkarn: That is right, but—

Mr. Thorkelson: As you say, there are fewer tools, but there
are more opportunities—

Mr. Blenkarn: Just because you did not stop the bill, it does
not mean—

Mr. Thorkelson: —for private members to make their cases
through changes to the House and through House reform.

The Chairman: Wait a minute, hold it, gentlemen. I am
not debating the GST here. We are debating the rules of
committees. You may feel they should be more generous for
opposition. The government may feel they should be tighter
for opposition. The purpose of this committee is to look at the
situation and determine whether in the best interests of the
Canadian people, and the best interests of the whole committee
system, this or that be done, if anything. That is all I am
concerned with. Mr. Angus, whether your party dislikes the GST
or not is beside the point. This is—

Mr. Angus: I agree. I do not want to debate the GST tonight.

The Chairman: —a committee ruling.

® 2025

M. Fontana: Mr. Chairman, you asked the first question. and
I am not convinced that twice in 120 years means we have a
problem. Mr. Blenkarn had a problem and he dealt with it. We
did not like it. Now he comes back to say we need new rules to
ensure that it never happens again.

I suggest that in keeping with committee reform. in keeping
with segt%ing a positive flsan%ework within the committee, let the
committees deal with those matters as they see fit. Perhaps they
will learn from what Mr. Blenkarn went through on the finance
committee. At the beginning, when they are discussing a bill,

they may want to look at ways of improving it.

es which say that after ten
te. There is
as existed in

I do not think we should impose rul
hours the motion is automatically put to a vO
insufficient reason to thwart the goodwill that
committees because —

Mr. Thorkelson: That is exactly what happens when PR
a filibuster, you thwart the goodwill of the COmIIEES.

Mr. Fontana: If we are done with the witness. I am preparled
to move that at this time we see no reason to introduce new rules
in the committees to deal with this thing.

[Traduction)

M. Thorkelson: C’est 2 Don Blenkarn et aux membres du
comité que I'on doit ces changements, et non pas aux conseillers
juridiques du ministére des Finances.

M. Angus: Avouez que ces changements sont mineurs.
M. Blenkarn: Mais pas du tout, ils sont trés. . .

M. Angus: La réalité, c'est que la TPS est toujours la.
M. Blenkarn: C’est vrai, mais. . .

M. Thorkelson: Comme vous le dites, les députés ont moins
de moyens, mais plus souvent l'occasion. . .

M. Blenkarn: Ce n'est pas parce que vous n'avez pas pu
arréter le projet de loi que. . .

M. Thorkelson: ..de se faire entendre en présentant des
amendements a la Chambre et des projets de réforme.

Le président: Un instant, messieurs. Il n’est pas question
de se lancer ici dans un débat sur la TPS. Nous parlons du
Réglement des comités. Vous souhaitez qu’ils soient plus
bienveillants & T'égard de I'opposition. Le gouvernement,
quant a lui, souhaite qu'ils soient plus fermes envers 'opposi-
tion. Notre comité a pour mission d’examiner la situation et de
déterminer ce qui doit étre fait, le cas échéant, pour servir au
mieux les intéréts de la population canadienne et des comités
dans leur ensemble. C'est tout ce qui m’intéresse. Monsieur
Angus, nous ne sommes pas intéressés a savoir si votre parti est
pour ou contre la TPS. Clest. . .

M. Angus: Je suis bien d'accord avec vous; je n'ai pas
I'intention de me lancer ce soir dans un débat sur la TPS.

Le président: . . .une décision du Comité.

i

M. Fontana: Monsieur le président, vous avez posé la g

question. et je ne suis pas convaincu (ue nous ayons un
probléme parce qu'il y a eu deux obstructions en 120 ans. M.

Blenkarn a réglé lui-méme son probléme. Nous n'étions pas °

d'accord. Aujourd’hui, il revient & la charge pour demander '
I'imposition de nouvelles régles afin qu'un tel probleme ne se
reproduise plus. -

Selon moi, la réforme des comités et I'instauration d’un climat 1
positif au sein des comités exigent qu'on laisse les comités

prendre les décisions qui leur semblent appropriées en la !
matiére. L'expérience de M. Blenkarn au Comité des finances

leur sera peut-étre utile. Ils commenceront, dés les premiéres
étapes de I'examen d'un projet de loi, a chercher des moyens de |
I'améliorer. '

Je ne pense pas qu'il soit souhaitable d'imposer une régle
visant a soumettre automatiquement une motion au vote au
bout de 10 heures de débat. I n'y a pas de raison de s'en prendre
a la bonne volonté des comités. . . ;

M. Thorkelson: Et pourtant. les députés qui font de
'obstruction abusent de la bonne volonté du comité.

M. Fontana: Si nous en avons fini avec le témoin. je suis prét

a proposer une motion affirmant qu'il est inutile pour le moment ‘

d’adopter un nouveau reglement pour régler une telle situation. !
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The Chairman: Do not move it at the moment.

Mr. Angus: Actually, Mr. Chairman, I assumed we were here
to question the witness.

The Chairman: Exactly.

Mr. Angus: I have another question that I would like to put
to him, but I was sort of waiting for that process to start.

The Chairman: What, to question the witness?

Mr. Angus: Yes, we were bouncing around and I was not sure
whether now was the right time.

Mr. Milliken: Yes, I agree. We should be questioning the
witness. We can discuss this afterwards.

The Chairman: All right, Mr. Angus, question the witness.

Mr. Angus: Mr. Blenkarn, during the finance committee
hearings, did anyone from either the opposition or the
government side break any rules of the committee? And where
they were called to task for it.

Mr. Blenkarn: Yes, I had to interfere with members on both
sides who were being disorderly, that type of thing. It went on.

Mr. Angus: So it was more decorum rules.

Mr. Blenkarn: Yes, decorum issues, not anything else.

Mr. Angus: You previously indicated that you relied on the
Lachance precedent. Were you a member of that committee?

Mr. Blenkarn: No, I got the information from my clerk, who
was the clerk of the committee in the Lachance matter.

Mr. Angus: Did he volunteer that information. or did you. . .?

Mr. Blenkarn: I went after him. I said, “what do I do now?
This has gone crazy”. He told me about the precedent. Good
clerks are supposed to supply good precedents.

The Chairman: If they can find where it is written.
Mr. Angus: Is it true that at any time during the—

Mr. Blenkarn: I then took the precedent to my House Leader,
the Whip and to our party lawyer.

Mr. Angus: And they all told you go for it?

Mr. Blenkarn: No, they had a long discussion as to whether
we should use the closure motion in the House. the time
allocation motion in the House, or whether we should go this
way. We elected to go this way. So we did knowingly and with a
great deal of thought.

Mr. Angus: That is interesting, because even though this was
a standing committee—and we recognize that there are
differences between standing committees and legislative com-
mittees—in effect you were performing the role of a legislative
committee.

Mr. Blenkarn: No. I am entitled to talk to my colleagues in the
House of Commons, and I am entitled to use the legal services
available to my party, so I did it.

[Translation)

Le président: Je ne suis pas prét a accepter une telle motion.

M. Angus: D’ailleurs, monsieur le président, je croyais que
nous étions ici pour poser des questions au témoin.

Le président: C'est exact.

M. Angus: J'aimerais lui poser une autre question, mais
j'attendais qu'on me donne le feu vert.

Le président: Pour poser une question au témoin?

M. Angus: Exactement. Nous nous sommes laissés emporter
par toutes sortes de choses, et je n'étais pas stir que le moment
soit propice.

M. Milliken: Je suis d'accord. Je pense qu'on devrait poser
nos questions au témoin. Nous pourrons revenir plus tard a cette
discussion.

Le président: Tres bien. Monsieur Angus, la parole est a vous.

M. Angus: Pouvez-vous nous dire, monsieur Blenkarn, si des
députés de 'opposition ou de la majorit€ ont enfreint certaines
régles au cours des audiences du Comité des finances et si vous
avez di les rappeler a I'ordre?

M. Blenkarn: Oui, j'ai dii rappeler a l'ordre des députés
siégeant de part et d'autre de la table. Mais les difficultés ont
continué.

M. Angus: Par conséquent, il s"agissait plutdt d’infractions aux
reégles de conduite.

M. Blenkarn: Oui, c'est plutot cela.

M. Angus: Vous avez indiqué que vous vous étes appuyé sur
le précédent Lachance. Avez-vous fait partie de ce comité?

M. Blenkarn: Non, c'est le greffier qui m'a donné les
renseignements. Il avait été greffier au comité quia vécu I'affaire
Lachance.

M. Angus: Est-ce que vous lui avez demandé ces renseigne-
ments ou est-ce qu'il vous les a lui-méme proposés?

M. Blenkarn: C'est moi qui lui en ai parlé, car la situation
était devenue intolérable. Il m'a parlé du précédent. Il est
normal que les bons greffiers fournissent de bons précédents.

Le président: S'ils sont capables de les retracer!
M. Angus: Est-il vrai que pendant. . .

M. Blenkarn: J'ai présenté le précédent au leader a la
Chambre. au whip et a I'avocat de notre parti.

M. Angus: IlIs vous ont tous encouragé a l'utiliser?

M. Blenkarn: Non, il y a eu une longue discussion au cours de
laquelle nous nous sommes demandé s'il était préférable
d'utiliser la motion de cloture a la Chambre, la motion
d'attribution de temps, ou de procéder de cette maniére. Nous
avons opté pour la derniere solution. Par conséquent. nous
avons agi en connaissance de cause et apres mire réflexion.

M. Angus: Voila qui est intéressant. car, méme si vous étes un
comité permanent, vous jouez en fait le role d'un comité
législatif. Nous connaissons tous la différence entre un comité
permanent et un comité législatif.

M. Blenkarn: Non. j'ai le droit de parler a mes collegues de
la Chambre des communes et de faire appel aux services
juridiques de mon parti. C'est ce que j'ai fait.
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Mr. Angus: I am not objecting to that.

Mr. Blenkarn: It was at the point where something had to
happen. We were at a point where we could not carry on any
more, so it became a question of how we were going to handle
it. It took some thinking and I made the decision to go the route
I went. I really did not want to put the committee system in the
hands of the House Leader.

Mr. Angus: My reference to the legislative committee was
because, as we all know, the Chairs of the legisl_ative committees
are drawn from a pool which includes opposition members.

® 2030

Mr. Blenkarn: Yes.

Mr. Angus: Blenkarn, how you would feel if, say, a Liberal
Chair of a legislative committee found himself in some difficulty
with government members on that committee and sought out the
assistance of Jean-Robert Gauthier or, even worse, Mr. Milliken,
who advised him on a way in which to thwart the will of the

Conservative members?

Mr. Blenkarn: I would think that—

The Chairman: Mr. Angus, with the greatest respect, it would
not bother me a bit knowing they had received inadequate
advice.

Mr. Angus: Are you talking about Milliken or Gauthier?

Mr. Blenkarn: If he was talking about Milliken, it would be a
different matter, but Gauthier would be all right too.

i take the advice of your colleagues or ask
yotllrﬂggllllfzayge: l:/v}?gf they think. I do not think there is anything
wrong with that. I guess if I am in a lawsuit or I have a problem
and it is a legal matter, I phone my lawyer, agd_ if I have an
accounting problem, I phone my accountant, and if I have a tax
problem, I see myself.

. Angus: So you do not see a problem with a Liberal Chair
of l:imie‘;islgal:isve cgmmittee consulting with the Liberal House
Leader or an NDP Chair with the NDP House Leader.

Mr. Blenkarn: No, I do not see any particular problem with
consulting with anybody.

Mr. Angus: You made a ruling that the bil
back by a certain time.

Mr. Blenkarn: That is right.

Mr. Angus: How would you feel if Senator Buckwold, Swho tls
now chairing the GST committee 1n the Seqate—the er;ra e
Committee on Banking and Finance—-.arbltranly made '(11 ];ulltnii
that it would not be reported back until 1995, for example:
the same tactic. Is that appropriate?

Mr. Blenkarn: He would have tO presumably be able tg
control a majority in the Senate.'I guess any legls.lat]ur'e cal
revoke its own orders. I think that 1s pretty hypothefuc:a . simply
because he may not have a majority 1n the Senate forever.

1 would be reported

[Traduction)

M. Angus: Je ne vous reproche rien a ce sujet.

M. Blenkarn: Ca ne pouvait plus durer. Nous en étions rendus
a un point tel qu'il fallait trouver un moyen de réagir. J'ai
beaucoup réfléchi avant de prendre ma décision. Je ne voulais
vraiment pas m'en remettre au leader a la Chambre.

M. Angus: Je faisais allusion aux comités législatifs parce que
les présidents de ces comités sont choisis au hasard, par tirage au
sort, parmi un groupe de personnes comprenant des membres
de I'opposition.

M. Blenkarn: C’est exact.

M. Angus: Monsieur Blenkarn, quelle serait votre réaction si.
par exemple, le président libéral d'un comité législatif qui aurait
du fil a retordre avec les députés du gouvernement siégeant a
son comité demandait I'aide de Jean-Robert Gauthier ou, pire,
celle de M. Milliken. pour réduire au silence les députés
conservateurs?

M. Blenkarn: Je pense que. . .

Le président: Monsieur Angus, sauf votre respect, cela ne me
dérangerait absolument pas si le président du comité était bien
conseillé.

M. Angus: A qui pensez-vous, 4 M. Milliken ou & M.
Gauthier?

M. Blenkarn: Dans le cas de M. Milliken, ce serait différent,
mais avec M. Gauthier, ce serait trés bien également.

Je crois que nous devons toujours demander I'avis de nos
collégues. Il n'y a rien de mal a cela. Si je suis poursuivi ou si jai
un probléme juridique. j'appelle mon avocat; si j'ai un probléeme
de comptabilité, j'appelle mon comptable: si j'ai un probleme
fiscal, je régle cela moi-méme.

M. Angus: Par conséquent, vous ne voyez aucun inconvénient
a ce que le président libéral ou néo-démicrate d'un comité
législatif consulte le leader libéral ou néo-démocrate a la
Chambre?

M. Blenkarn: Non. je ne vois aucun probléme a cela.

M. Angus: Vous avez pris la décision de faire rapport du
projet de loi aprés un certain temps.

M. Blenkarn: En effet.

M. Angus: Quelle serait votre réaction si le sénateur
Buckwold. qui préside actuellement le Comité du Sénat sur la
TPS, le Comité sénatorial des banques et du commerce, décidait
arbitrairement de ne pas faire rapport avant 1995, par exemple?
La tactique serait la méme.

M. Blenkarn: Il faudrait qu'il soit en mesure de contrdler la
majorité au Sénat. Je suppose que toute assemblée peut abroger
ses propres décrets. Mais une telle situation me parait
hautement hypothétique, car le président n'est pas certain de
conserver toujours une majorité au Sénat.
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Mr. Angus: Irrespective of that, one would assume he has the
same powers available to him.

Mr. Blenkarn: I do not know whether he has or not. He has
powers in the committee, and I imagine as committee chair-
man—

Mr. Angus: Yes, which was your power.

Mr. Blenkarn: —he could delay the report in the committee
as long as he could retain the Chair of the committee and as long
as he could retain his suzerainty in the Chair in the committee
and a majority in the committee.

Mr. Angus: Technically, he has the ability to do it.

Mr. Blenkarn: I do not know the rules of the Senate, but I
suspect the Senate rules are similar to the House rules. I suspect
that when the majority position changes in the Senate, as it does
in the House from time to time, the committee chairmanships
might change, because there might come a point when there
might be an election for a new chairman.

Mr. Angus: So you are suggesting that they could only do that
as long as they had a majority in the Senate, and once the Prime
Minister moved to change that, it would be gone.

Mr. Blenkarn: The grim reaper could come along; lots of
things can happen.

Mr. Angus: I have heard of killing the Senate, but not quite
that drastically.

Mr. Blenkarn: The Senate has a number of vacancies in it
right now, as you know, so we shall see what happens there.

The Vice-Chairman: The New Democratic Party has now
voted against abolition. We have it on high authority.

Mr. Blenkarn: I would have thought they would be in favour
of abolishing it. I personally am in favour of abolishing it.

Mr. Angus: You guys had a chance, and you blew it. Now you
are regretting it.

Mr. Blenkarn, how do you see the role of a Chair of
committee? Really, there are two extremes. There is the Chair
operating like the Speaker of the House, never entering into
debate, having no opinion, applying the rules impartially to all
sides. Is it like the chairman of the board, whose job is to steer
the board of directors down the appropriate path?

Mr. Blenkarn: My view, as the chairman of a committee,
is that it is like a chairman of a board. I do not believe you
are like the Speaker at all. I think you are there to organize
the business of the committee as effectively as possible to
make sure people have their fair kick at the cat and to organize
the input from everybody on the committee. I try to do that all
the time. I go out of my way to make sure people get on TV and
in articles and so on. This kind of thing is important. That is why
I have done this fairly successfully for the last six years.

[Translation)]

M. Angus: Indépendamment de cela, on peut supposer qu'il
a les mémes pouvoirs.

M. Blenkarn: Je n’en suis pas certain. Il a des pouvoirs au sein
du comité, et j'imagine qu'en tant que président. . .

M. Angus: Oui, il a les mémes pouvoirs que vous.

M. Blenkarn: . . .il peut retarder le rapport du comité aussi
longtemps qu'il est en mesure de conserver la présidence et aussi
longtemps que les membres du comité lui accordent leur
allégeance et qu'il conserve une majorité au sein du comité.

M. Angus: Techniquement, il peut donc le faire.

M. Blenkarn: Je ne connais pas le Réglement du Sénat, mais
je suppose qu’il est semblable a celui de la Chambre. Je suppose
que les présidents des comités changent lorsque la majorité varie
au Sénat, comme c'est le cas a la Chambre de temps a autre,
étant donné qu’on peut étre amenés, a un moment donné, a élire
un nouveau président.

M. Angus: Si je vous comprends bien, vous affirmez qu'une
telle situation ne serait possible que tant que le président ferait
partie de la majorité au Sénat, mais que tout serait différent des
lors que le premier ministre nommerait des représentants de son
parti.

M. Blenkarn: Bien des choses pourraient se produire, et
personne n’est immortel.

M. Angus: Certains réclament la fin du Sénat, mais quand
méme pas la mort de tous les sénateurs.

M. Blenkarn: Comme vous le savez, certains siéges de
sénateur sont vacants. Nous verrons ce qui se produira.

Le vice-président: Nous savons de bonne source que le
Nouveau Parti démocratique s’est désormais prononcé contre
I"abolition.

M. Blenkarn: Personnellement, je suis pour I'abolition du
Sénat. J’aurais pensé que les néo-démocrates partageaient mon
point de vue.

M. Angus: Vous aviez une chance en or et vous n'avez pas su
en profiter. Maintenant, vous le regrettez.

Monsieur Blenkarn, comment envisagez-vous le role d'un
président de comité? Ily a. en fait, deux extrémes. Il peut, d’'une
part, adopter l'attitude du Président de la Chambre, qui
n'intervient jamais dans le débat, n'’émet pas d’opinion et se
contente d'appliquer impartialement le Reéglement aux députés
de tous les partis. D'autre part. il peut s'inspirer du rdle d'un
président de conseil d'administration dont I'objectif est d’orien-
ter les administrateurs dans la bonne direction.

M. Blenkarn: En tant que président d'un comité,
jestime que je dois agir a la maniére d'un président de
conseil d’administration, et non pas comme le Président de la
Chambre. Le président d'un comité doit organiser de la
maniere la plus efficace possible les travaux du comité afin que
les questions dont il est saisi soient examinées de maniere
convenable et que les opinions de tous les membres du comité
soient prises en compte dans le rapport. C'est ce que j'essaie de
faire tout le temps. Je m'arrange pour faire parler de nous a la
télévision. dans les articles. etc. C'est important, et ¢'est la raison
pour laquelle je m'efforce, avec succes, de le faire depuis six ans.
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This House is not an easy House, but that is probably because
of the confrontation we have had on some pretty fundamental
issues—the free trade issue, the GST issue, the unemployment
insurance issue. We have had nothing but issues that have
presumably gone to the fundamentals of socialism.

Mr. Angus: If not capitalism.

Mr. Blenkarn: I think there is no question about it that the
legislative program of the government has been—

An hon. member: Have you not read the polls?

Mr. Angus: He will go down with the leader.

Mr. Blenkarn: —totally opposed to the previous run of social
philosophy exercised by the previous government and supported
by you. So you now have a government with a different social
philosophy—

An hon. member: They are not sociable at all.

Mr. Blenkarn: —and obviously we wind up with legislation
that is fairly confrontational. We are in the process of Bill C-52
right now, and that is a bill where I do not see any social
philosophy problems, although some people might.

Mr. Milliken: Is that our RRSP?

Mr. Blenkarn: Yes.

Mr. Fontana: There are social problems there. They do not
believe anybody should have pensions.

Mr. Angus: No, we believe everybody should have pensions.

Mr. Fontana: Not generous ones.
The Chairman: Would it be asking too much to get back on
track on this committee?
tion. Let
Mr. Angus: Mr. Blenkarn answered half of my ques
me just cogie back to the other half. Thg chairman-of-the-board
aspect is not just organizing the meeting—

Mr. Blenkarn: Organizing the labour that works for the

committee.

Mr. Angus: —it is following an agenda set by the govern-

ment. . the difference between the Speaker who is neutral and,
as sometimes we have seen. d chairman Of a]comn?lt:ie
representing the majority who tends to work with the Tajglicy
on the committee to follow through on governmen policy
Initiatives.

Mr. Blenkarn: No, I would not say that. I think :ve Sp&‘:: 2‘;;
efforts, in the main, following t.hyough on ttl:er SlSLUCS
interesting and important to individual memoers.

The Minister of Finance is really not keen on our 1(11(])1%% ItVIo;
Crow around the mulberry bush. and he‘ is not going ions
keen on even coming before the cpmnnttee n]c;xt \:rfd sy
week after to go over monetary policy: debt policy

[Traduction]

Notre travail n'est pas de tout repos, probablement en raison
des confrontations qui nous ont opposés sur des questions
fondamentales telles que le libre-échange, la TPS et
I'assurance-chomage. Toutes les questions dont nous avons été
saisis nous ont amenés a réfléchir aux principes fondamentaux
du socialisme.

M. Angus: Ou du capitalisme.

M. Blenkarn: Il ne fait aucun doute que le programme
législatif du gouvernement. . .

Une voix: Est-ce que vous lisez les sondages?
M. Angus: Il va tomber avec son chef.

M. Blenkarn: ...prend directement le contre-pied de la
philosophie sociale appliquée par le gouvernement précédent et
appuyée par vous. Par conséquent, le gouvernement actuel a une
philosophie sociale différente. . .

Une voix: Les conservateurs ne sont absolument pas
sociables!

M. Blenkarn: . . .par conséquent, il n’est pas étonnant que les
lois qu'il propose soient contestées. Nous préparons actuelle-
ment le projet de loi C-52, qui ne doit pas soulever des
problémes de philosophie sociale. Mais sait-on jamais?

M. Milliken: Est-ce qu'il s'agit du projet de loi sur les REER?
M. Blenkarn: Oui.

M. Fontana: A mon avis, il y a des incidences sociales,
puisqu'ils estiment que personne ne devrait toucher de pension.

M. Angus: Au contraire, nous croyons que tout le monde
devrait avoir une pension.

M. Fontana: De petites pensions.

Le président: Est-ce que ce serait trop demander a ces
messieurs de mettre fin aux digressions?

M. Angus: M. Blenkarn a répondu a la moitié de ma question.
Permettez-moi de revenir a la deuxieme partie. Le rdle du
président d'un conseil d’administration ne consiste pas unique-
ment & organiser la réunion. . .

M. Blenkarn: Il doit définir les taches du personnel qui
travaille pour le comité.

M. Angus: ...il doit suivre l'ordre du jour défini par le
gouvernement. .. C'est la différence entre le Président de la
Chambre, qui est neutre, et, comme nous 1'avons vu a certaines
occasions, le président d'un comité qui représente la majorité et
qui a tendance a collaborer avec les députés majoritaires au sein
du comité afin d’entériner les initiatives politiques du gouverne-
ment.

M. Blenkarn: Non, je ne suis pas d’accord avec vous. Je pense
que nous avons surtout examiné les questions qui paraissaient
intéressantes et importantes aux membres du comité.

Le ministre des Finances n'aime pas beaucoup nous voir
taquiner M. Crow, et il n'a méme pas trés envie de se présenter
au comité la semaine prochaine ou la semaine d’aprés pour
parler de la politique monétaire, de la politique sur I'endette-
ment, etc.
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So while you may say that I am just doing the will of the
government, remember that as a chairman I happen to be a
member of the government’s side and therefore I go to the
government caucus and happen to have a fair input into what the
government’s legislation program is. So it would not be surprising
that I might be in favour of the government’s program.

Mr. Angus: The same can be said for all chairmans.

Mr. Blenkarn: In my view, I take positions in lots of situations
that are not endorsed by the Cabinet by any means.

The Chairman: But Mr. Angus’ question was not that.
Everyone knows you are a rebel, sir. I think in many respects
perhaps I am, too, and perhaps some others. But I think Mr.
Angus’ question is quite proper in that a committee chairman,
generally speaking, having been appointed by the government—
and remember, the government still appoints—

Mr. Angus: Mr. Chairman, I thought he was elected by the
members on the committee.

The Chairman: But the majority of the committee members
are government members, and they decide who will be the
chairman.

Mr. Fontana: They do as they are told.

The Chairman: So as a result, Mr. Angus, your point is quite
well taken. In most but not all committees the chairman is
favourable to the government. That is a fact. I do not think Mr.
Blenkarn can deny it.

Mr. Blenkarn: The fact is that as members of the government
caucus, on a caucus matter we are going to pay attention to the
way our colleagues feel and want to see things.

The Chairman: And should.

Mr. Blenkarn: We are likely to anyway, because, after all, we
did have to run under the same flag.

e 2040

Mr. Angus: All those figures seem to walk the fine line.

Mr. Chairman, I take it we are not going to make a decision
on this tonight.

The Chairman: No, I do not think we should. We have heard
the witness. I think it is something everybody has to consider.

Mr. Fontana: Are we going to hear witnesses other than Mr.
Blenkarn?

Mr. Blenkarn: I think you ought to. You had better hear some
of the opposition members.

The Chairman: Then may I suggest to the committee they
suggest other witnesses we should hear.

Mr. Blenkarn: Why do we not hear Mr. Nystrom and Mr.
Riis?
Mr. Fontana: Mr. Young, because he is part and parcel—

Mr. Angus: Mr. Chairman, I do not necessarily disagree with
the suggestion, but I am not sure if we need to hear from any
others of the combatants, if I can put it that way; any more than
Mr. Blenkarn as Chair of the committee. I think if we are to hear
somebody, it would be appropriate to hear from House Leader

types.

[Translation)

Vous croyez que je me contente de faire les quatre volontés
du gouvernement, mais vous oubliez qu'en tant que président, je
fais partie du gouvernement et que je participe donc au caucus,
ou j'ai I'occasion de donner mon opinion sur les programmes
législatifs du gouvernement. Il n'est donc pas surprenant que je
sois en faveur du programme proposé par le gouvernement.

M. Angus: On peut en dire autant de tous les présidents.

M. Blenkarn: Il arrive souvent que je ne partage pas le point
de vue officiel du Cabinet.

Le président: Mais vous vous éloignez de la question de M.
Angus. Chacun sait que vous étes un rebelle, monsieur.
Drailleurs, vous n'étes peut-étre pas le seul, je le suis également
un peu. Je crois que la question de M. Angus est tout 3 fait
pertinente, puisque le président d’'un comité est généralement
nommé par le gouvernement—et souvenez-vous que le gouver-
nement peut encore NOMmer. . .

M. Angus: Je croyais que le président était €lu par les
membres du comité.

Le président: Oui, mais la majorité des membres du comité
sont des députés du parti au pouvoir, et ce sont eux qui
choisissent le président.

M. Fontana: Ils font ce qu'on leur dit.

Le président: Par conséquent. monsieur Angus, vous avez
tout a fait raison. Dans la plupart sinon la totalité des comités,
le président est favorable au gouvernement. C'est indéniable. Je
ne pense pas que M. Blenkarn puisse dire le contraire.

M. Blenkarn: En tant que membres du caucus, nous prenons
en compte le point de vue de nos collegues.

Le président: C'est tout a fait normal.

M. Blenkarn: C'est tout naturel, aprés tout, puisque nous
venons du méme parti.

M. Angus: Tous ces chiffres paraissent flous.

Monsieur le président, je pense que nous ne pourrons pas
prendre une décision ce SOir.

Le président: Non, je ne le crois pas. Nous avons entendu le
témoin. Je pense que tout le monde va y réfléchir.

M. Fontana: Devons-nous entendre d’autres témoins que M.
Blenkarn?

M. Blenkarn: Je crois que vous devriez entendre certains
membres de I'opposition.

Le président: J'attends les suggestions des membres du
comité.

M. Blenkarn: Pourquoi ne pas demander a M. Nystrom et &
M. Riis de témoigner?

M. Fontana: M. Young, étant donné qu'il est juge et partie. . .

M. Angus: Monsieur le président, je ne suis pas forcément
d'accord avec la proposition, car je ne suis pas certain qu'il soit
nécessaire d'entendre d'autres témoins en plus de M. Blenkarn,
le président du comité. Il faudrait plutét, si 'on doit entendre
d’autres témoins, convoquer les leaders a la Chambre.
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[Texte]
Mr. Blenkarn: I think Mr. Riis would be important.

The Chairman: All right, Mr. Riis and Mr. Nystrom: and Mr.
Gauthier.

Mr. Blenkarn: And you might want to hear from Harvie
Andre.

The Chairman: There is one other suggestion. Perhaps we
should hear from a couple other chairmen of committees.

Mr. Milliken: Is Mr. Andre the person you got the advice
from, or was it Mr. Young?

Mr. Blenkarn: I learned about the precedent from my clerk.
Mr. Milliken: But you consulted, you said. with the minister.

Mr. Blenkarn: I then consulted with my Whip and with Mr.
Andre.

Mr. Milliken: It was Harvie, but it was not Doug Lewis.

Mr. Blenkarn: I chatted with them, but I had a good discussion
with our guy who is our lawyer type on the House Leader stuff.
a fellow by the name of McKenzie. He is really the guy who did
the bulk of the concept.

Mr. Milliken: Invite the House Leaders, if they would like to
come, Mr. Chairman.

The Chairman: We have had the clerk. The House
Leaders. . .I was thinking of perhaps two or three committee
chairman, particularly chairmen representing the opposition.
Public Accounts is an example. It might be interesting, because
remember, the government still has more members there.

Mr. Fontana: It works really well.

The Chairman: Yes. And it would be interesting to see what
- they had to say about the potential conflicts we are talking about.
Would that be reasonable, before we make any decisions on the
thing?
Mr. Thorkelson: When will we meet; what days and what
times?
The Chairman: How can we judge that, when the key
consideration in meeting and so forth is the availability of rooms
and the availability of members?

The meeting is adjourned.

[Traduction)

M. Blenkarn: A mon avis, il serait important que le comité
entende M. Riis.

Le président: Trés bien. M. Riis et M. Nystrom, ainsi que M.
Gauthier.

M. Blenkarn: N'oubliez pas Harvie Andre.

Le président: Voila une autre suggestion intéressante. Nous
devrions peut-étre entendre quelques autres présidents de
comités.

M. Milliken: Est-ce que c'est M. Andre ou M. Young qui
vous a conseillé?

M. Blenkarn: C'est le greffier qui m'a parlé du précédent.

M. Milliken: Mais vous nous avez dit que vous aviez consulté
le ministre.

M. Blenkarn: Par la suite, j'ai consulté le whip et M. Andre.

M. Milliken: C'était Harvie, et non pas Doug Lewis.

M. Blenkarn: J'ai discuté avec eux, mais j'ai eu une longue
conversation avec notre avocat, un spécialiste des affaires
parlementaires du nom de McKenzie. C'est en fait lui qui a tout
organisé.

M. Milliken: Si vous le voulez, monsieur le président, nous
pouvons inviter les leaders a la Chambre.

Le président: Nous avons entendu le greffier. Les leaders a la
Chambre. . . Je pensais peut-€tre a deux ou trois présidents de
comités, en particulier des représentants de I'opposition. Par
exemple le président du Comité des comptes publics. Ce serait
intéressant, parce que, comme vous le savez, le gouvernement
est encore majoritaire dans ce comité.

M. Fontana: Il fonctionne trés bien.

Le président: En effet. Il serait intéressant de connaitre leurs
points de vue sur les risques de conflit que nous examinons.
Est-ce que ce serait raisonnable avant de prendre une décision?

M. Thorkelson: Quand doit-on se réunir? Quel jour et a
quelle heure?

Le président: Comment pouvons-nous en décider tant qu'on
n'a pas réglé les questions des salles de réunion et de la
disponibilité des membres?

La séance est levée.
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MINUTES OF PROCEEDINGS
WEDNESDAY, MAY 16, 1990
QY

[Text]

The Standing Committee on Privileges and Elections met at
3:36 o'clock p.m. this day, in Room 307, West Block, the
Vice-Chairman, Peter Milliken, presiding.

Members of the Committee present. Iain Angus, Jean-Pierre
Hogue, Peter Milliken, Scott Thorkelson and Pierrette Venne.

In attendance: From the Research Branch of the Library of
Parliament: Jamie Robertson. Research Officer.

Appearing: The Hon. Harvie Andre, Minister of State and
Leader of the Government in the House of Commons.

The Committee resumed consideration of its mandate on
Parliamentary procedure in committees pursuant to Standing
Order 108(3)b). (See Minutes of Proceedings, Monday, May 7,
1990, Issue No. 25).

The witness made statement and answered questions.

At 4:31 o'clock p.m., by unanimous consent, the Committee
proceeded to discuss future business.

After debate,—It was agreed that the researcher write a draft
report on broadcasting for the Committee’s future consideration.

At 4:42 o'clock p.m., the Committee adjourned to the call of
the Chair.

Susan Baldwin

Clerk of the Committee

PROCES-VERBAL

LE MERCREDI 16 MAI 1990
(41)

[Traduction]

Le Comité permanent des privileges et des élections se réunit
aujourd’hui a 15 h 36, dans la salle 307 de I'édifice de 'Ouest,
sous la présidence de Peter Milliken (vice-président).

Membres du Comité présents: Iain Angus, Jean-Pierre Hogue,
Peter Milliken, Scott Thorkelson, Pierrette Venne.

Aussi présente: Du Service de recherche de la Bibliothéque du
Parlement: Jamie Robertson, attachée de recherche.

Comparait: Lhonorable Harvie Andre, ministre d’Etat et
leader du gouvernement & la Chambre des communes.

En conformité de I'alinéa 108(3)b), le Comité reprend
I'examen de la procédure parlementaire observée par les comités |

(voir les Procés—verbaux et témoignages du lundi 7 mai 1990,
fascicule n° 25). I

Le témoin fait un exposé et répond aux questions.

A 16 h 31, par consentement unanime, le Comité délibére de
ses travaux a venir. :

Apres débat, il est convenu,—Que l'attachée de recherche
rédige un projet de rapport sur la radiodiffusion que le Comité
étudiera ultérieurement.

A 16 h 42. le Comité s'ajourne jusqu’a nouvelle convocation .'

du président. i

La greffiére du Comité

Susan Baldwin
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EVIDENCE TEMOIGNAGES

[Recorded by Electronic Apparatus)
Wednesday, May 16, 1990

e 1535

The Vice-Chairman: I call the meeting to order. We welcome
as our witness today the Government House Leader and
Minister of State, the Hon. Harvie Andre. Mr. Andre, do you
have an opening statement for the committee?

Hon. Harvie Andre (Minister of State and Leader of the
Government in the House of Commons): No, I do not, Mr.
Chairman, other than to say I welcome the opportunity to be
here. I am ready to try to respond to any questions that you might
have and to offer any observations that you might ask of me.

The Vice-Chairman: I think the purpose of the meeting was
to discuss the procedure in standing committees, specifically the
procedure that had arisen in the Standing Committee on Finance
in the course of its consideration of the bill relating to the goods
and services tax, Bill C-62.

The purpose of inviting you here was to hear your views
on what committees ought to do in the circumstances,
recognizing the difficulty the chairman of that committee
found himself in as a result of his actions in the committee. I
think the committee is aware that the rules provide that the
House can set time limits on the committee’s consideration
of bills and do a closure motion by way of time allocation
proceedings in the House or a procedure similar to the time
allocation proceedings. We wondered if the committees, as a
matter of course, ought to adopt a set of procedural guidelines
or rules to deal with the question of how to close off debate where
there appears to be no limit on it. We are looking for your views
on that issue.

Mr. Andre: Let me just speak on that direct question regarding
the reaction to the position taken by Mr. Blenkarn in the finance
committee in respect of the GST legislation or Bill C-62 and my
reaction to it as Government House Leader.

As for whether I supported Mr. Blenkarn's actions at
that time, yes, I did. We supported him but it was not
necessary for the government to initiate anything in the
House in that regard. Does that experience of Blenkarn and
previously Lachance justify making any changes in Standing
Order 78 or any Standing Order to make provision for the House
or a committee to end a blockade? I guess my answer to that
would be yes. I recognize that Standing Order 78 does allow for
the dealing with a bill before a committee. However, in a sense,
it is not the best instrument; I guess this is the way I would put
it.

We have always operated for good and valid reasons on the
basis that committees were responsible to themselves. On many
occasions over my parliamentary career I can recall points of
orders and points of privilege being brought to the floor of the
House from committees and Speakers ruling that it is a matter
for the committee to decide.

[Enregistrement électronique]

Le mercredi 16 mais 1990

Le vice-président: La séance est ouverte. Nous accueillons
aujourd’hui I'honorable Harvie Andre, leader du gouvernement
a la Chambre et ministre d’Etat. Monsieur Andre, avez-vous
une déclaration a faire avant que nous ne commencions?

L’honorable Harvie Andre (Ministre d’Etat et leader du
gouvernement a la Chambre des communes): Non, monsieur le
président, sauf pour dire que je suis heureux d’étre parmi vous
cet aprés-midi. Je suis prét a essayer de répondre aux questions
que vous voudrez bien me poser et a faire au besoin certains
commentaires si vous I'estimez utile.

Le vice-président: L'objet de cette réunion est de discuter des
réglements s’appliquant aux comités permanents, et en particu-
lier de la situation que nous avons connue au comité des
Finances alors qu'il étudiait le projet de loi C-62 sur la taxe sur
les produits et services.

Si nous vous avons invité cet aprés-midi, c'est pour
entendre ce que vous avez a dire sur ce que devrait faire les
comités dans de telles circonstances, reconnaissant que le
président de ce comité s'est trouvé dans une situation assez
difficile suite aux mesures qu’il a prises. Nous savons que le
réglement prévoit que la Chambre peut imposer des limites
qu'en au temps que les comités peuvent prendre pour étudier
des projets de loi et adopter une motion de cloture ou de
répartition du temps & la Chambre ou quelque chose de similaire
pour y parvenir. Nous nous demandions si les comités ne
devraient pas adopter une série de lignes directrices ou de regles
sur la facon de mettre fin & un débat qui semble ne plus vouloir
en finir. C’est la-dessus que nous aimerions avoir votre point de
vue.

M. Andre: Permettez-moi de répondre tout d’abord a votre
question sur la réaction suscitée par la position prise par M.
Blenkarn au comité des Finances a propos du projet de loi C-62
sur la TPS. Je vous donnerai également ma réaction 4 titre de
leader du gouvernement a la Chambre.

Si vous me demandez si j'ai appuyé M. Blenkarn sur le
moment, je dois vous répondre que oui. Nous I'avons appuyé
mais il n’était pas nécessaire pour le gouvernement de faire
quoi que ce soit a la Chambre a cet égard. Cette expérience
avec Blenkarn, et auparavant avec Lachance, justifie-t-elle de
modifier l'article 78 du réglement ou tout autre article du
réglement pour permettre a la Chambre ou a un comité de
mettre fin a un barrage? Je répondrai que oui. Je reconnais que
I'article 78 du réglement permet d’intervenir dans I'étude d’un
projet de loi par un comité. Toutefois, dans un sens, ce n’est pas
forcément & mon avis le meilleur outil a utiliser.

Nous avons toujours considéré, pour de bonnes raisons, que
les comités étaient autonomes. A bien des occasions, au cours de
ma carriere parlementaire, nous avons eu des rappels au
reglement et des questions de privilege a la Chambre a ce sujet
et les présidents de la Chambre ont toujours déclaré que c'était
une question qui relevait des comités respectifs.
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Privileges et des élections

[Texte]

This has certainly been the practice all along. Committees are
bound by the Standing Orders that pertain to them and guided
by Beauchesne’s and the other parliamentary references. But they
are responsible for their own activities, their own proceedings.
I think that is probably appropriate.
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I recognize and think it is equally a legitimate question to
ask whether the vehicle that Lachance had used once and
Blenkarn had used a second time was the appropriate vehicle
to have for a situation where it is necessary to bring an end
to debate and have the questions put. I think it is probably within
our imaginations to come up with a more appropriate instru-
ment, an instrument that is perhaps less able to be used in an
abusive fashion. I do not think in either the Lachance case or the
Blenkarn case it was an abuse, because a great deal of time had
occurred. It was quite clear that some mechanism would need to
be used to end the debate that was going on.

The argument could be made that it should have been done
in the House through Standing Order 78.(1) or whatever as
opposed to using this instrument. That, to me, seems r.atljer
outside of the question of whether it is appropriate n a timing
sense that the questions be brought to a decision.

That will always be a question. That will always be an
argument, and no matter what instrument you hgve, you _wn}l
always have the situation where the opposition will say this is
cutting off debate and discussion and the government or the
proposer will say that it is time for the question to be put. That
is a part of our system and there is no mechanism you can devise

to change that.

I think abuse is possible on both sides. I do not claim to have
any Solomonic proposal at this time that will address the
legitimate concerns of both sides, other than to say it may be
appropriate to examine those instruments we have in the 'House
closure motions 57 and 78.(1), (2) and (3) to see if in fact
something similar might not be proposed specifically for
committees.

The abuse by the majority would come in @ situation where it
would be possible, in my view, to receive a piece of business ang
dispose of it before there is an opportunity for those affecte
outside the parliamentary precincts to react.

lways felt that it took about a

have a
A pasiamn.d e that affected the west

week for an issue raised in the Hous
b:fe;)re (ihe nature of the concerns could be heard, reacted to,
responded to and in that sense brought back here.to havg
some impact. Thus any moves to bring forwarc! a fresh 1ssucla) ane
to try to jam it through seriatim in a short penod was tgn a Zgi e.
I felt, particularly for those from further regions—just time Zons
considerations, the size of the country, all of those consider:
ations.

Clearly the system has a lot of protc
for indivgdual members and those protections can belde(?lQ%/fd
in a way as to prevent decisions from being Segc firiue 11?{
filibuster as a technique leaves a lot t0 be desired by ‘

ections, rightfully so,

[Traduction)

C’est toujours ainsi que I'on a procédé. Les comités sont tenus
de respecter les articles du réglement qui les concernent et de
suivre les régles de Beauchesne et des autres ouvrages parlemen-
taires. Mais ils sont responsables de leurs propres actes, de la
facon dont se déroulent leurs délibérations. Je crois que c'est
assez normal.

Je reconnais et je crois que l'on peut légitimement se
de